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Annual Report 1 January to 31 December 2007 for FLSmidth & Co. A/S

Company Announcement to the Danish Financial Supervisory Authority No. 8-2008, 28 February 2008 % ¢ :i/——-@ :

The Board of Directors of FLSmidth & Co. A/S has today reviewed and adopted the Annual Report and accounts for
January - December 2007. The Report is presented in accordance with International Reporting Standards, which is
approved by the EV, and additional Danish disclosure requirements for annual reports of listed companies.

Date: 28.02.2008

The full report is accessible via the Internet at:

The main conclusions 2007 are as follows:

Financial petrformance

- In 2007, FLSmidth & Co. saw satisfactory development of its order intake, turnover, earnings and cash flow from operating activities
with a historically high order backlog at the end of 2007

- The turnover increased 62% in 2007 to DKK 19,967m (2006: DKK 12,311m)

- Earnings before speciat non-recurring items, depreciatlon and amartisation (EBITDA) grew 117% in 2007 to DKK 2,100m (2006: DKK
g66m)

- Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) rose 135% in 2007 to DKK 1,824m (2006: DKK 775m}, corresponding to an EBIT ratio of
9.1% (2006 6.3%)

www.flsmidth.com/reparts
‘ - Eamings befare tax (EBT) rose 103% in 2007 to DKK 1,877m (2006: DKK 924m)
- Cash flow from operating activities rose 16% in 2007 to DKK 1,493m (2006: DKK 1,288m)
- The arder intake Increased 30% in 2007 to DKK 24,061m (2006: DKK 18,534m)

- The order backlog rose 39% to DKK 25,312m at the end of 2007 (end of 2006: DKK 18,264m)

The market situation
1n 2007, the level of activity and the order intake were historically high in all business segments,

- Cement: In 2007, the global market for new contracted cement kiln capadity exclusive of China amounted to 125m tonnes per year
(2006: 140m tonnes per year), FLSmidth & Ca.'s share of the market remaining unchanged at 29%

- Minerals: 2007 saw a growing amount of investment in the minerals industry, a development that is likely to continue in 2008. The
upward trend reflects insufficient investments in the preceding years combined with a growing demand for minerals in China and other
developing countries

Prospects for 2008
- Sustained favourable business cyclas and a continued high level of activity are expected for 2008

- in 2008, FLSmidth & Co. expects a consofidated turnover of approx. DKK 26bn, earnings before special non-recurring items,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of DKK 2.9-3.0bn, eamings before interest and tax {(EBIT) of DKK 2.4-2.5bn and eamings

before tax (EBT) of DKK 2.3-2.4bn

- Effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process amounts ta some DKK -270m, which is included in the expectations
mentioned above

hitp://www.flsmidth.com/FLSmidth/English/Investor/Announcement.htm?FLSMode=Print... ~ 4/7/2008
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- Cash flow from operating activities in 2008 is expected to amount to around DKK 1,200m, and investments {exclusive of acquisitions)
are expected to total approximately DKK 700m

- The effective tax percentage for 2008 is expected to be in the range of 30%. The tax percentage payable, however, is expected to be
slightly lower

- For the individua) business segments, the prospects for 2008 are as follows:

Cement:
Tumover approx., DKK 13,5bn, EBIT ratio approx. 9-10%

Minerals:
Turnover approx., DKK 11.5bn, EBIT ratio approx. 11-12%*

Cembrit;
Turnover approx., DKK 1.5bn, EBIT ratio approx. 9%

*{exclusive of effect of purchase price aflocations at approx. DKK -270m)

- The prospects for 2008 in Cement assume an unchanged market share and a total market for new contracted cement Xiln capacity of
approximatety 100-125m tonnes per year (exclusive of China}, which is tantamount to an unchanged high leve! of demand.

Long-term growth and earnings prospects

2009 is expected to see a centinuation of the favourable business cycle and high tevel of activity, and the turnover is expected to rise
compared to the prospects for 2008 In alé three business segments. The effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process in
2009 and onwards is expected to be around DKK -100m per year In the form of amortisation of Intanglbie assets.

In the longer term, earnings from Minerzls and the aftermarket (spare parts and services) will account for a larger part of the Group's
total earnings, which will cushion the effect of any cyclical market fluctuations in Cement, Against this background, the Group expects

its EBIT ratio to be 10-12% in periods of high activity and slightly below that level in periods of low activity.
In the longer term, investments exclusive of acquisitions are expected to tota! approximately DKK 400m per year.

Please address any questions regarding this announcement to Group Chief Executive Officer Jorgen Huno Rasmussen, FLSmidth & Co.
A/S at +45 36 18 18 00,

For further information about FLSmidth, please visit www . flsmidth.com.
Yours faithfully

Pernile Friis Andersen
Corporate Communications & Investor Relaticns

http://www.flsmidth.com/FLSmidth/English/Investor/Announcement. htm?FLSMode=Print...  4/7/2008
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The preferred partner of the cement
and minerals industries
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Group financial highlights

(5 year summary)

DKKm 2003 © 2004 20052 2006 2 2007 2007 EUR B
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net turnover 8,939 10,597 10,250 12,31t 19,967 2,680
Gross profit 1,303 1,412 1,908 2,602 4,272 573
Earnings before non-recurring items, depreciation, amortisation (EBITDA) # 136 142 558 966 2,100 282
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) (108) (186) 398 775 4,824 245
Earnings before tax {EBT) {101) (196} 512 924 1,877 251
Profitfloss for the year, continuing activities _ {330) 530 1,107 1.293 174
Profitdoss for the year, discontinuing activities (2,471) 484 (54) 25 1 0
Profit/loss for the year _{2,548) 151 476 1,132 1,294 174
CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operating activities 232 {299} 1,731 1,288 1,493 200
Acquisition of undertakings and activities (33 {3 (a7) (150 (3,409) {457
Acquisition of tangible assets (72} (148) {176) {249) (386) (52}
Other investments, net 2 26 279 52 {18} {2}
Cash flow from investing activities {203) (125) 56 {387) {3,813} {511)
Cash flow from operating and investing activities of continuing activities 29 (424) 1,787 976 (2,448) (328)
Cash flow from operating and investing activities of discontinuing activities 304 4,122 1 {75) 128 17
WORKING CAPITAL 969 878 (240) {435) 665 89
NET INTEREST-BEARING RECEIVABLES/{DEBT) {1,143) 1,191 2,600 2,847 (1,583) (212)
ORDER INTAKE 8,752 8,459 13,289 18,534 24,061 3,227
ORDER BACKLOG 7,915 6,506 10,834 18,264 25,312 3,395
BALANCE SHEET

Long-term assets 2,005 1,745 1,913 2,355 7,799 1,046
Short-term assets 4,105 6,448 7.664 9,764 11,865 1,59
Assets held for sale 5,268 0 0 132 8 1
Total assets 1,378 8,193 9517 12,251 19,672 2,638
Consolidated equity 2,916 2,585 2,648 3,192 4,214 565
Long-term liabilities 1,949 1,130 1,271 1,710 4,797 643
Short-term liabilities 3,139 4,478 5,658 7.344 10,661 1,430
Liabilities regarding assets held for sale 3374 0 o 5 0 0
Tota! equity and liabilities 1.378 8,193 9,577 12,251 19,672 2,638
PROPOSED DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS 0 372 Irz 372 372 50
FINANCIAL RATIOS

Continuing activities

Contribution ratio 14.6% 13.3% 18.6% 21.1% 21.4% 21.4%
EBITDA ratio 1.5% 1.3% 5.4% 7.8% 10.5% 1.5%
EBIT ratio (1.2%) (1.8%) 3.9% 6.3% 9.1% 9.1%
EBT ratio (1.1%) (1.9%) 5.0% 7.5% 9.4% 9.4%
fleturn on shareholders’ equity (59%) 5% 18% 3% 35% 35%
Equity ratio 26% 32% 28% 26% 1% 21%
Number of employees at 31 December, Group 5,479 5,625 5.849 6,862 9377 9377
Number of employees in Denmark 1,696 1,642 1,463 1,508 1,657 1,657
Share and dividend ratios, Group

CFPS {cash flow per share), DKK {dilited) 3.9 (2.9) 328 243 284 38
EPS (earnings per share}, DKK (diluted) (49.3) 238 9.1 217 24.6 33
EPS (earnings per share), DKK (diluted) before effeqt of

acquisition price allocations regarding GL&V Frocess - - - - 26.4 35
Net asset value, DKK parent company 52 54 45 38 47 63
Dividend per share, DKK 0 7 7 7 7 0.9
Pay-gut ratio (%) 0% 250% 77% 32% 29% 29%
FiSrnidth & Co. share price, DKK 63.7 102.4 186 359 522 10
Number of shares, 31 December (0005} 53,200 53,200 53,200 53,200 53,200 $3,200
Average number of shares (0005} {dituted) 51,881 52,509 52,518 52,558 52,640 52,640
Market capitafisation, DKKm 3,655 5,448 9,895 15,099 22,170 3,724

The financial ratios have been computed in accordance with the Guidelines issued by the Danish Society of Financial Analysts, ROCE is defined in the Accounting Policies:

1} The financial highlights for 2004 to 2007 are prepared in accerdance with IFRS. The comparative figures for 2003 have not been adjusted to the change in accounting
policies. The presentation is aciusted 5o that the discontinuing activities are presented on a separate line.

2} The financial highlights for 2005 - 2006 are prepared in accordance with the change in accounting policy in 2006 regarding measurement of financial assets pursuant ta
the changed IAS 39. In accordance with the transition provisions for the changed IAS 39, implementation has thus taken place retroactively from 1 January 2005,

3} Prafit and loss account items are rranslated at the average EUR exchange rate of 745.08, and the batance sheet and cash flow items are translated at the year-end EUR
change rate of 745.66.

4} EBMDA (Earnings Before non-recurring items, Depreciation and Amortisation} is defined as the operating income {EBIT} with addition of the year's amortisation,
depreciation and write-gown of intangible and tangible assets and special non-recursing items, The definition is changed compared to 2006 where special
non-recurring items were recognised before EBITDA, Comparative figures for 2006 have been adjusted accordingly.



FLSmidth & Co. in brief

The preferred partner of the cement
and minerals industries

Company vision

It is FLSmidth & Co.'s vision to continuously strengthen its posi-
tion as the preferred partner and leading supplier of equipment
and services to the global cement and minerals industries.
FLSmidth & Co. continuously strives to generate a profitable
return for its owners through value creating growth. Alliances

and acquisitions contribute to strengthening the market pasition.

Investing in FLSmidth

FLSmidth & Co. A/S is listed on OMX Nordic Exchange

Copenbhagen and may be characterised as a project- and

service-focused engineering business with a unique global

market position and strong potential for growth.

+ The total return on the FLSmidth & Co. share in 2007 was
47% (2006: 97%)

» Earnings per share (difuted) before the effect of purchase
price alfocations regarding GL&V Process amounted to DKK
26.4 in 2007 (2006: DKK 21.7)

Project divisions
Customer Services
Product divisions
Product companies

Project divisians
Customer Services -
Product divisions
Product companies

Main conclusions 2007

Financial perfarmance

« In 2007, FLSmidth & Co. saw satisfactory development of its
order intake, turnover, earnings and cash flow from operating
activities with a historically high order backlog at the end of 2007
The turnover increased 62% in 2007 to DKK 19,967m {2006:
DKK 12,311m)

Earnings before special non-recurring items, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) grew 117% in 2007 to DKK 2,100m
(2006: DKK 966m)

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) rose 135% in 2007 to
DKK 1,824m (2006: DKK 775my, corresponding to an EBIT
ratio of 9.1% (2006: 6.3%)

Earnings before tax {EBT) rose 103% in 2007 to DKK 1,877m
(2006: DKK 924m)

Cash flow from operating activities rose 16% in 2007 to
DKK 1,433m (2006: DKK 1,288m}

* The order intake increased 30% in 2007 to DKK 24,06tm
{2006: DKX 18,534m)

The order backlog rose 39% to DKK 25,312m at the end of
2007 (end of 2006: DKK 18,264m)

The market situation

In 2007, the level of activity and the order intake were histori-
cally high in all business segments.

+ Cement;: In 2007, the glabal market for new contracted
cement kiln capacity exclusive of China amounted 10 125m
tonnes per year (2006: 140m tonnes per year), FLSmidth &
Co.'s share of the market rernaining unchanged at 29%
Minerals: 2007 saw a growing amount of investment in the
minerals industry, a development that is likely to continue in
2008. The upward trend reflects insufficient investments in the
preceding years combined with a growing demand for miner-
als in China and other developing countries

Prospects for 2008

¢ Sustained favourable business cycles and a continued high

level of activity are expected for 2008

In 2008, FLSmidth & Co. expects a consolidated turnover of

approx. DKK 26bn, earnings before special non-recurring

items, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of DKK

2.9-3.0bn, earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) of DKK

2.4-2.5bn and earnings before tax {(EBT) of DKK 2.3-2.4bn

» Effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process
amounts to some DKK -270m, which is included in the expec-
tatiens mentioned above



» Cash flow from operating activities in 2008 is expected to
amount 1o around DKK 1,200m, and investments {exclusive of
acquisitions) are expected to total approximately DKK 700m

» The effective tax percentage for 2008 is expected to be in
the range of 30%. The tax percentage payahle, however, is
expected to be slightly lower

« For the individual business segments, the prospects tor 2008
are as follows:

Cement Turnover approx.  DKK 13.5hbn EBIT ratio approx. 9-10%

Minerls Turnover approx.  DKK 11.5bn EBI ratio approx. 13-12%"*

Cembrit Tumover approx~ DKK 1.5bn EBIT ratio approx. 9%

*({exdusive of effect of puschase price allocations at approx. DKX -270m)

» The prospects for 2008 in Cement assume an unchanged market
share and a total market for new contracted cement kiln capacity
of approximately 100-125m tonnes per year {exclusive of Chinaj,
which is tantamount to an unchanged high level of demand

Long-term growth and earnings prospects
2009 is expec ed 10 see a continuation of the favourable bustness
cycle and high tevel of activity, and the turnover is expected to
rise compared to the prospects for 2008 in all three business seg-
ments. The effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V
Process in 2009 and anwards is expected to be around DKK
-100m per year in the form of amortisation of intangible assets.

in the longer term, earnings from Minerals and the aftermarket
(spare parts and services) will account for a larger part of the
Group's total earnings, which will cushion the effect of any
cyclical market fluctuations in Cement. Against this background,
the Group expects its EBIT ratio to be 10-12% in periods of high
activity and sfightly below that level in periods of low activity.

In the longer term, investments exclusive of acquisitions are
expected to total approximately DKK 400m per year.

Strategic focus areas

« Executing the record high order backlog

= Less cydical business model through balanced turnover
between Cement and Minerals and 10-15% annual turnover
growth in the aftermarket (spare parts and services)
Integration of GL&V Pracess and leveraging FLSmidth Minerals’

unique platform

strengthening technelogical leadership by increasing investments
in research and development

Optimising the cost structure by implementing LEAN proc-
esses, offshoring engineering work to India and increased

sourcing in low-cost countries
Global integration between Cement and Minerals to enhance
knowledge sharing and utilisation of resources

Turnover and EBIT ratio

DXKm
25,000 110%
8%
20,000 o
. 6%
15,000 1 4%
[
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5,000 4 e | . %
gl 1 T %
2003 004 2005 2006 2007
[} Turnover == EBIT ratic
Turnover 2007 - split up into segments
Minerals 32%
Cembrit 7%
Cement 51%

EBIT result 2007 — split up into segments

Minerals 30%
Cembrit 7%
Other 3%

Turnover 2007 — split up geographically

Asia 30%

Scandinavia 5%
Rest of Eurcpe 13%
——— North America 21%
AN
\\ S~

T South America 8%
Africa 20%
Australia 3%

Turnover 2007 — split up into country types

Developed countries 42%




Business areas - facts & figures

-,
r ¥ .
-S-"L‘A.‘:h‘.,.p..-- ..




-

-

FLSmidth is among the leading suppliers of complete
industrial plants, equipment and single machine units plus
spare parts and services to the global cement industry
Global cernent consumption is characterised by a continuous
upward trend due to global economic growth and an increas-
ing population, particularly in the developing countries

The market for new cement producing capacity and
equipment is expected to remain highly active in 2008
FLSmidth's customers are local, regional and global

cement producers

*

FLSmidth Minerals is among the leading suppliers of
systemns, machinery, processes, spare parts and services
to the global minerals industry

The giobal minerals market is expanding rapidly — driven
by population growth, industrialisation and urbanisation
particularly in China

The market for new minerals industry capacity and eguip-
ment is expected to ¢ontinue to be very active in 2008.
FLSmidth Minerals’ customers are local, regional and
global mining companies

-

Cembrit is Europe’s second largest producer and
distributor of fibre cement products

The &uropean market for building materials has been
growing over the past two o three years

Future growth opportunities remain promising in
Eastern Europe where Cembrit is strongly positioned

Turnover 2007 - geographical breakdown

10%

Europe

8% B North America
B% B South America
7 Africa
Australia

3 Asia
Highlights 2007 2006
Turnover DKK 12,210m DKK 7,683m
EBIT DKK 1,084m DKK 437m
EBIT ratio 8.9% 5.7%
Order intake DKK 15,789m  DKK 12,649m
Order backlog DKK 17,265m  DKK 13,531m

Turnover 2007 — geographical breakdown

12%

Europe
I North America
B South America

3%
=% {1 Africa
Australia
O Asia
9%
Highlights 2007 2006
Turnover DKK 6,430m DKK 3,276m
EBIT DKK 553m DKK 258m
EBIT ratio 8.6% 7.9%
EBIT ratio* 10.8% 7.9%
Qrder intake DKK 8,543m DKK 5,885m
Order backlog DKK 8,777m __ DKK 4,733m

*} before effect of purchase price allocation regarding GL&Y Process

Turnover 2007 - geographical breakdown

M Denmark

[0 scandinavia
{except Denmark)

Europe
{except Scandinavia}

Hightights 2007 20086
Turnover DKK 1,419m DKK 1,216m
EBIT DKK 124m_ DKK 81m

EBIT ratio 8.7% 6.7%
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Management’s review

FLSmidth celebrated its 125th anniversary in 2007 in good
shape. During the year, FLSmidth consolidated its leadership as
supplier to the global cement and minerals industries through
strategic acquisitions and successful financial performance,
laying the ground for growth and increasing earnings over the
coming years. This development is being supported by favour-
able structural and cyclical market developments.

The 125th anniversary was celebrated through a number of
internal and external events, incfuding the issuing of employee
shares and a series of customer seminars held globally at five
different locations where international experts addressed the
future challenges of the cement and minerals industries such as
globalisation, climate changes, energy usage and environmental
impact.

Market trends

2007 saw positive market and earnings developments in all
business segments. Strong structural and cyclical market trends
during 2007 resulted in a historically high order intake and order
backlog at the end of 2007. The increasing order intake in 2007
will be reflected in the turnover for 2008 to 2010 in Cement and
Minerals, since delivery times extend up to two to three years.

Cement

As forecast the market for new contracted cement kiln capac-
ity outside China amounted 1o 125m tonnes per year in 2007
(2006: 140m tonnes per year} and shows no signs of weakening.
In 2007, the demand for new capacity was more geographi-
cally diversified than in previous years. This is due to the fact
that growing cement consumption and increasing demand for
cement production capacity in different regions are driven by
various independent macroeconomic factors, including high oil
and commodity prices, low interest rates, outsourcing of western
production, population growth, industrialisation, urbanisation
and modernisation of existing capacity. These factors mean that
purchasing power is shifting from the western industrial nations

to the rest of the world. These countries are seeing a rapid
expansion of the middte class, which is the main driver of their
economic growth. ndia continues to be the largest market out-
side China, but Africa and Russia are picking up, the Middle East
remains buoyant and also Central and South America are seeing
growing activity.

Minerals

2007 was an extremely active year for investments in the miner-
als industry due to the continuing elevated mineral prices as a
result of growing demand, especially from China, combined with
low investments in exploration and mining of minerals over a
number of years. Based on the continuing buoyant demand for
minerals and record levels of investment budgeted by the mining
companies, the order intake in Minerals is expected to continue
to increase during the coming two years.

2007 saw a geographically widely based market spread for
FLSmidth Minerals with major orders being received for the
extraction of notably ferre nicke! / iron ore, coal, bauxite and
Copper.

Cembrit

As at 28 February 2008, Dansk Eternit Holding A/S has changed
its name to Cembrit Holding A/S (hereafter called ‘Cembrit’). The
purpose of the name change is to emphasise the development
of the company over the past 10 - 15 years from being a Danish
to becoming a European group with companies and activities

in most parts of Europe and to pesition it for continued growth
based on a new, strong, commen and visible corporate identity.

The level of activity remained high during 2007 due to the
favourable business climate in the building and construction
industry and the mild winter in Europe. During 2007, Cembrit
was successful in practically all the markets served, but it was
unable to keep up with demand in certain product and market
segments due to insufficient production capacity.

Planning the ercction of
FLSemidth coment sios.



Developments in the order intake and

order backlog

The total order intake amounted to BKK 24,061m in 2007,
which represents an increase of 30% compared to 2006 (2006:
DKK 18,534m). Orders received by Customer Services seg-
ment (services and spare parts) totalled DKK 5,169m in 2007,
which is an increase of 48% on 2006 {2006: DKK 3,493m}). As
opposed to previous years, the statement of Customer Services
also includes Customer Services activities in the Group’s product
companies. The total order backlog amounted to DKK 25,312m
at the end of 2007 {end of 2006: DKK 18,264m).

The order intake of the part of the Cement and Minerals
business characterised by a relatively short turnaround time is
typically reflected in the turngver within 6 — 18 months. In major
projects, the order intake continuously manifests itself in the
turnover over a period of 24 — 30 months.

Profit and loss account and balance
sheet developments in 2007

Turnover and gross profit
The turnover amounted to DKK 19,967m in 2007, representing
an increase of 62% on 2006 (2006: DKK 12,311m).

Turnover has increased in all business segments, particularly in
Minerals whose turnover rose 96% compared to 2006, reflect-
ing the high order backlog at the beginning of the year and
acquisitive growth. Growth in Cement amounted to 59% and in
Cembrit 17%.

The turnover in Minerals is DKK 0.6bn lower than expected at
the end of the third quarter of 2007 primarily due to the timing
of the income recognition in FLSmidth Minerals in 2007. The
latter, however, will have a positive impact on 2008 because the
activities are simply postponed into 2008.

The turnover in Customer Services {spare parts and services)
amounted to DKK 3,229m (2006: DKK 2,973m) corresponding
to 21% of the total turnover exclusive of Cembrit (2006: 27%).
The Customer Services business grew 32% in 2007.

The gross profit amounted to DKK 4,272m in 2007 {2006: DKK
2,602m), which corresponds 10 a contribution ratio of 21.4%
{2006: 21.1%). The contribution ratio in 2007 positively reflects

better order execution and reversal of provisions for project risks.

The contribution ratio in Cement, however, is also negatively
impacted by slightly higher turnkey turnover in 2007 than is
normally the case. Basically, turnkey contracts earn a lower aver-
age margin than machinery supply contracts partly due to the
inclusion of costs for civil works, etc.

Capacity costs and earnings

Sales, distribution and administrative costs, etc. amounted to
DKK 2,172m in 2007 {(2006: DKK 1,636m) corresponding to
10.9% of the turnover {2006; 13.3%]) and representing a 33%
increase on the year before. The significant decline in the cost
rate reflects the fact that capacity costs are increasing at a slower
pace than turnover due to better utilisation of capacity and other
economies of scale. It also shows that the iniernal resources have
been built up before the increase in turnover materialised. This

is due to the fact that projects are implemented over a period of
wa or three years and internal resources weigh heavier in the
early phases of a praject, whilst most of the turnover materialises
halfway through or towards the final stages of a project.

2007 saw total investments in research and development at DKK
210m (2006: DKK 169m}, accounting for 1.1% of the turnover
{2006: 1.4%). in addition, project financed development has
taken place in cooperation with customers. It was not possible
to spend all the funds budgeted for research and development,
this being primarily due to the lack of engineers with relevant
experience, because everyone is kept busy with order execution,
For further details, please see the description of research and
development activities on pages 40 - 41,

Earnings before non-recurring items, depreciation and amorti-
sation {EBITDA) amounted to DKK 2,100m (2006: DKK 966m)
which represents and EBITDA ratio of 10.5% (2006: 7.8%).

In 2007, the effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V
Pracess amounted to DKK -143m in the form of amortisation

of intangible assets and special non-recurring items relating to
inventory.

The net amount of special non-recurring items was DKK ém in
2007 (2006: DKK -13m) including DKK -63m deriving from GL&V
Process as mentioned above. In addition, a profit of DKK 79m from
the sale of Densit was realised.

Total depreciation and amortisations amounted to DKK 282m in
2007 (2006: DKK 178m) including DKK 80m related to purchase
price allocations regarding GL&V Process.

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT} amounted to DKK 1,824m
in 2007 (2006: DKK 775m) which represents an EBIT ratio of
9.1% {(2006: 6.3%).

The improved EBIT ratio reflects positive turnover and earnings
growth in all business segments.
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In Cement, the 2007 earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)
amounted to DKK 1,084m (2006: DKK 437m) which means an
EBIT ratio of 8.9% (2006: 5.7%).

In Minerals, the 2007 earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)
amounted to DKK 553m (2006 DKK 258m} which means an
EBIT ratio of 8.6% (2006: 7.9%). Before the effect of purchase
price allocations regarding GL&V Process, the EBIT result amount-
ed to DKK 696m corresponding 1o an EBIT ratic of 10.8%.

In Cembrit, the 2007 earnings befare interest and tax (EBIT)
amounted to DKK 124m (2006: DKK 81m) which means an
EBIT ratio of 8.7% (2006: 6.7%).

Net financial earnings in 2007 amounted to DKK 53m (2006:
DKK 149m). With the acquisition of GL&VY Process on 10 August
2007 the Group’s financial position changed from having net
interest-bearing receivables of DKK 2,541m at 30 June 2007 to
net interest-bearing debt of DKK 1,583m at 31 December 2007,

Earnings before tax (EBT) amounted to DKK 1,877m (2006:
DKK 924m), which means an EBT ratio of 9.4% (2006: 7.5%).

Tax for the year amounted to DKK 584m (2006: DKK -183m
(income)) corresponding to an effective tax rate of 31% {2006:
26% before recognition of previously non-recognised tax assets).
The tax is adversely affected by the fact that the value of this
year's capitalised Danish tax asset dropped by around DKK 64m
due to a reduction in the Danish corporation tax rate from 28%
to 25%.

Corporation taxes paid in 2007 amounted to DKK 399m
(2006: DKK 172m), correspanding to a payable tax rate of
21% (2006: 19%).

Mgaterialks handing is
another of FLSmidth’s core
competencies. Pictured
here a conveyor and a
Dumping station.

The profit far the year of the continuing activities amounted to
DKK 1,293m (2006; DKK 1,107m}, corresponding to earnings
per share of DKK 24.6 {2006: DKK 21.7). Before the effect of
purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process the earnings
per share were DKK 26.4.

Consolidated results

DKKm 2006 2007  ¢hange (%)

Order backlog 18,264 25,312 39%

Order intake 18,534 24,067 30%
Projects 15,041 18,892 6%
Customer Services 3,493 5,169 48%

Turnover 12311 19,967 62%
Projects 7,978 14,470 81%
Customner Services 2,973 3,929 2%
Cembrit 1,216 1,414 17%
Other 144 149 3%

EBIMDA 966 2,100 1M7%

EBITDA ratio 7.8% 10.5%

EBIT s 1.824 135%

EBIT ratio 6.3% 9.1%

CFFO 1,282 1,493 16%

Changes in major balance sheet items

The balance sheet total had risen to DKK 19,672m at the end of
2007 from DKK 12,251m at the end of 2006. The balance sheat
total reflects the general high level of activity in the Group and
the acquisition of companies and activities in 2007 {GL&V Proc-
ess {Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers), KOCH Transport-
technik, RAHCO International Inc.).

Hundreds of kiometres of
cables run through a cement
plant. Here an electrician is
finishung 2 smalf part of the
instaliation work.



Leading expansion through R&D

Moving from Global Manager in ¢charge of R&D for Cement,
to Director of R&D, Minerals is exciting for Gary Ray, A 19-
year industry veteran with experience in international client
relations, Gary happily describes himself as an ambassador,
with exciting chalfenges ahead including creating a new R&D
division and leading collaborations across the Cement and
Mineral organisations. Enthusiastic about the future, Gary

is firm in his commitment to supplying better technical and
value enhancing solutions to the customers.

Gary Roy - Global Director of RED, Minerals
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Further details regarding acquisitions are given in note 13 to the
consofidated accounts, which states purchase price aliocations.
1t should be noted that the purchase price allocations regarding
GL&V Process are not yet final. However, no major changes in
the present allocations are expected.

Assets

Long-term assets amounted to DKK 7,799m at 31 December
2007 (31 December 2006: DKK 2,355m). The increase on last
year's figure mainly consists of consolidation of companies
acquired, leading to a substantial rise in notably intangible
assets to DKK 5,425m (2006: DKK 309m). Short-term assets
amounted to DKK 11,873m at the end of 2007 (end of 2006:
DKK 9,896m). The change in 2007 is primarily due to increasing
work-in-progress for third parties and increasing trade debtors
attributable to the higher order backlog and the acquisition of
GL&V Process. In the wake of the acquisition of GL&V Process,
cash funds, however, fell to DKK 957m from DKK 2,766m at
31 December 2006.

Liabilities

At the end of 2007, liabilities amounted to DKK 15,458m

(end of 2006: DKK 9,059m). This increase is mainly due to the
consolidation of GL&V Process and higher bank debt following
the acquisition, and to the increasing prepayments from custom-
ers and increasing work-in-progress for third parties.

Shareholders’ equity

The consolidated shareholders’ equity at the end of 2007
amounted to DKK 4,214m (end of 2006: DKK 3,192m), repre-
senting an equity ratio of 21% (2006: 26%). The equity ratio
fell in 2007 due to the higher balance sheet total. The return on
equity in 2007 was 35% (2006: 39%).

Development in cash flow in 2007
Cash flow from operating activities amounted to DKK 1,493m
in 2007 (2006: DKK 1,288m).

Raw material blending and mil systams at new FLSmiGth coment plant in
the Middle East with a capacily of 7,500 tonnes per day.

Both in 2006 and 2007, the cash flow positively reflected large
prepayments on an increasing number of new projects. In major
cement projects prepayments typically account for around
15-25% of the contract value, the remaining payments being
covered through letters of credit. As the project progresses,
additional milestone payments are received so that the net cash
flow is generally positive from the project begins untif it ends.

During periods like the present when the order backlog is
growing, the cash flow from operating activities in the project
business temporarily benefit from increasing prepayments - the
opposite being the case during periods of declining order back-
log. In 2007, prepayments received from customers amounted
to DKK 3.5bn (2006: DKK 2.8bn).

Cash flow and funds tied up in Minerals and in the product
companies in general, aa well as in Cembrit reflect more the pat-
tern of a wraditional production company in which tied-up capital
increases in periods of rising activity as was the case in 2007.
Minerals, however, is increasingly receiving prepayments from
customers in connection with major projects, which had a posi-
tive effect on the cash flow from operating activities in 2007.

As a consequence of the large prepayments in Cement, the work-
ing capital has been negative during the last one to two years,
but after the acquisition of GL&V Process it is now positive and
amounted to DKK 665m at the end of 2007 (2006: DKK -435m).
Within the respective business segments, the working capital at
the end of 2007 amounted to: Cement: DKK -736m {2006: DKK
-617m), Minerals DKK 1,028m (2006: DKK 28m) and Cembrit
DKK 226m (2006: DKK 197m). The increase in working capital

in Minerals mainly reflects organic growth and the acquisition of
GL&V Process.

Cash flow from investing activities amounted to DKK -3,813m in
2007 (2006: DKK -387m). Acquisition and disposal of activities
and companies amounted to DKK -3,409m (2006:; DKK -190m)



and mainly consists of the acquisition of GL&Y Process and the
acquisition of RAHCO International Inc. and KOCH Transport-
technik, Acquisition of tangible assets amounted to DKK -386m
in 2007 (2006: DKK -249m). As a result of the general expansion
of capacity at all the Group’s production plants and the exten-
sion of the recently inaugurated office facilities in India (FLS-
midth House), acquisition of tangible assets was high in 2007,
Cash flow from operating and investing activities amounted to a
total of DKK -2,320m in 2007 (2006: DKK 901m). Net interest-
hearing debt amounted to DKK 1,583m at the end 2007 (end of
2006: net interest-bearing receivables DKK 2,847m).

Prospects for 2008

* Sustained favourable business cycles and a continued high
level of activity are expected for 2008

In 2008, FLSmidth & Co. expects a consolidated turnover

of approx. DKK 26bn, earnings before non-recurring items,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA} of DKK 2.9-3.0bn,
earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) of DKK 2.4-2.5bn and
earnings before tax (EBT) of DKK 2.3-2.4bn

The effect of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Proc-
ess in 2008 amounts 1o some DKK -270m, which is included in
the expectations mentioned above

FLSmidth & Co. expects an EBIT result before the effect

of purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process of
approximately DKK 2.7-2.8bn in 2008

Cash flow from operating activities is expected to be around
DKK 1.2bn in 2008

Cash flow from investing activities {exclusive of acquisitions) is
expected to be around DKK 700m. This amount includes the
expansion of production capacity in Cembrit at approximately
DKK 175m

= 2008 is expected to see an effective tax percentage in the
range of 30%. The tax percentage payable, however, is
expected to be slightly lower

For the individual business segments, the prospects for 2008
are as follows:

»

Cement Turnover approx, DXK 13.5bn EBIT ratio approx, 5-10%

Minerals  Turnover approx. DKK $1.5bn EBIT ratio approx. 11-12%*

Cembrit  Turnover approx. CKK t.S5bn EBIT ratio approx, 9%

* {exclusive of the effect of purchase price allocations of approx.
DKK -270m)

The prospects for 2008 in Cement assume an unchanged
market share and a total global market for new contracted
cement kiln capacity of 100-125m tonnes per year {exclusive
of China), which is tantamount to an unchanged high level
of demand

Risks in connection with the earnings for 2008 are primarily
related to the execution of the considerable order backlog.
When executing orders, especially late delivery and poorer

quality of supplies than agreed with subsuppliers may cause
FLSmidth & Co. extra costs. For a more detailed description of
risks, please see pages 38-39

Long-term growth and earnings prospects

2009 is expected to see a continuation of the favourable business
cycles and high level of activity, and the turnover is expected to
rise compared to 2008 in all business segments. The effect of
purchase price allocations regarding GL&V Process in 2009 and
onwards is expected to be around DKX -100m per year in the
form of amortisation of intangible assets.

In the longer term, earnings from Minerals and the Customer
Services will account for a larger part of the Group’s total earn-
ings, which will cushion the effect of any cyclical market fluc-
tuations in Cement. Against this background, the Group expects
its EBIT ratio to be 10-12% in periods of high activity and only
slightly below that level in periods of low activity.

In the longer term, investments exclusive of acquisitions are
expected to total sorme DKK 400m per year.

Capital structure and dividend

The Board of Directors will propose at the Annual General Meet-
ing that a dividend of DKK 7 per share be distributed, correspond-
ing to 29% of the profit for the year. It is the general objective of
FLSmidth & Co. to ensure a capital structure where the financial
net debt must be one to three times EBITDA. The financial net
debt is defined as net interest bearing debt adjusted for outstand-
ing guarantees. As at 31 December 2007, the financial net debt
was DKK 7,988m (31 December 2006: DKK 1,776m) correspond-
ing to 3.8 times EBITDA (31 December 2006: 1.9), which means
that, temporarily, the objective for financial gearing has not been
futfilled due to the acquisition of GL&V Process. During 2008,
however, it is expected that this objective will again be fulfilled. In
the longer term, the aim is also to achieve an equity ratio in the
range of 30% (end of 2007: 21%).

Own shares

FLSmidth & Co.’s holding of own shares at 31 December 2007
totalled 844,486 representing 1.6% of the share capita!

(31 December 2006: 1,062,092).

Incentive plan

As at 31 December 2007, there were a total of 528,702 unexer-
cised share options, and the fair value of them was DKK 171m.
The fair value is calculated by means of a Black-Scholes madel
based on a current share price of 522, a volatility of 32.61%
and a risk free interest rate of 4.4%. The earnings impact in
2007 was DKK 10m (2006: DKK 7m). Please see note 7 for
further information.
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Strategic focus areas

Favourable market conditions have led to a historically high order
backlog, which means that there is particular focus on order
execution.

A significant strategic focus area for the FLSmidth Board and
Management is to reduce the Group's exposure to cyclical
mavements in the demand for new cement capacity. This has
led 1o the strategic decision to balance the Cement and Minerals
activities and increase the Customer Services business.

Increasing activity in Minerals

On 10 August 2007, the FLSmidth Group acquired the process
business of GL&V, a Canadian company, which comprised the
companies Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers, The total
acquisition price was DKK 5.0bn. The acquisition of these com-
panies fulfils the FESmidth Group's strategic goal to strengthen
the minerals business. FLSmidth Minerals has traditionally been
an expert in crushing, grinding, materials handling and pyro
technologies, whilst Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers
have specialised in the downstream separation processes. The
acquisition also adds over 1,000 competent staff to the FLSmidth
organisation and strengthens its presence in several countries.
FLSmidth Minerals, Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers thus
complement one another both technologically, geographically
and culturally.

The integration of Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers into
FLSmidth Minerals has tap priority and is progressing according
to plan.

Effective 1 January 2007, the FLSmidth Group acquired KOCH
Transporttechnik which is a world leader in materials handling
systems for various industries and the worldwide market leader
in pipe conveyors.

1]
T s instafiatior of FLSmidth

a‘gi cament mill wath; Fiftax filters
(left} and cement kiln (right)

As at 2 April 2007, the FLSmidth Group also acquired the
materials handling activities of US-based RAHCO International,
Inc. which is the world's leading supplier of mabile materials
handling systems that represent an economic alternative to tradi-
tional mining metods.

The acquisition of RAHC O International Inc. and of KOCH Trans-
porttechnik positions FLSmidth Minerals as a global leader in
materials handling systems for the minerals industry,

Increasing activity in Customer Services

Customer Services serves its customers in the cement and miner-
als industries as a lifelong partner. This entails customer support
before, during and after establishing new plants - from the initial
feasibility study, through installation, staff training and commis-
sioning, to the subsequent operation, maintenance and optimi-
sation of the facility. Customer Services activities include:

.

Feasibility studies
Mechanical, electrical and process services
Troubleshooting

.

Auditing and upgrading of existing praduction facilities
Materials handling solutions

Handling and firing of alternative fuels

Installation and commissioning

Modernisation and upgrading projects

« Wear parts and critical spare parts

Training of customer personnel

Operation and maintenance contracts (O&M)

Due to the buoyant demand for both cement and minerals
worldwide, many existing production facilities are currently
operating at full capacity, which increases the risk of overtoading
and unexpected breakdowns. Locally, there is therefore a great
demand for spare parts and services for most of the FLSmidth



Group’s products, and the strategy is to have local centres and
representative offices that can provide the best possible cus-
tomer support.

There is also a general trend among customers to focus an “total
cost of ownership” which means taking into account not only the
initiat plant investment, but also the subsequent running costs.
The customers are increasingly asking for assistance with conver-
sion, optimisation and expansion projects for existing facilities
which may make them more competitive in terms of more stable
production and higher availability as well as lower energy, cper-
ating and maintenance costs.

Long-term contracts under which FLSmidth takes responsibifity
for the day-to-day maintenance and operation of machinery and
buildings at cement and minerals plants is a relatively new facus
area for Customer Services, Minerals is at present responsible for
the maintenance of two copper processing plants in Chile and
based on a recent contract extension, the company expects to
he well placed to sign similar contracts in the future. In Cement
a parallel concept for the operation and maintenance of cement
facilities has been developed, which resulted in the signing of
the first five-year contract in September 2007,

The aim is to grow the Cement Services turnover in both Cement
and Minerals by 10-15% per year. As a consequence, a focused
effort is being made to develop new service concepts and prod-
ucts tailored to customers’ needs.

Optimising the business model
Efforts are being made on several fronts to optimise the Group's
competitive strength and business model.

Research and development continues to have high priority with a
view to maintaining a technological edge on the competition.

Using the LEAN concept, a structured effort is being made to
reduce the Group’s lead times, initially in Cement. The aim in
the longer term is to shorten the total duration of a typical ce-
ment project by one third. This means shorter delivery times for
customers and less time consumption and fewer internal costs.
The first results of this work were documented by the end of
2007, where the planning phase for all new cement projects
was reduced by one month.

An ongoing effert is being made to identify and check the
quality of new suppliers in low-cost countries to strengthen
the Group's competitive position, About 20% of the Group's
sourcing is today from low-cost countries. The aim is to increase
sourcing from low-cost countries in the coming years as it be-
comes viable and without compremising high product quality.

In 2007, a centralised function was established with overall
responsibility for strategic procurement. Among the results
achieved in this field during 2007 have been the reservation of
production slots for critical components in 2009 and 2010 at
selected vendors and in some cases co-financing by FLSmidth of
capacity expansion projects at strategically important suppliers
through prepayments.

Increasing engineering in India

it is the objective to continuously build up the staff in India to
ensure a sufficient basis for recruitment and maintain a competi-
tive cost structure. The engineering operations in India have

thus grown to a level of 1,991 permanent employees by the end
of 2007, which marks a 44% increase on 31 December 2006
(1,386). A brand new office building, FLSmidth House, which can
accommaodate the many new employees in Cement and Minerals
was inaugurated in Chennai in 2007.

-~
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Global integration

As Cement and Minerals become more balanced in size and the
Minerals business focuses more on projects and solutions, the
two are becoming comparable business activities which to a
large extent apply the same basic technologies, knowledge and
resources. The aim in the longer term is therefore to strengthen
the focus on integrating the Cement and Minerals activities to
enhance utilisation of resources and knowledge sharing. In line
with this development, the Minerals business in the spring of
2007 changed its name from FFE Minerals to FLSmidth Minerals
and the FLSmidth name and logo is now part of all Cement and
Minerals companies’ identity.

Over the next three years, FLSmidth will invest a major sum in a
new, integrated and optimised global IT platform which will en-
sure that all Cement and Minerals entities will eventually operate
from the same basis and with the same systerns where relevant.

Divestment of non-core businesses

In 2007, FLSmidth & Co. sold the last remaining activities
outside the three overall business areas: Cement, Minerals and
Cembrit. Maag Gear's marine and turbo gear business was sold
to RENK AG, a German gear manufacturer, by the end of April
and Densit was sold to lllinois Tool Works of the US by the end
of October 2007.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date
After the balance sheet date FLSmidth & Co. has anncunced
several new orders:

2 January 2008: FLSmidth signs a contract for equipment and
engineering supplies valued at appromimately DKK 475m for
a new Russian cement plant with a capacity of 3,500 tonnes
clinker per day. The plant will be situated near the city of Kursk,
some 700 km south of Moscow.

Checking some
instaliation detaik.

9 lanuary 2008: FLSmidth wins a contract with the CRH Group,
Ireland valued at approximately DKK 300m (EUR 40m) for
machinery supplies for the expansion of a cement production
line at the Grupa Ozarow cement plant in Poland, about 160 km
south of Warsaw.

17 January 2008: FLSmidth signs a contract with a Russian com-
pany for machinery supplies for a new cement clinker production
line with a capacity of 5,500 tonnas per day. The line will be built
at an existing cement plant in Russia. The value of the contract is
close ta DKK 485em (slightly more than EUR 65m).

31 January 2008: FLSmidth Minerals signs contracts with the
Chilean company Antofagasta Minerals 5.A. valued at USD 50m
{some DKK 257m). The contracts comprise supplies of crushing
and grinding equipment for the production of copper, gold and
molybdenum at the customer's Esperanza facility 150 km north
of Antofagasta in Chile.

14 February 2008: FLSmidth Minerals signs DKK 785m contract
with Aurox Resources Limited for a complete minerals plant and
related port facilities for the treatment of magnetite iron ore in
Australia.

Besides, in January 2008 FLSmidth & Co. issued two announce-
ments due to publicity concerning potentially new contracts.
According to the FLSmidth & Co. policy for announcing new
contracts, contracts valued at more than DKK 200m are an-

nounced once the order becomes effective. This includes signing
of the contract by both parties and exchange of guarantees plus
prepayment by the customer.

An FLSmidth Automation
ECS control centre works
mound the tiock at imore
than 500 cement plants
worldwide.



Statement by the Board and Management on the Annual Report

We have today reviewed and adopted the Annual Report of
FLSmidth & Co. A/S for the financial year 1 January to 31 Decem-
ber 2007. The Annual Report is presented in confarmity with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, which are approved
by EU, and additional Danish disclosure requirements for annual
reports of listed companies including the requirements of OMX
Nordic Exchange Copenhagen for presenting the accounts.

Copenhagen, 28 February 2008

Corporate Management  Jargen Huno Rasmussen

Group CEQ

Board of Directors lergen Worning

Chairman

Frank Lund

Seren Vinther

The independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of FLSmidth & Co. A/S

We have audited the FESmidth & Co. A/S Annual Report for the
financial year 1 January to 31 December 2007 consisting of the
Statement by the Board and Management on the Annua! Report,
the Management's review, the Profit and loss account, the Balance
sheet, the Statement of the equity, the Cash flow statement and
the notes, including the Accounting policies. The Annual Report is
presented in conformity with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, which are approved by £U, and additional Danish disclo-
sure requirements for annual reports of listed companies.

The responsibility of the Board and Management for
the Annual Report

The Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for
preparing and presenting an Annual Report which gives a true and
fair view in conformity with the International Reporting Standards as
approved by the EU and with additional Danish disclosure require-
ments for annual reports of listed companies, This responsibility
includes planning, implementing and maintaining internal controls
that are relevant for the preparation and presentation of an annual
report which gives a true and fair view free of material misstate-
ments, regardless of whether such misstatements are due to fraud
or errors, as well as choice and adoption of appropriate account-
ing policies and accounting estimates which are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility and the audit performed

Qur responsibility is to present a conclusion on the Annual Report
based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance
with Danish and international auditing standards. These standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

Copenhagen, 28 February 2008

Deloitte
Statsautoriseret Revisionsaktieselskab

Poul Erik Tofte
Group Executive
Vice President (CFO)

Jens S. Stephensen
Vice Chairman

Jesper Ovesen

Erik Holst Jargensen
State authorised public accountant

We consider the accounting policies appropriate in order to give a
true and fair view of the Group’s and the parent company’s assets
and liabilities and financial standing as of 31 December 2007 and
of the financial results of the Group’s and the parent company's
activities and their cash flows for the financial year 1 January to
31 December 2007. We submit the Annual Report for approval by
the Company in general meeting.

Bjarne Moltke Hansen
Group Executive
Vice President

Christian Jepsen
Group Executive
Vice President

Jens Palle Andersen Torkil Bentzen

Johannes Poulsen Bo Steffensen

conduct the audit to obtain a high degree of certainty that the An-
nual Report is free of material misstatements, An audit comprises
procedures to obtain audit evidence for the amounts and informa-
tion stated in the Annual Report. The procedures chosen depend
on the auditor’s judgement including an assessment of the risk of
material misstatements in the Annual Report, regardless of whether
such misstatements are due to fraud or errors. In assessing the risk,
the auditor shall consider internal controls that are refevant for the
Company to prepare and present an Annual Report which gives a
true and fair view for the purpose of planning auditing procedures
that are suitable in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the efficiency of the Company’s internal
controd. An audit also includes a statement of opinion on whether
the accounting policies adopted by the Board of Directors and Man-
agement are appropriate, whether the accounting estimates made
by the Board of Directors and Management are reasonable as well
as an evaluation of the overall presentation of the Annual Report.
In our opinion the audit evidence is sufficient and suitable as a basis
for our conclusion.

Our audit did not give rise to qualifications.

Conclusion

In our opinion the Annual Report gives a true and fair view of the
assets and liabilities of the Group and parent company and their
financial position at 31 December 2007 as well as the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the financial year 1 January
to 31 December 2007 in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as approved by the EU and additionat Dan-

ish disclosure requirements regarding the annual reports of listed
companies.

Anders Dons
State authorised public accountant



Group Board and Management

Board of Directors

1 Bo Steffensen
Employee-elected member of the
Board of Directors since 2006, age
46, engineer, Chief Lean officer.
Shareholding in FLSmidth & Co. A/S:
199 shares.

2 Johannes Poulsen

Member of the Board of Directors
elected at the General Meeting
since 2002, age 65, MSc {Econ.
and Bus.Adm.), CEC of BUUR
INVEST ASS.

Executive posts: Chairman of

the Boards of Directors of Wind
Power Invest ApS and Global
wind Power A/S. Chairman of the
Supervisory Boards of the Danish
International Investment Funds
IFU, 10 and IFV. Vice Chairman of
the Boards of Directors of Eksport
Kredit Finansiering A/S, £xtend
Reach Corporation A/S and
Bukkehave A/S.

Member of the Boards of Directors
ot AXCEL Industriinvestor ASS,
AXCEL | A/S, Bernhard Lauritsen
Tarm A/S, VM Tarm ASS, A/S D.TR,
Dantherm A/5, the Export Credit
Fund, JP/Palitikens Hus A/S,
Frandsen Lighting AJS, Frandsen
Lighting Holding A/S, VerPan

ApS, Skjern Papirfabrik A/S and
S5.P. Holding A/S. Shareholding in
FLSmidth & Ca. A/S: 0 shares,

3 Jesper Ovesen

Member of the Board of Directors
elected at the General Meeting
since 2005, age 50, State-author-
ised public accountant, Senior
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of TDC ASS.
Executive posts: Member of

the Board of Directors of
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken.
Shareholding in FLSmidth & Co. AfS:
330 shares.

4 Torkll Bentzen

Member of the Board of Directors
elected at the Genesal Meeting
since 2002, age 61, MS¢
(engineering).

Executive posts: Chatrman of the
Boards of Directors of Burmeister
& Wain Scandinavian Contractor
ASS, EUDP (Energy Development
Demonstration Pragramme) and
Klimakonsortiet (the Climate Con-
sortium), Vice Chairman of Narvik
Energi A/S, Norway and Statens ag
Komrmunernes indkebsservice A/S.
Member of the Boards of Direc-

tors of Mesco Denmark A/S and
Siemens Aktieselskab, Denmark.
Member of the Remuneration
Committee. Shareholding in
FLSmidth & Co. A/S: 600 shares.

5 Jergen Worning

Chairrnan of the Board of
Directors since 2002, age 67,
MS¢ {engineering).

Executive posts: Chairman of

the Board of Directors of Bang

& Olufsen ASS, Alk-Abelld ASS.
Member of the Remuneration
Committee. Shareholding in
FLSmidth & Co, A/S: 14.420 shares.

& Jens S. Stephensen

Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors since 2002, age 65,
MSc {engineering).

Executive posts: Chairman of the
Boards of Directors of Bornholms-
Trafikken A/S, Algoma Tankers
(Denmark) A/S, Holm & Grut AfS,
Avenue Teatret and Danish Airlease
ApS. Member of the Board of Direc-
tors of the hedge fund Mermaid
Nordic and Nordic Ferey Service A/S.
Member of the Remuneration
Committee. Sharehalding in

FLSmidth & Co. A/S: 142.800 shares.

7 Soren Vinther

Member of the Board of Directors
elected at the General Meeting
since 2005, age 64, mechanical
engineer, DiplBus. Admin,
Executive posts: Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Weiss A/S.
Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of A/S De Smithske/
Desmi, Member of the Board of
Directors of Aalborg Portland ASS.
Shareholding in FLSmidth & Co, A/S:
411 shares.

8 Frank Lund

Employee-elected member of the
Board of Directors since 2006, age
46, MS¢ Elec.Eng,, Grad.Dipl EBA,
Service sales engineer. Sharehold-
ing in FLSmidih & Co. A/S; 32
shares.

9 Jens Palle Andersen
Employee-etected member of the
Board of Directors since 2006,
age 58, BSc Elec.Eng., Project
Manager, Power & Drives. Share-
holding in FLSmidth & Co, A/S;
656 shares.



Management:

1 Jorgen Huno Rasmussen
Group Chief Executive Officer
of FLSmidth & Co. ASS since
January 2004, age 55, MS¢
(engineering), Dipk.Bus. Admin.
and PhD {Techn.5¢.}.

Executive posts: Member of
the Boards of Directors of
Vestas Wind Systems A/S and
SCION-DTU ASS.

Member of the Boards of
Representatives of Tryg smba i
Danmark, the Industrial Employers
in Copenhagen and the Council
of the Confederation of Danish
Industries.

2 Christian Jepsen

Group Executive Vice President

in FLSmidth & Co. ASS since
October 2005. President and
CED of FLSmidth Inc. USA and
overall responsible for the Group’s
Minerals activities. Age 49, M5c
{Econ. and Bus.Admin.).

Executive posts: Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Industrial
Automation Group ASS.

3 Blarne Moltke Hansen

Group Executive Vice President of
FLSmidth & Co. A/S since August
2002 with overall responsibility for
the FLSmidth product companies
and Customer Services in Cement,
age 46, BSc {engineering).
Executive posts: Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors of GEC.
Member of the Board of Directors
of Dreisler Invest A/SS.

4 Poul Erik Tofte

Group Executive Vice President
and CFO of FLSmidth & Co. A/S
since January 2003, age 51,
MSc (Econ.) and Dipl.Bus.Admin.
Executive posts: Member of

the Board of Directors of Dansk
Kapitalanlzg.
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Cement

At the construction site of a new FLSmidth cement plant in the Middle Fast
the final toushes are being put to the cement dinker wios,

Description of business

For the past 125 years, FLSmidth has been the leading supplier
of complete production plants, equipment, machines, spare
parts, know-how, service and maintenance to the global cement
industry. The major cement projects are handled by the four
FLSmidth Project Divisions which each cover their particular
geographical region. Each project division has its own sales and
proposal, procurement and project processing function, In addi-
tion, each division has its own engineesing department responsible
for overall planning and design of cement plant projects. Two
project divisions are placed at FLSmidth's main office in Valby,
Denmark, one project division is located in Bethlehem, Pennsyl-
vania, USA, as part of FLSmidth's American subsidiary, and one
praject division in Chennai, India as part of FLSmidth's Indian
subsidiary.

Global responsibility for technology, development and new
design of the Group's key machinery is concentrated in a global
arganisation, Technical Division, to ensure that all projects world-
wide maintain a consistent and high technological standard. The
engineering work is carried out geographically in the Technical
Division's three centres in Valby, Bethleher and Chennai through
a common IT platform. Specialist equipment and related services
for the cement projects are supplied by the product companies
Plister, Ventomatic and Maag Gear.

Specialised elements of cement projects and minor modification
projects are provided by other FLSmidth divisions, which also
market their products and services direct to the cement and min-
erals industries, These divisions are FLSmidth Customer Services,
FLSmidth Automation and FLSmidth Airtech.

Besides, FLSmidth MVT, which is a subsidiary organised within
Minerals, supplies materials handling systems to the minerals and
cement industries.

Most of the actual manufacturing of machinery and equipment
is outsourced to subsuppliers. FLSmidth has its own manufactur-
ing plant in Manheim, USA and a foundry in Chennai, India for
the production of spare parts and a large 12,000 m? machine
shop in Qingdao, China for the production of key components.
Besides, Pfister has production facilities in Germany, Ventomatic
in ltaly and Maag Gear in Poland.

Demand for cement and cement production
capacity

Cement produced by means of modern technology is a relatively
homogeneous product with the price and the cement quality
being two important sales parameters. It is also a heavy and
voluminous product which is expensive to transport — especially
by land. Generally speaking, it is therefore not profitable 1o
transport cement by land over longer distances than 200 km.
This means that cement preduction is to & large extent a local
or a regional business. One exception is cement plants located
in connection with port terminals from which transport can take
place by ship. Freight rates therefore play an important role for
the profitability of importing and exporting cement.

FLSmidth’s targeted market is machinery, equipment and Cus-
torner Services for the global cement industry, primarily outside
China, as over the last decade, the Chinese market has in fact
only been accessible for western suppliers providing a number
of niches of advanced machine types.

Historically, there is a clear connection between general economic
development and cement consumption, Over the past twenty
years, global cement consumption has on average increased by
a factor of 1.2 times global economic real growth. With long-
term global real growth outside China expected to be around
3-4%, multiplying this figure by a factor of 1.2 means that the



Alternative ideas for a cleaner future

Also known as ‘Dr NOX', Lars Skaarup Jensen has a great deal
of knowledge on emissions. Influenced by his university profes-
sor, Lars first came into contact with FLSmidth as a research
student, Driven by the urge to unite knowledge and technol-
oy to achieve profitable goals, Lars wanted to do something
that made a difference in the world and had values that made
sense to him. Today, Lars is leading a team of innovative
professionals who are the first to provide complete solutions
in alternative fuels within the cement industry. “We have

to address future needs,” he explains. *And the future starts
now.”

Lars Skaarup Jensen - Manager, Afternative Fuels
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corning years are likely to see an estimated growth in global ce-
ment consumption of 3.6-4.8%. It is expected that this growth
will primarily take place in developing countries.

It is a cyclical market in which the investment climate among
cement producers depends on local and regional supply and
demand. Typically, cement capacity within a country will be
expanded if cement consumption exceeds the local produc-
tion capacity and it is not considered profitable to compensate
for the lack of production by means of imports. Over time, the
development in new capacity will follow the underlying increase
in demand for cement, but whilst the underlying cement con-
sumption develops continuously, the addition of new capacity
happens incrementally,

With the expected growth in global cement consumption outside
China being approximately 3.6-4.8% times the estimated global
cement consumption, which is around 1.4bn tonnes, a minimum
addition of approximately 50-65 million tonnes per year of new
cement capacity outside China is necessary to match the growth
in the underlying consumption. Besides, there is an ongoing
need for upgrading and modernisation of already existing pro-
duction capacity. Some regions have a very high proportion of
old and cutdated technology which will need gradual replace-
ment by new and modern technology. A conservative estimate
of the need for replacement of old technology with new and
modern technology is around 10m tonnes per year which gives
a total annual expected demand for 60 - 75m tonnes per year.

The global market for new contracted cement kiln capacity
(exclusive of China) amounted to 125m tonnes per year in 2007,

Developments in turnover and EBIT ratio
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Financial results for 2007

In 2007, FLSmidth posted an overall turnover within Cement of
DKK 12,210m {2006: DKK 7,683m) and earnings before interest
and tax {EBIT) of DKK 1,084m (2006: DKK 437m), corresponding
to an EBIT ratio of 8.9% (2006: 5.7%). The turnover deriving
from Customer Services (spare parts and services) amounted to
DKK 2,380m (2006: DKK 2,020m;) corresponding to 19% of the
total turnover (2006: 26%) and a growth rate of 18% compared
to 2006.

The total order intake amounted to DKK 15,789m in 2007,
which represents an increase of 25% compared to 2006
{2006: DKK 12,649m). Order intake from Customer Serv-

ices amounted to DKK 3,323m in 2007, which represents an
in¢rease of 37% on 2006 (2006: DKK 2,421m). The order
backlog amounted to DKK 17,265m by the end of 2007, which
represents an increase of 28% compared to 2006 (2006: DKK
13,531m).

CEMENT
DKKm 2006 2007 Change
(%)
Orcer backlog 13,531 17,265 28%
Order Intake 12,649 15,783 25%
projects 10,228 12,466 22%
aftermarket 2,42t 3,323 37%
Turnover 7.683 12,270 59%
projects 5,663 9,830 74%
aftermarket 2,020 2,380 18%
EBITDA 534 1,215 128%
EBITDA ratio 7.0% 10.0%
EBIT 437 1,084 148%
EBiT-ratic 5.7% 8.9%
CFFO 667 1,184 78%

Geographical breakdown of turnover
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2007 saw a high level of activity in all the companies and their
geographical units. Due to delivery times being up to two to
three years the increase in order volume over the past one to
two years is only to a limited extent reflected in the turnover.
The order backlog compared to turnover (Book-to-bill ratio}
amounted to 1.4 at the end of 2007 (at the end of 2006:1.8).

Prospects for 2008 - 2009

In 2008, turnover in Cement is expected to reach approximately
DKK 13.5bn with an EBIT ratio of 9-10%. The global market for
new contracted cement kiln capacity outside China is expected to
amount to 100-125m tonnes per year in 2008, corresponding to
unchanged high demand.

in 2009, turnover and EBIT ratio in the Cement segment is ex-
pected to be higher than in 2008.

Future outlook

Overall, the demand for equipment for the cement industry is
expected to remain at a historically high level in the coming two
1o three years, due to high economic growth in a number of
developed countries. In the longer term, the demand for cement
kiln capacity is expected to reach an anticipated future sustain-
able volume of approximately 60-75m tonnes per year, which is
twice the average of the previous decades.

The development in demand for new contracted kiln capacity is
used as an indicator of the development in the overall demand
for equipment and services for the global cement industry. The
kitn system, however, which includes preheater/calciner, kiln and
cooler accounts only for around 25% of the value of a cement
production line and in addition the lifetime of a kiln is generally
longer than the other equipment due to a low level of wear. The

Indexed development in order intake in Cement
(Basis year 1999)

400 +
350 4
300 1+
%0 +
200 +

100 +
50 +

L " L L

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 1006 2007

wne Order intake (Kiln capacity) s Order intake (Value DKK)

demand for other equipment and services, spare parts, moderni-
sation and upgrade projects, expansion of bottlenecks, etc. does
not necessarily follow the same demand curve.

This means that the development in demand for cement kiln
capacity is only an indicator of the overall capital investments in
the cement industry.

Besides, there are large differences in the turnover of an order

for the same kiln capacity between different regions. The aver-

age order volume for example is relatively low in India, whereas
the opposite is the case in more developed econamies.

These are some of the major reasons why the development in
the realised order intake in DKK does not follow the same de-
velopment as the order intake measured in kiln capacity (million
tonnes per year), neither when going up nor when going down.
This is illustrated by the curves below showing the indexed
development in FLSmidth’s order intake in cerment since 1999
measured in value (DKK) and kiln capacity {million tonnes per
year} respectively.

Market trends in 2007

In 2007, the market for new contracted cement kiln capacity
outside China amounted to 125 million tonnes per year. in 2007,
the demand for new capacity was more geographically diversi-
fied than in previcus years. This is due to the fact that growing
cement consumption and increasing demand for cement produc-
tion capacity in different regions are driven by various independ-
ent macroecenomic factors, including high oil and commeodity
prices, low interest rates, outsourcing of western production,
population growth, industrialisation and urbanisation. These
factors mean that purchasing power is shifting from the western

Historical trend in new kiln capacity (excl. China)
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industrial nations to the rest of the world. These countries are
seeing a rapid expansion of the middle class, which is the main
driver of their economic growth.

In 2007, the largest markets for new capacity were india, the
Middle East and Africa. In India, high economic growth means
increasing demand for cement for both infrastructure and com-
mercial and residential construction. In the Middle East and Africa
the demand for cement and new capacity is primarily driven by
high oil prices which resutt in high gross domestic product and
increasing cement consumption. The high oil prices are also the
primary driver behind the strong economic growth in Russia.

Activity in Europe has primarily been concentrated in Eastern
Europe, Spain and Ireland. In North America the demand for ce-
ment decreased in 2007 due to a slow-down in residential con-
struction. However, the demand for new cement capacity in USA
remains high, as around 20% of cement consumption is covered
by imports which have become less profitable due to high freight
rates and the low USD rate.

South America is seeing increasing economic growth as a result
of high commaodity prices and resulting increasing gross domestic
product in countries with significant mineral deposits. This has
resulted in a rise in cement consumption and demand for new
cement production capacity.

Among the customers, consalidation of the major cement
producers continued in 2007. In addition, these customers were
more active than previausly in adding new capacity to the mar-
ket. In 2007, the five major global cement producers accounted
for 16% of FLSmidth’s total order intake in Ceament (2006: 22%).

The cement producers are 1o a larger extent than previously
beginning to focus on “Total Cost of Ownership” which means
that not only the initial investment but also the total costs
incurred over the investment's fife time are taken into account.
Factors such as faster supply, lower energy consumption, higher
effective production time, lower emissions and lower main-
tenance costs, etc. are therefore impartant parameters in the
purchase decision process.

Competition

In 2007, FLSmidth’s market share was 29% exclusive of China in
terms of new contracted cement kiln ¢apacity. The competitive
situation is almost unchanged compared to 2006, FLSmidth being
the market leader.

Market shares 2007 based on global contracted kiln
capacity (excl. China)
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Strategic focus areas in Cement

Increasing activity in Customer Services

It is FLSmidth’s aim in the years ahead to increase turnover in
the Customer Services segment by 10-15% per year to create
stable and continuous earnings, which can reduce the expo-
sure to cyclic movements in the demand for new capacity. As a
consequence hereof, a focused effort is being made to develop
new business areas based on the customers’ needs. These
include complete solutions for the handling of alternative fuels
and operation and maintenance contracts, which are projects
initiated in 2006-2007 and where new contracts have already
been signed.

Shorter delivery times

By means of the LEAN concept a dedicated effort is being made
to reduce the Group’s delivery times. In the longer term, the aim
is to reduce the overall duration of a typical cement project by one
third. This means shorter delivery times for customers and less time
consumption and fewer internal costs. The first results of this work
were documented by the end of 2007, where the planning phase
for all new cement projects was reduced by one month.
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Operation and Maintenance Services
- providing the full solution

Stimuiation and new tasks are the elements Samir Idris looks
for in his work. “F'm always looking for a challenge. No two
days should be the same,” he says. An expert in building and
funning cement plants, Samir is using sales and marketing
rescurces to establish FESmidth as a leader in providing out-
sourced (&M services to the industry. FLSmidth's comprehen-
sive Design Build Operate approach supports customers during
the process of establishing a new cement plant and beyond.
“We offer a full solution based on knowledge and trust. We
never back down. That is our strength.”

Samir ldris - Business Manager, Operation and Maintenance
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Minerals

FLSmidth Minerals

FLSmidth Minerals offers a complete selection of engineered
products that can be applied to the various phases of min-

ing and ore processing activities such as underground mining
operations, minerals processing and treatment of mine wastes.
In addition, FLSmidth Minerals preducts handle all types of prod-
ucts including base metals, precious metals and other minerals
including limestone, coal and oil sands.

To successfully compete in today's challenging world economy,
customers require innovative solutions to make their plant
operating systems function at peak efficiency. Utilising the latest
in equipment technology, resources, and materials, FLSmidth
Minerals delivers solutions and equipment that meet the
customers’ needs.

Description of the business

By integrating the three companies (FLSmidth Minerals,
Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers) FLSmidth Minerals will
offer its customers a unique value proposition on afl fronts.

With the slogan ‘One partner - One source' it is the intent to
move FLSmidth Minerals from being a product supplier to also
becoming a solutions and systemns supplier within any given flow
sheet in the minerals processing industry supported by a world
class praduct range.

With the state-of-the-art products and services that reside within
FLSmidth Minerals, the company can configure complete flow-
sheet solutions based on proprietary technology. By taking advan-
tage of the significant amount of engineering know-how, systems
and resources within the global FLSmidth organisation, FLSmidth
Minerals today offers systems that will add significant value to its
customers in terms of technology and faster time-to-market.

To support the company's strategy as well as successfully execute
the current historically high backlog and allow for further
growth, FLSmidth Minerals has developed a new organisational
structure, Three regienal divisions covering North and Scuth
America (AMER), Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA} and
Asia Pacific (APAC) will act as the front office supported by
global technical and commercial product specialists backed by
integrated units and back offices.

The regions and the local entities employ a total of 3,290
persons in 30 countries, The company headquarters is located
in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, USA with major representations in
Australia, India, China, Russia, Denmark, Germany, UK, haly,
South Africa, USA, Canada, Brazil and Chile.

As FLSmidth Minerals is primarily an engineering company with
limited in-house production, the majority part of manufacturing
has been outsourced to sub-suppliers. However, certain key
products are being manufactured through own workshops in
countries such as USA, South Africa, Australia and Germany.

2007 marks the first decade in the history of FLSmidth Minerals
as a separate FLSmidth company, and since 1997, when FLSmidth
consolidated its Minerals operations into a single company, the
turnover has climbed from approximately DKK 400m to approxi-
mately DKK 6,400m.

Global demand for minerals

Substantially larger than the market for cement, the minerals
market is experiencing massive growth resulting from social
changes in developing countries, where expansion of the
middle classes has been accompanied by an explosive demand
for mineral and metal based consumer goods.

FL¢midth Dovr-Ciliver flotation cells, here a1 a mine
in South Afnca, save coxts and rquire less maintenance.




Finding new paths to better solutions

“I fike putting on my running shees and finding a challenging
teerain,” Bariusz Lefinski says when describing how he spends
his spare time in the mountains of Utah. This is also typicat of
his career as an instructor and innovator in fiotation. Dariusz’
expertise is part of FLSmidth Minerals’ new expanded platform
which combines all the industry’s teading flotation technofo-
gies. In several other fields he is an important industrial
pioneer and is deeply involved in developing better instruction
and training methods, creating complete solutions for custom-
ers and establishing more robust production lines.

Dariusz Lelinski
- Flotation Product Development Manager, Minerals
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Increasing purchasing power and number of globa! consumers
continue to be the primary driver impacting the growing global
demand for minerals. Major secondary drivers are increasing
urbanisation and industrialisation and the investment by the
Woestern World in human resources in India, China and the
remaining part of Asia. The World Bank anticipates that the
steadily growing middle class in developing countries will in-
crease from approximately 400m people today to around 1.2bn
people in 2030. This will inevitably lead to an increasing global
demand for minerals.

Today, China is clearly the world’s largest consumer of raw
materials with a share of around 30% of total global demand
for many minerals. The political and financial situation in China
therefore has a major impact on the future demands.

The world's second largest consumer of raw materials is the
USA. Recession fears in the USA may have an adverse impact on
the pricing of and demand for certain raw materials. However,
USA has in recent years become a less important driver of global

FLSmidlth RAHCO mobite materi-
<t afs handiing systems are used in
miing operations. for example n
B Souih Alrica

demand, and there are no signs of slowing demand for equip-
ment and services from the global mining and minerals industries
as a whole.

Financial results for 2007

Minerals delivered a turnover in 2007 of DKK 6,430m (2006:
DKK 3,276m) and earnings before interest and tax (EBIT} of
DKK 553m (2006: DKK 258m) corresponding to an £BIT ratic of
8.6% {2006: 7.9%). Before the effect of purchase price alloca-
tions related to GL&V Process of DKK -143m, the £BIT result
was DKK 696m corresponding to an EBIT ratio of 10.8%.,

The turnover in 2007 is DKK 0.6bn lower than expected at the
end of @3, due to the timing of income recognition in Miner-
als in 2007. This, however, will have a positive impact on 2008
because the activities are just postponed into 2008.

Turnover related to services and spare parts amounted to
DKK 1,609m (2006: DKK 954m) equivalent to 25.0% (2006:
29.1%) of total turnover and an increase of 69% over last year.

Growing middle class in developing countries
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The order intake rose by 45% to DKK 8,543m {2006: DKK
5,885m). The order intake related to the aftermarket {services
and spare parts) amounted to DKK 1,924m, which is an increase
of 80% compared to 2006 {2006: DKK 1,871m). By the end

of 2007, Minerals had a historically high order backlog of DKK
8,777m (end of 2006: DKK 4,733m). The order backlog in rela-
tion to turnover (Book-to-hill-ratio) amounted to 1.4 by the end
of 2007 (2006: 1.4).

GL&V Process contributed a turnover of DKK 1,199m and earn-
ings after tax of DKK -129m from 10 August 2007 to year end
{including recognition of the effect of purchase price allocations
of DKK -143m).

Minerals
DKKm 2006 2007  Change (%)
Order backlog 4,733 8,777 85%
Order intake 5,885 8,543 a5%
Projects 4814 6,519 8%
Customer Services 1,071 1,924 80%
Turnover 3,276 6,430 96%
Projects 2,322 4,81 108%
Customer Services 954 1,609 69%
EBITDA 297 47 152%
EBITDA ratio 9.1% 11.6%
EBIT 258 553 114%
EBIT ratio 7.9% 8.6%
EBIT adj. 258 696 170%
EBIT ratic acj. 7.9% 10.8%
CFFO 439 180 {64%)
Historical trend in turnover and EBIT ratio
DRKm
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Prospects for 2008-2009

Based on favourable market conditions and a historically high
order backlog, a turnover of DKK 11.5bn and an EBIT ratio of
approx. 11-12% (before effect of purchase price allecation related
to GL&V Process) are expected for 2008. Effect of purchase price
allocations regarding GL&V Process in 2008 is approximately

DKK -270m.

In 2009, Minerals expects higher turnover and EBIT ratic than
in 2008.

Metals prices, driven mainly by growth in China, are forecast to
remain well above the thresholds needed to justify investments

in new mineral process capacity, even if the USA dips into reces-
sion. Therefore, the current high demand for FLSmidth Minerals
technology is expected to continue.

Despite the consolidation in the industry the minerals produc-
ers expect that 2008 will see a high level of investment activity,
particularly in iron ore, copper and gold.

Acquisitions in 2007

2007 was the year where FLSmidth embarked on its largest
acquisition ever, viz, GL&V Process. Strategically, FLSmidth aims
to balance its Cement and Minerals activities. Through the ac-
quisition of GL&V Process (Canada} and RAHCO International Inc
{USA} and KOCH Transporttechnik {Germany) FLSmidth Minerals
has made a major step towards fulfilling the growth objective.

GL&V Process represented by Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs En-

gineers is a strategically perfect match for FLSmidth Minerals in
particular because of the complementary state-of-the-art

Geographical breakdown of turnover
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technology and geographic and cultural fit that it represents,
Add to that the significant aftermarket activity of GL&V Process.

FLSmidth Minerals has traditionally been an expert in crushing,
grinding and pyro technologies, whilst GL&V Process (Dorr-Oliver
Eimco and Krebs Engineers) has specialised in the downstream
separation processes. Together, their products represent one
complete process technology from the processing of raw materials
to the extraction of minerals.

FLSrnidth Dorr-Qliver Eimco have long been major pioneers and
leaders in liquid/solid separation sofutions. These well known,
highly reputed companies and brand names each record over
100 years of technical innovation in the minerals processing
industry worldwide.

FLSmidth Krebs is the world's leading provider of hydrocyclone
separation and severe-duty slurry pumping solutions and has been
serving process industries since 1952.

FLSmidth Krebs is recognised globally for its knowledge and exper-
tise in the use of hydrocyclones for the recovery and classification
of solids, removal of oil from water and slurry pumping in scme of
the most challenging process environments.

With this added expertise and strength, FLSmidth Minerals now
combines longevity with one of the world's largest installed bases of
original equipment operating under such well-known trademarks as
Dorr-Oliver, Eimco, Shriver and Wemco, brands that have long been
synonymous with know-how, reliability and performance.

Having FLSmidth Dorr-Qliver Eimco and FLSmidth Krebs join-
ing FLSmidth Minerals’ global operations provides customers
with an enhanced range of products, technologies, and services
unmatched in the processing industries. Few other liquid/solid
separation suppliers can offer such a broad range of equipment
and processes for industrial and environmental applications.

The integration process has high priority and is proceeding accord-
ing to plan.

The products and services of FLSmidth Dorr-Oliver Eimco and
FLSmidth Krebs meet the needs of many industries such as metal
and ore processing, pulp and paper production, the energy sector,
the chemical, petrochemical and food processing industries, as
well as various other segments.

The acquisition of RAHCO International Inc. brings state-of-the-art
design and service of bulk handling systems for mining, aggre-
gate, and bulk solids industries. The product line incfudes mobile
conveyors, radial stackers, fixed/overland conveyors and at-the-
face mining conveyors representing viable and economic alterna-
tives to traditional mining metods.

Combined with the acquisition at 1 January 2007 of KOCH
Transporttechnik, this positions FLSmidth Minerals among the
leading providers in materials handling solutions for the miner-

als industries, with the ability o offer large-scale taylormade and
energy-efficient mobile crushing and conveying equipment used in
mining operations.

Today, FLSmidth Minerals is thus among the global market leaders
in crushers, mills, hydracyclones, flotation, sedimentation, materi-
als handling and calcination. FLSmidth Minerals has the ability to
offer the market complete solutions covering the entire process
from the processing of raw materials to minerals extraction. This is
a unique value proposition to customers, since FLSmidth Minerals
is the only supplier able to offer the entire flow sheet with propri-
etary and market-leading equipment.

Global demand for new production capacity
2007 was an extremely active year for investments in the miner-
als industry due to the continuing rise in mineral prices as a
result of growing demand, especiatly from China, combined with
insufficient investments in exploration and mining of minerals
over a number of years. Based on the continuing buoyant de-
mand for minerals and record levels of investment budgeted by
the mining companies, the order intake in Minerals is expected
10 increase during the coming two years.

As the different ore bodies are being exhausted in terms of ore
quality, future investments will call for larger capacity invest-
ments and new technology. To support the same, FLSmidth
Minerals has dedicated signiticant research and development
resources to further support and develop state-of-the-art tech-
nology that will add value to customers’ mining operations. Key-
words such as reliability, uptime, lower emissions and reduced
energy, maintenance and operational costs are part of FLSmidth
Minerals’ value propesition as it looks to constantly minimise the
customers’ total cost of ownership.



Out-of-the-box innovation

When he is not taking motorcycles apart and putting them
back together again, Gfenn Davis is using his out-of-the-box
ileas to bring cutting-edge technologies to the forefront of
the mining industry. Well known for his Triple Track Mobile
Sizer (TTMS) design, Glenn constantly challenges himself to
come up with better ways of problem solving. His passion
for "making things better’ led o the new TTMS, which for
the first time, offers mobility and flexibility in an integrated
conveyor system. "Why didn‘t | think of that” is the phrase he
strives to evoke through his innovative designs.

Glenn Davis - Senior Concept Designer/Engineer,
FLSmidth Minerals RAHCO
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Minerals

Sedimentation equipment
for goid in South Africa.

2007 saw a geographically widely based market spread for
FLSmidth Minerals with major orders being received for the extrac-
tion of nctably ferro nickel / iron ore, coal, bauxite and copper.

Order intake in 2007 split up into type of mineral
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Competition

With regard 1o the competition, FLSmidth Minerals is up against
different competitors in various product and mineral segments.
Overall, FLSmidth Minerals is among the two leading equipment
suppliers within all its main business segments.

1%

Strategic focus areas within Minerals

The overall strategic objectives are:

+ Controlled growth — both organically and through acquisition
of new technologies

* Increased aftermarket activities

+ To enhance FLSmidth Minerals' value proposition and continu-
ously meet the customers’ expectations. In a market with lim-
ited supply and strong demand it is particularly important to
build strong relations with key customers and suppliers, which
can lead to mutually advantageous agreements and make it
easier to predict future needs and wishes.

FLSmiclth Minerals systens
at the warkd's largest copper
mine, Escondida in Chile,
process 350 milon fonnes
of material pev year.

» To ensure up to date business systems including engineering
tools and other productivity enhancing procedures such as Lean

+ Transform FLSmidth Minerals from a traditional product sup-
plier to a systems supplier since the company now covers the
entire value chain of a typical mineral processing plant with
technologically world-class equipment.

Increased aftermarket activities

A focus area for FLSmidth Minerals is to constantly grow its
aftermarket activities and the target has been set at an annual
growth rate of 10-15%. Several of the acquisitions made in
recent years have been specifically targeted at the aftermarket.
Most of our company's engineered products have a large local
aftermarket and a key strategy is to have local facilities and rep-
resentations in grder to enable the best possible customer service
in order to capture the important aftermarket business.

The availability of spare parts is a vital component in mining
operations and similarly is the rebuild, optimisation and upgrades
of existing production plants that make significant contributions
to customer competitiveness.

Another potential area of growth within the aftermarket activi-
ties are the comprehensive service and maintenance contracts.
Currently, FLSmidth Minerals is engaged in fulltime daily mainte-
nance of machinery and buildings at both the Colflahuasi and the
Los Pelambres copper concentrators in Chile and it is expected
that FLSmidth Minerals based on a very successful extension of
the latter contract will be able to enter into similar contracts.



Relationship Building with
a “Can Do” Approach

Bob Robinson is one of FLSmidth's mast versatile castomer
service professionals, moving between diverse roles with ease,
He has modernised field services, played a key rote in a rebuild
programme for existing equipment and is helping improve
controls on the Automated Filter Press. His “can do” aititude
and ability to handie problems, train staff and build customer
relationships has earned Bob great respect. He can be sent
anywhere in the world to work on any equipment and handle
all electrical, mechanical and structural challenges. According to
Bob, nothing is impossible.

Bob W. Robinson - Senjor Field Service Engineer, Customer Service
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Cembrit is Europe’s second largest producer and distributor of
fibre cement products. Its main product lines are flat sheets for
interior and exterior cladding of facades, walls and ceilings and
corrugated sheets and slates used primarily as roofing materials.

Cembrit is a European company headquartered in Aalborg,
Denmark. The Group has production and sales operations in the
Czech Republic, Finfand, Poland and Hungary in addition to sales
offices in Denmark, the UK, France, Holland, Norway, Sweden,
Slovakia, Germany and Rumania. Most of the company’s turno-
ver is generated from activities outside Denmark (in Europe), and
the majority of the 1,098 staff are employed in the company's
foreign subsidiaries.

New name

As from 28 February 2008, Dansk Eternit Holding A/S has
changed its name to Cembrit Holding A/S (in the following
called ‘Cembrit’), and as from the same date the Danish subsidi-
ary Dansk Eternit A/S has changed its name to Cembrit A/S,
During 2008, the rest of the company's subsidiaries will be re-
named so that all are named either Cembrit or include Cembrit
as part of their name.

The Cembrit name originates from the export business initially
launched by Dansk Eternitfabrik in the 1930s. It is today a
strong brand in several markets.

The name change marks the launching of a common European
brand that will reinforce communication with the market and
hefp to sharpen the profile of both the company and the fibre
cement product.

The purpose of the name change is to emphasise the develop-
ment of Dansk Eternit Holding over the past 10 - 15 years from
being a Danish to becoming a European group with companies
and activities in most parts of Europe and to position it for
continued growth based on a new, strong, common and visible
corporate identity.

The Cembrit brand marks the beginning of a new era which will
see continued focus on innovative and durable products, a high
level of service and an organisation that is dedicated to expand-
ing and developing the fibre cement segment in Europe as a
platform for continued growth of the business.

Development in activities and financial

results in 2007

In 2007, Cembrit recorded a turnover of DKK 1,419m

{2006: DKK 1,216m) and earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)
of DKK 124m {2006: DKK 81m), corresponding to an EBIT ratic
of 8.79% {2006: 6.7%). The first part of the year normally reflects
the winter season in Europe, but this was not the case in 2007.
On the contrary, from the end of 2006 the market continued

to be extraordinarily buoyant for the time of year, and this high
level of activity remained constant throughout 2007,

Despite the overall surplus capacity in Europe, Cembrit's high
volume of sales in 2007 resulted in an imbalance between capac-
ity and demand in certain segments. Cembrit responded by
expanding capacity, both at its own facilities and via partnership
arrangements. In April 2007, the plant in Finland opened a new
flat sheet production line.
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In 2007, Cembrit was successful in practically all the markets
served, but it became cbvious that lack of production capacity
was preventing the company from providing optimum service to
customers in certain product and market segments.

The earnings for 2007 and the profit growth show that Cembrit
is pragressing according to plan.

Facade cladding

Sales of facade cladding (flat sheets) saw continued progress in
2007. This applies both to the traditional markets and applica-
tions and to new fields of use.

2007 saw a continuing effort to develop the range of products

for facade cladding, this being considered a significant means of
growing this business segrment.

Developments in turnover and EBIT ratio
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Interior cladding

The interior cladding (flat sheets) business is progressing success-
fully and in 2007 continued to win market share at the expense
of substitutable materials, particularly for applications where the
higher strength and better moisture resistance of fibre cement
ensure longer service life and fewer problems.

Roofing materials

Sales of roofing materials (corrugated sheets, slates and
accessories) made good progress in most markets,

The European rocfing markets are seen to offer considerable
opportunities for long-term expansion of the fibre cement
segment in terms of market growth and higher market share
for fibre cement products.

Geographical breakdown of turnover
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Prospects for 2008

The main focus areas for 2008 are primarily continued praofitable
and controlled growth through optimisation and expansion of
the distribution and production network in Europe and an inten-
sified effort to develop the fibre cement segment.

For 2008 Cembrit expects a turnover of approximately DKK
1.5bn and an EBIT ratio of approximately 9%.

Competition in the European fibre cement market has intensi-
fied over the last couple of years and is characterised by fewer
players. Cembrit wishes to play an active role in the ongoing
consolidation and rationalisation of the European fibre cement
industry.

Fibre coment products

are usedf for a varety of
purpases, for exampie roofs
and facades

The private construction sector is under pressure in several parts
of Western Europe, and there is general uncertainty as to how
much activity will drop in these markets. Meanwhile, the fight
for market share is building up bath within and outside the fibre
cement segment. Irrespective of these developments, Eastern
Europe and Russia expect to see growing demand in the com-
ing years. Cembrit therefore expects to continue to grow both
organically and threugh acquisition in existing and new markets,
and the company is planning another flat sheet line at the plant
in Finland as well as a currugated sheet line at the plant in Po-
land. To support the development of innovative and high-value
products, the company has also started te build a new painting
line at its Finnish plant. 2008 is expected to see total invesiments
in expansian of praduction capacity to the tune of DKK 175m,

Production index — the European Building and Construction

Sector - Base year 2000
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Commercial risks
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Risk Management

The Group has established a central Risk Management depart-
ment and appointed risk management officers in all divisions
and subsidiaries. This function is supported by a Risk Manage-
ment palicy approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of
the Risk Management function is to systematically identify and
control risks affecting the Group's activities, assets and employ-
ees. Responsibility for this function is placed with the individual
divisions and subsidiaries.

Cement and Minerals activities

A substantial part of the FLSmidth Group's turnover and earn-
ings is based on orders received, so the intake and processing of
orders from the cement and mineral industries have a decisive
effect on developments in cash flow and net result.

The time of processing major prejects may vary and sometimes
extends up to 2-3 years. It should therefore be noted that
developments in order intake, turnover, earnings and cash flow
in each quarterly period do not necessarily reflect the underlying
general trend.

As part of the Group's systematic risk management effort, sales,
project and legal staff work closely together in assessing the con-
tractual aspects of the project before a proposal is submitted. In
all major projects, risk analysis takes place both at the proposal
and at the implemeniation stage to continuously identify, control
and report on any risks related to the projects.

The engineering companies operate on a global basis, often in
developing countries and in countries that pose considerable po-
litical risks. The Group has many years of experience in handling
the consequent exposure and closely monitors the projects and
the external factors that affect them. In the event of emergen-
cies, contingency plans have been drawn up to protect the safety
of the employees. In cases where it is considered necessary and
feasible, insurance is taken out to cover political risks.

Sourcing

Project costs depend on world market commodity prices,
primarily those of steel and copper. These risks are hedged by
coordinating, wherever possible, the duration and terms and
conditions of offers submitted to and by FLSmidth. These risks
are contractually transferred 10 the customers where possible.

The Group outsources most of the manufacturing of machinery
and equipment to subcontractors. The Group's lead times are
therefore highly dependent on the capacity of the subcontrac-
tors and their access to raw materials. Close contact is therefare
maintained with our subcontractors 1o ensure both security

of supply and the shortest possible lead times. The financial
consequences of delays cannot always be fully transferred to the
subcontractors responsible.

Quality assurance

FLSmidth has implemented a quality assurance system that com-
plies with the international 150 9001:2000 standard. The system
is continuously maintained and improved. The system has been
certified by Lloyds Register Quality Assurance who also audit the
system twice a year.

The system describes the measurement and analysis of customer
satisfaction, processes and products and gives guidelines for de-
scription and management of discrepancies, improvements and
preventive and corrective actions.

Other activities

The turnover of Cembrit is highly dependent upon the trading
conditions in the European construction sector. All production units
apply certified quality management systems and a systematic effort
is made to lower the risk incurred by the units.

Cembrit makes provisicns for anticipated warranty liabilities
within the warranty periods for various products in the respective
markets. Because warranty periods are lengthy and specific for
each industry, the provision is subject to some uncertainty and is
based on the best possible estimate from time to time.

Insurance

It is Group policy to pass on the risk of disaster losses to insur-
ance companies. Besides, insurance has been taken out to cover
risks where this is statutory. Insurance coverage is a function of
the loss scenarios that have been identified in collaboration with
the Group's insurance consultant and the insurance products
available on the market.

As part of the insurance contract, relevant production units
have been audited by external risk engineers. Reports have been
drawn up containing risk descriptions and recommendations for
risk improvements. The implementation of these risk improve-
ments is continuously monitored. The size of the deductible un-
der insurance plans is based on optimising the balance between
the insurance premium and FLSmidth & Co.'s acceptance of risk
and financial strength.

Financial risk management

The overall framework for managing financial risks is decided by
the Board of Directors. It is Group policy that all major financial
risks should be identified and appropriately hedged. Financial
management comprises the Group’s currency, interest, liquid-
ity and credit risks as well as its capital structure and financial
resources.

It is Group policy that all significant cormercial currency and
interest rate risks should be hedged not later than the date when
a contract becomes effective.



The Group did not fail to perferm nor default on loan agree-
ments in 2007 and 2006.

Currency risks

The Group’s currency risks derive from the impact of exchange
rates on future commercial payments and financial payments.
The Group is exposed to the risk of exchange rate changes

from the time when a contract becomes efiective, the customer
bearing the exhange rate risk until that date as stipulated by ex-
change rate clauses incorporated in the proposal documents. The
Group generally hedges transaction risks and uses forward con-
tracts and currency options to hedge the exposure on contracts.
The Group's main currencies for commercial purposes are EUR
and USD. Other things being equal, @ 1% EUR and a 10% USD
exchange rate change will have an impact on equity amounting
to PXK 25m and DKK 254m, respectively, and an impact on the
profit amounting to DKK 2m and DKK 21m, respectively.

The translation of profit and loss account and balance sheet
items from the currency in which subsidiaries report their finan-
cial results into DKK is also affected by exchange rate changes,
because translation risk is not hedged.

interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk consists of the sensitivity of the
interest items to changes in the level of interest and the effect of
interest rate changes on the market value of consolidated balance
sheet items. The interest rate risk is based on the net position in
different life intervals and is hedged by the use of financial instru-
ments. As at 31 December 2007, 97% of the Group's interest-
bearing debt carried a variable rate of interest. Other things being
equal, a one percentage point increase in the interest rate will
increase the Group’s yearly net interest expenses by DKK -14m
(2006: DKK 28m increase of net interest income).

Risk limits

Currency and interest risks at corporate level are controlled by
means of Value at Risk (VaR} technigues and scenario analyses,
and the risks are hedged by means of financial instruments. The
risk limit for open currency and interest positions is set at a Daily
Earnings at Risk (DEaR) maximum of DKK 4m with 99.6% prob-
ahility for both currency and interest positions.

Liquidity risks

The purpose of the Group’s cash management is to ensure
that the Group at all times has sufficient and flexible financial
resources at its disposal. The Group manages its liquidity risk
through cash poo! systems in various currencies and by having
short-term overdraft facilities with various financial institu-
tions, As part of its financial resources, the Group has entered

into committed financial facility arrangements. These facilities
contain standard clauses such as pari passu, negative pledge
and change of control. At 31 December 2007, the Group had
withdrawn EUR 245m from Change of Control clause facilities.
The clause entails that the debt must be repaid by the next
interest payment date, however not later than six months after
the lender has notified Change of Control, which must take
place at 45 days’ notice.

Credit risks

Credit risks incurred from trade debtors are generally managed by
continuous credit rating of major customers and trading partners.
No single customer accounts for more than 5% of the order
intake. The maximum credit risk related to financial assets cor-
responds to the accounting value including write-downs, In cases
where there may be a risk of loss, a write-down will be made
based on individual assessment.

The use of financial instruments entails the risk that the coun-
terparty may not be able to honour its obligations on reaching
maturity. The Group minimises this risk by limiting its use of
financial institutions to those with a high degree of creditworthi-
ness. Besides, the Group has set a limit for the amount owed to it
by any particular bank, Credit risks on other counterparties than
banks are minimised through the use of letters of credit, guaran-
tees and rating of customers from time to time.

Capital structure and financial resources

It is the Group's aim at all times to have a sufficiently sound bal-
ance sheet in relation to the underlying operating results so that
it is always possible to provide sufficient and the necessary credit
and guarantee facilities to support the commercial operations.

The long-term goal is therefore to maintain an equity ratio of
30%. At 31 Decernber 2007 the equity ratio amounted to 21%.

In the short and medium term, the Group's financial net debt

is to represent between one and three times earnings before
special non-recurring items depreciation and amortisation
{EBITDA). Financial net debt is defined as ~interest-bearing net
debt adjusted for guarantees issued”. At 31 December 2007 the
financial net debt amounted to 3.8 times EBITDA.

As the underlying business is to 2 large extent based on projects
and orders, there may be major time lags in the cash flow from
operating activities. It is therefore necessary to have financial
resources in the form of cash and/or credit facilities to absorb
any fluctuations.
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The FLSmidth Group pursues an active research and development
programme which reflects the aim of being the preferred partner
and leading supplier to the global cement and minerals indus-
tries. The goal of this programme is to launch at least one new
main machinery or process invention or improvement every year.

With the greater focus on CO, and the increasingly stringent
emissions regulations that are fareseen in the world markets,
FLSmidth continues to place resources to develop solutions to
meet the future challenges faced by our customers.

The Group's research and development activities take place both
at a central leve! within the project centres and at a local level
within the Group’s various product companies. Development
activities are being complemented by acquisition of enterprises
having new and fully developed technology.

it has been decided to strengthen the research and development
programme in both Cement and Minerals to achieve synergies
based on a coordinated effort. In this context, a vice president
with overall responsibility for research and development in
FLSmidth’s global cement activities has been recruited externally
and the present research and development manager is taking
over the post of head of research and development in FLSmidth
Minerals.

In 2007, overall research and development investments amounted
to DKK 210m (2006: DKK 169m), corresponding to 1.1% of the
turnover {2006: 1.4%). In addition, project financed development
has taken place in cooperation with customers. In 2007, the
company was unable to spend all budgeted funds on research and
development due to a lack of engineers with relevant experience.

Danig. FLSmidth’s state-
af-the-ari R & D centre,
develops now equipment
and technoiogy

R & D projects

Cement

The overall development activity continues at a high level, with
focus on enhancing our existing product portfolio, as well as
investment into the develapment of new technologies and solu-
tions.

in the fourth quarter of 2007, FLSmidth entered into a research
project with scientists from the Technical University of Denmark
(DTU). The project will research ways to make cement production
more environmentally friendly through reduced energy consump-
tion and lower CQ, emissions. The project is backed by the
Danish National Advanced Technology Foundation with a grant
for DXK 25m.

Several developments within our Pyroprocessing equipment
portfolic were also released to the market. The new generation
DUOFLEX burner ~ with advanced features to enhance com-
bustion of alternative fuels as well as improve maintainability,
was released. A new HRB {Hydraulic Roll Breaker), Tertiary Air
Damper, as well as inventions of new wear resistant materials for
clinker coclers are now available.

Grinding of raw materials and cement plays an important role in
FLSmidth's market, and much effort has been extended in this
area, which is shown in the continued strength of sales of OK,
ATOX and FRM vertical roller mills. The design for the largest OK
cement mill was completed, with the result that five mills have

been sold since the release in July. Other achievements were in
the development of the RPGS separator and redesigned UMS
bearings, to name a few,

FiSmidth pilot plant for
cemant grinding.



Minerals

In Minerals, the research and development activities have been
equally high, with many of the newly developed products being
successfully commissioned.

In 2007, FLSmidth Minerals successiully commissioned the new
60 X 113 Ultra Duty Gyratory Crusher to process high work
index ores. This crusher has been specially designed with larger
heavy duty bushings and shafts and 1000 kW Drive system mak-
ing it the world's most powerful gyratery crusher in operation.

The world's longest pipe conveyor (8.2km), at Cementos Lima
has likewise been successfully commissioned.

The synergies in product development across the FLSmidth Group
companies was realised with the development and sale of two
*At The Face Mining” systems for Fortescue Metals Group (FMG)
for their iron ore mine in Pilbara. The innovative mobile over-
burden handling and size reduction system was a collaborative
effort among several FLSmidth Minerals companies: FLSmidth
RAHCO from the US, FLSmidth Minerals Pty and FLSmidth
ABON in Australia, and FLSmidth MVT GmbH in Germany. Each
systern will include two sizers, two mobile bridge conveyors (one
45m and one 80m) in addition to one 300 m mabile stacking
conveyor. All equipment is crawler mounted allowing continu-
ous conveying and stacking, and has a system capacity of 8,000
tonnes per hour.

Thraugh the recent acquisition of Dorr-Oliver Eimco, FLSmidth
Minerals now owns the marketing and manufacturing rights to

Reseach and developrment

o one of FLSmidih's major
focus arcas Protured here are
staff at the chemicalphysical
" laboratory in Denmark.

the flotation technologies of WEMCO® and Dorr-Oliver®. The
key to FLSmidth Minerals’ current success in flotation is the abil-
ity now 10 combine both WEMCO and Dorr-Oliver flotation cells
into a MixedRow™ or common bank, producing higher recaver-
ies than were possible with using only single-cell technology thus
providing the best solutions and results for our clients,

The fourth quarier of 2007 saw the successful commissioning
of a demonstration flotation unit installed at Freeport Sierrita.
FLSmidth Minerals continues to invest in the development of the
next generation flotation cell technology.

Expansion of laboratories and research facilities
The level of activity in the Dania laboratory at Mariager, Denmark
remains quite high, supporting the continued high level of sam-
ple testing for our cement and minerals customers, as well as the
high level of activity in the pilot testing facility.

As part of the effort to relieve this, the construction and initial
comrissioning of the new laboratory in India has taken place in
2007; full operation will cormmence in the first quarter of 2008.

The Dania Research Centre was further expanded in 2007, as the
construction of a new test facility was begun. The new facility

is dedicated to the development and pilot testing of various air
pallution control technologies for FLSmidth Airtech, and will be
operational in the first quarter of 2008,
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Pursuant to Section 36 of the Disclosure Requirements for issuers
of shares listed on OMX Nordic Exchange Copenhagen, Danish
companies must in their Annual Report explain how they will
address the recommendations of the OMX Nordic Exchange
Copenhagen for corporate governance based on the "comply or
explain’ principle.

In general, the FLSmidth Group complies with the recommenda-
tions for corporate governance, however with a few exceptions

as described in the following account of the management of the
FLSmidth Group.

1. Shareholders’ role and interaction with
Board and Management

General Meeting

According to the Articles of Association, a notice convening the
general meeting including the agenda of the meeting must be
issued at least eight days and not more than four weeks prior
to the meeting. A complete agenda including explanation of
the business to be transacted must be available at least eight
days before the general meeting at the Company’s address, In
order to be considered at the Annual General Meeting, business
proposed by shareholders must be submitted to the Board of
Directors in writing by 1 March of the year in question.

investor meetings

After the quarterly interim reports are released, investor meet-
ings and telephone conferences are held at which all stakehold-
ers may ask questions direct to the Corporate Management. in
addition, it is possible to contact the Corporate Management
and Board of Directors via the Shareholders secretariat and the
Investor Relations function whose purpose is to maintain an

ongeing dialogue between the Company and its present and
potential shareholders.

Capital and share structure

FLSmidth & Co. A/S has been listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange
Copenhagen since 1968, The share capital amounts to

DKXK 1,064,000,000 consisting of 53,200,000 issued shares at
DKK 20 each. There is only one class of shares.

2, Stakeholders’ role and significance

to the company

As 10 the role of the stakeholders and their significance to the
company, please see the chapter 'Stakeholder relations’ on
pages 44-47,

3. Openness and transparency

Disclosure of information

The full wording of FLSmidth & Co. A/S’s public relations policy

is available at the Company website www.flsmidth.com. In ac-
cordance with the policy, procedures have been drawn up for
the timely disclosure of all important information pursuant to the
Stock Exchange rules. All company announcements are published
and distributed in both Danish and English {translation) by the
Hugin news distribution service and appear simultaneously on
the company website www.flsmidth.com.

Interim reports and the 2007 Annual Report are presented in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS} issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
and in accordance with the guidelines fixed by OMX Nordic
Exchange Copenhagen for the financial statements of listed
companies.

FLSmicith House, the Group’s indian project centre, was inauguratad in 2007. The second
phase of the censtruction project has now begun. When completed, the whoke complex
will accommodate 3,300 employees
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4. Duties and responsibilities of the Board

of Directors

According to general practice in Denmark, FLSmidth & Co. A/S
maintains a clear division of responsibility and separation be-
tween Board and Management. Tasks and responsibilities are laid
down ai an overall level via rules of procedure for the Board of
Directors and a set of instructions from the Board to the Man-
agernent. There is no other specific description of the duties and
tasks of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman. The Management
is responsible for the day-to-day business of the Company, whilst
the Board of Directors oversees the Management and handles
overall managerial issues of a strategic nature, The Chairman is
the Board of Directors’ primary liaison with the Management.
Apart from the Remuneration Committee mentioned below,

no ather independent Board committees have been set up. The
Board of Directars generally meets in ordinary sessions six to
eight times a year and additional meetings are held on an ad
hoc basis. Immediately after the Annual General Meeting the
Board of Directors elects from its own number a Chairman and a
Deputy Chairman. No formalised structure exists for self-evalua-
tion of the Board of Directors. The Chairman from time to time
evaluates the work of the Board of Directors.

5. Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of experienced business executives
who each bring with them insight and hands-on experience
that match the challenges and practical issues currently facing
the Group.

Information about the positions held by the individual members
of the Management and Board of Directors is available on pages
18-19. Of the six members elected at the General Meeting

for a period of one year, cne is not independent. This is Board
member Saren Vinther, who has been in the Company's employ
within the past five years, The retirement age is 70 years. Pursu-
ant to Danish legislation, the Group’s employees are represented
on the Board of Directors by members elected for four years.

6. Remuneration of the Management and the
Board of Directors

The Board has set up a Remuneration Committee to handle ne-
gotiations of pay to the Management and Board. The members
of the committee appear from page 18.

Information regarding the Management’s and the Board’s hold-
ing of shares and share options in FLSmidth & Co. appears from
the chapter on Shareholder information on pages 48-50. Ad-
equate information about the remuneration of the Management
also appears from Notes 7 and 36 1o the consolidated accounts
in the Annual Report.

Since 2002 the Board of Directors has not participated in incen-
tive programmes and has therefore no share options. Informa-
tion regarding the individual Board members’ holdings of shares
in FLSmidth & Co. appear {rom page 18.

7. Risk management

For further details on commercial and financial risks, please
see the section on Risk Management in this Annual Report on
pages 38-39.

8. Auditors

The auditors are appointed at the General Meeting based on the
recommendations of the Board of Directors. The auditor's fee is
approved by the Board of Directors.
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FLSmidth defines stakeholders as institutions, companies and
individuals that affect or are affected by our organisation and
its activities. This includes shareholders, customers, suppliers,
employees as well as their and our surroundings.

The Group continuously strives to generate a profitable return
for its owners through value creating growth within its core
areas. Alliances, acquisitions and divestments contribute to
strengthening both market position and organic growth. This is
the best way for the FLSmidth Group to safeguard its stakehald-
ers’ interests in the long term.

FLSmidth is a knowledge-intensive business whose mast impor-
tant resource is its employees. Recruitment, development and
retention of staff are therefore key issues for the Group.

The handling of customers and suppliers is an integrated and im-
portant part of business operations. Close custoemer and supplier
relations and mutual confidence are of great importance to the
company. It is the company’s experience that confidence is built
through actions — not words.

In the following, the FLSmidth Group's basic standards and poli-
cies with regard to ethics, the environment and environmental
reporting, and knowledge resources are outlined.

Ethics

The FLSmidth Group wishes to stand out as a responsible organi-
sation. Work places around the warld controlled by the Group
must respect human rights.

FLSmidth has long-standing experience in supplying machinery
and equipment to countries with low economic and infrastruc-
ture development; this includes countries which by Western

standards have totalitarian and oppressive political systems. Im-

pravement of the infrastructure and economy of these countries
is essential to the creation of a more humane political and social
environment,

Experience from all parts of the world shows that access to ce-
ment and minerals plays an essential role in the development of
a nation’s infrastructure, Cement and minerals are a prerequisite
for boosting economic growth. The Group wishes to contribute
to this process, building on its experience of trade having a posi-
tive effect on economic development and peaceful co-existence
among nations.

Environment and environmental reporting

It is the FLSmidth Group's overall objective at all times to at
least comply with current environmental legislation and actively
contribute to sustainable environmental development in society,
striking a balance between economic consequences and indus-
trial development and capability.

The Group has so far generally given lower priority to environ-
mental reporting, which is primarily of a formal nature, than to
action, research and development which make a real impact on
the environment.

Engineering activities

As anncunced in FLSmidth's *Environmental Policy Statement”,
it is the company’s objective to protect the enviranment by elimi-
nating and — if this is technologically not feasible - by reducing
any harmful environmental impact of the Company’s activities or
products.

Being an engineering company with limited production of its
own, the Group strives to fulfil this objective primarily by improv-
ing our customers' activities through development of production
processes, machinery and equipment that ensure high environ-
mental protection.




A $midth MyT orcular

raw material homogenising
store.

Having attained certification to ISO 9001:2000, it is FLSmidth’s
policy that all its products at least must comply with current
legislation and regulations. In addition, FLSmidth’s products and
services must support the company’s image of a responsible,
reliable and professional supplier, who in consideration of the
environment reflects the use of the fatest technology and meets
the market’s expectations and requirements for developing new
environmentally protective technology.

FLSmidth’s environmental policy results in the following declara-

tions of intent:

« |nstallations, machinery and egquipment supplied by FLSmidth
must a1 least always comply with the environmental legislation
currently in force at the time of signing the contract

* When developing new products, efforts must be made to

reduce the consumption of energy and natural resources

and eliminate pollution and reduce noise nuisance as much
as possible

FLSmidth will give priority to subsuppliers with a high

environmental standard and awareness

FLSmidth will train and motivate customers with a view

to ensuring optimum usage of the supplied installations,
machinery and equipment capacity — also with regard to
the environment

FLSmidth will at all times prioritise environmental aspects
with a view to ensuring continuous follow-up and updating
of the company's objectives within environmental protection

In this context it is a proven fact that FLSmidth today offers the
world's leading products from an environmental point of view.

Production facilities

During a number of years, the Group’s largest production
company, Cembrit, has focused systematically on environmental
management and environmental reporting.

ALSmidth Dor-Oinver Fimeo
sedimentation fiter in pro-
chuction.

In energy intensive production plants it is particularly relevant

to consider environmental and energy issues — including the
optimisation of the use of raw materials, the reduction of energy
consumption, waste, water and noise and the improvement of
occupational health and safety.

The company's products are building materials which in their
"cradle-to-grave life cycle™ have an impact on the environment,
Focusing on the environmental impact of the building products
thus plays a significant role in the Company’s environmental
efforts. These efforts include collection of data with a view to
disclosing other aspects than the production itself which have an
impact on the environment - for example in relation to suppli-
ers, customers and actual use. Against this background, future
environmental targets and action plans are drawn up to fulfil the
objectives of the environmental efforts.

Cembrit has attained environmental certification to the 15O
14001 standard, OHSAS 18001 and the Ministry of Labour
execulive order No. 923.

Occupational health and safety

FLSmidth is a global group with activities in many countries
where national legislation and practices set different frameworks
for handling the issue of occupational health and safety. It is
important for FLSmidth to ensure compliance with current na-
tional legislation in the business units concerned and to maintain
focus on the basic working environment. FLSmidth is primarily
an engineering business that involves few manual processes, 5o
the incidence of accidents and strenuous working environments
is generally low. Meanwhile, security measures for travelling
employees in the Group always receive very high priority.
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Accidents at work

Data regarding accidents at work has been collected from almost
all entities worldwide {approximately 95% of the Group). One
accident at work is one too many, however the Group’s accident
frequency is substantially below the industrial average.

Number ¢f Number of Accident  Absence
accidents accidents frequency* frequency**
causing absence
Cement 79 45 5.0 0.7
Minerals 101 25 4.0 0.2
Cembyit 40 33 223 a0
The FLSmidth Group 220 103 6.1 1.0

* Number of accidents causing absence per one million working hours
=+ Number of lost working hours per 1,000 working hours

The differences between the business units reflect differences

in staff categories and the nature of work. However, experience
gained from units reporting few accidents will be evatuated in
terms of its possible relevance to the Group as a whole. FLSmidth
will closely monitor these developments over the coming years.

Compliance with national rules regarding the working environ-
ment is the responsibility of the individual companies in the vari-
ous countries. FLSmidth has no information about any violation
of current national rules.

Safety and Health Policy

In 2007, FLSmidth took the initiative to draw up a new Safety and
Health policy for the whole Group to ensure that FLSmidth ¢com-
plies with current {egislative provisions and recognised practices in
this field. The policy is expected to be implemented during 2008.

Al the construsciion site of
a new FLSmicth cement
plant in the Middle East,
the packing plant and the
ATOX raw mi# department
dre being inspected.

Absence due to iliness

Generally speaking, absence due to illness is at a low level
throughout the Group. The American and Indian parts of the
arganisation recorded a rate of absence of approximately 1.0%,
whilst absence in the Danish organisation was 2.5% in 2007.
Absence due to illness is slightly below the level of Danish
salaried employees in general, which is 2.9% according to the
Danish Employers statistics for 2007.

Knowledge Resources

The single most significant development in relation to human
resources in 2007 was the increase in number of staff. Our excep-
tionally large intake of orders has intensified recruiting activities
in 2007. Furthermore, approximately 1,000 new colleagues joined
FLSmidth with the acquisition of GL&V Process on 10 August
2007. Approximately net 2,500 new emplayees on a global scale
grew FLSmidth to a total of 9,377 employees by the end of the
year.

The growth in 2007 combined with shortage of highly educated
specialists has called for special efforts to constantly improve
our recruitment processes to find new ways of attracting future
employees.

Integration and alignment

With the acquisition of GL&Y Process, the merging of new busi-
ness units and the huge inflow of staff, integration was given
high priority in 2007 and continues to be so in 2008 and the
coming years. To ensure smooth implementation in all areas we
attach great importance to alignment of business processes, such
as alignment of benefits, incentives and employment conditions
in general as well as alignment of supporting systems.



Development activities

FLSmidth is dependent on highly specialised knowledge and the
competencies of our employees are therefore of strategic impor-
tance. Qur global development activities are designed to ensure
integration and continued development of employee competen-
cies. Considerable resources are spent on continuing education
enabling the individual employee to continuously increase his or
her value to FLSmidth.

Global technical expertise and leadership development

As we face the integration of new business units and growing
opportunities in the global cement and minerals markets, it is
now more important than ever to have both the best techni-
cal specialists and a strong and flexible management structure
with the right people in the right positions. Therefore, a global
development initiative is about to be launched with the purposes
of first attending to the technical specialists and afterwards to
managers. These initiatives will be closely integrated with the
existing Career Development and Talent Management initiatives
already in progress.

Global Organisational and People’s review
{OPR)

To ensure that organisational, people and managerial
performance is handled in accordance with the medium and
long term strategic business prospects, an “Organisation and
People Review" process is being initiated across the entire
organisation in 2008,

Global Employee Engagement Survey

Joh satisfaction and employee commitment remain very
important factors to monitor in FLSmidth. As the overarching
endeavour, the global tri-annual employee survey engagement
survey has been planned for the end of 2008/2009 to follow up
on initiatives anchored in the survey from 2005/2006 which was
launched in our three geographical project centres.

As the previous survey the aim is further strengthening of
employees’ satisfaction and loyalty by measuring satisfaction,
motivation and engagement as well as analyzing the effect of
activities implemented as a result of prior surveys. Future surveys
will be launched in every FLSmidth organisation worldwide and
may cover other factors which are also important to FLSmidth

at the time of surveying in order to ensure the strategic use of
the survey.

Staff data (Regular employees)
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Share capital and votes

FLSmidth & Co. A/S has approximately 23,800 registered share-
holders. In addition, nearly 4,500 present and fermer employ-
ees hold shares in the company. In accordance with the OMX
Nordic Exchange Copenhagen criterion, the FLSmidth & Co.
share has a free-float of 98%. The share capital amounts to DKK
1,064,000,000 consisting of 53,200,000 issued shares at DKK 20
each. The proportionate amount of shares held by foreign inves-
tors has risen over the last few years and now exceeds 50%.
One shareholder has reported a participating interest that ex-
ceeds five per cent of the share capital: ATP, Kongens Vange 8,
DK-3400 Hillerad. ATP’s participating interest in FLSmidth & Co.
amounted to 11.8% of the share capital at 31 December 2007.

Classification of shareholders

12% 12%

h\\ el 0 ate

13%// ™

10% [} Danish institutional

M Flsmidih & Co.
[ Foreign investors

B Danish {non-registered)

Danish private

S51%

FLSmidth & Co. shares and share options held
by the Board of Directors, the Management and
executive staff

Members of the FLSmidth & Co. A/S Board of Directors hold a
total of 159,448 shares. The Corporate Managernent controls
40,210 shares and 150,800 share options. Other and executive
staff hold 360,700 share options.

Share indices

The FLSmidth & Co. share is included in a number of share indices
on the OMX Nordic Stock Exchange, including OMX Copenhagen
20 (OMX20}, consisting of the 20 most traded shares on OMX
Nordic Stock Exchange Copenhagen. The FLSmidth & Co. share
is also included in a number of European share indices including
“Dow Jones STOXX 600~ and "MSCI Engineering & Construction”.

Market developments 2007

The FLSmidth & Co. share opened the year at a price of 359 and
closed the year at 522. The year saw a generally increasing price
trend, apart from general stock market adjustments in the late
summer and towards the end of 2007 which particularly affected
companies in the ‘Capital Goods’ sector to which FLSmidth & Co,
belongs.

The total return on the FLSmidth & Co. B share in 2007 was
47% including dividend. By comparison the OMXC20 increased
5% and M5C| European Construction & Engineering rose 3%,
whereas Dow Jones STOXX 600 stumped by 4% in 2007.

In 2007, FLSmidth & Co. was ameng the 5-10 most traded
shares on the OMX Copenhagen Stock Exchange with an aver-
age daily trading volume of 370,000 shares corresponding to
some DKK 170m.

Investor relations policy

Via announcements to the Copenhagen Stock Exchange and
brieting sessions plus updated information about the company’'s
activities on the company website, www.flsmidth.com, the
Group seeks to maintain regular contact with the stock market
to ensure a development of the share price that reflects the
underlying financial performance of the Group.

Development in share price and turnover in 2007

Daily volume {number of shares) Shaze price
2,000,000 was  FLSmidth & Co. Share price 600
a4 FLSmidth & Co. Daily volume 580
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When distance is your biggest challenge

A perfectionist and “basically, a mathematics guy”, bouis
Soosai Manickam says moving T operations from one country
to another is like moving a patient that is being operated on.
Although remote management services can be risky from
8,000 miles away, Louis and his highly customer-focused team
of professionals in Chennrai, India have been instrumental

in globalising FLSmidth’s IT operations. Now Louis is looking
farward to yet another expansicn to support the US offices.
"It is exciting to see we have really proven ourselves,” he says
proudly. “We have done the groundwork, and we are ready.”

Louis Soosai Manickam
- Head, Giobal IT Operations Centre, Chennai - IT Operations




Shareholder information

By subscribing to the electronic communication service at
www. flsmidth.com, shareholders and other interested
parties have swift and seamless access to the latest company
announcements.

The objective of FLSmidth’s Investor Relations function is to
ensure that:

« the share price reflects the Company’s results and a fair market
value based on open and active communication with the stock
market

all shareholders have equal and sufficient access to timely,
relevant and price-sensitive information

-

As a principle, the Group maintains a three week quiet period
before the planned release of financial statements during which
it does not comment on financial goals nor guidance and does
not take pant in meetings nor presentations with analysts or
investors. As a principle, the Group only comments on factual
information and not on guidance given in analyst reports.

According to the FLSmidth & Co. policy for announcing new
contracts, contracts valued at more than DKK 200m are
announced to the public once the order becomes effective.
This means when both parties have signed the contract,
guaranties have been exchanged and the customer has paid
the downpayment.

Registration of shares is effected via one’s own bank. Registered
shareholders automatically receive an invitation to general meet-
ings. A printed version of the Annual Report can be obtained from
the shareholder's secretariat or via e-mail: corpir@flsmidth.com.

Analyst coverage
The FLSmidth & Co. share is currently covered by the following
stockbrokers and analysts:

ABN Amro Bo Andreasen bo.andresen@dk.abnamro.com
Alm. Brand Henton ~ Thomas Hundebol abthhu@atmbrand.dk
Carnegie Lars Topholm lars.tepholm@carnegie.dk
Danske Bank Stig Frederiksen stif@danskebank.dk

Jyske Bank Michael Nietsen michael-nigken@jyskebank.dk
Kaupthing Klaus Kehl Johansen klaus.kehl@kaupthing.com
Handelsbanken Kitty Gron kigr01@handelsbanken dk

LD Markets Torsten Bech tbe@Idmarkets.dk

SEB Enskilda Kasper From Larsen kasper.from.larsen@enskilda.dk
Sydbank Jacob Pedersen jacob.pedersen@sydbank.dk

Investor Relations activities 2007

During 2007, FLSmidth & Co. attended more than 300 analyst
and investor meetings in Amsterdam, Boston, Edinburgh, Frank-
furt, Helsinki, Copenhagen, London, Luxembourg, Mew Delhi,
New York, Paris, Stockholm, Vienna and Zdrich. In January 2007,
FLSmidth & Co. held a Capital Market Day in London, focusing
on minerals. In addition, the company participated in four events
aimed at private investors in Copenhagen, Odense and Arhus.
The material handed out in connection with these meetings is
available at www.flsmidth.com,

Financial Calendar 2008

28 February 2008: Annual Report 2007

17 April 2008: Annual General Meeting
22 May 2008:

21 August 2008:
20 November 2008:

1% quarter 2008 Interim Report
1* half 2008 Interim Report

1% - 37 quarter 2008 Interim Report

The Annual General Meating will take place on 17 Aprit 2008 at
16.00 hours at Radisson SAS, Falconer Center, Falkoner Allé 9,
DK-2000 Frederiksberg.

Share and dividend figures, Group
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

CFPS (cash flow per share,

DXK {diluted) 3.9 {2.9) 328 243 281
EPS (earnings per share),

DKK {diluted) {49.3) 28 91 21.7 24.6
Net asset value, DKK parent

company (diluted) 52 54 46 38 47
DPS {(dividend per share), DKK 0 7 7 7 7
Pay-out ratio (%) o} 250 77 32 29
FLS price per share 68.7 1024 186.0 359 522
Number gf shares {000s),

year end 53,200 53,200 53,200 53,200 53,200

Average number of shares
(0008} {diluted) 51,881 52,509 52,518 52,558 52,640

Market capitalisation, DKKm 3655 5448 9,895 19,099 27,770




Profit and loss account specified by quarter (unaudited)

DKKm 2006 2007

st quarter Ind quarter 3rd quarter Ath quarter | Istquarter indquarter  3nd quarter  dth quarter
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Net turnover 2,307 2,900 3,207 3,897 3,754 4,504 5,220 6,479
Gross profit 502 613 618 869 785 978 1,134 1,375
Earnings before special non-recurring items, depr.
and amort. (EBITDA) 149 206 238 373 354 480 608 658
Earnings befare intarest and tax {EBIT) 08 162 184 3 305 433 506 580
Earnings befare 1ax {EBT) 115 178 208 423 319 431 486 591
Tax for the period 35 53 62 {333) 56 170 164 154
Profit/loss of continuing activities for the period 80 125 146 756 223 m 3n 437
ProfitAoss of discontinuing activities for the period 1 0 11 13 {5} 10 3 {7}
Profitfloss for the period 81 125 157 769 218 m 325 430
CASH FLOW
Cash fiow from operating activities 299 (300 387 ni 223 262 494 4n
Cash flow from investing activities (46) (36) {201} {115} {102) {181} {3,713} 98
Order intake 4,534 6,745 3,388 3,867 4,131 5,122 7.080 6,728
Qrder backleg 13,432 17,549 18,108 18,264 18,854 21,055 24,540 25,312
SEGMENT REPORTING
Cement
Turnaver 1,459 1,828 1,959 2,437 2,540 2,829 2,992 3,849
EBITDA 107 119 94 214 214 299 303 399
EBIT 85 92 72 188 190 277 Pra| 346
Contrbution ratio 21.3% 20.0% 16.7% 21.0% 18.6% 20.9% 18.3% 19.0%
EBITDA ratio 7.3% 6.5% 4.8% 8.8% 8.4% 10.6% 10.1% 10.4%
EBIT ratio 5.8% 5.0% 3.7% 7.7% 7.5% 9.3% S.1% 9.0%
Qrder intake 3,528 4,858 2,054 2,209 2,920 3,813 4,741 4,315
Qrder backlog 10,742 13,707 13,500 13,531 14,348 15,360 16,942 17,265
Minerals
Turncver 580 720 B68 1,098 936 1,287 1.875 2,332
EBITDA 30 52 82 133 B4 142 222 299
EBIT 25 49 66 118 76 132 170 175
Contnbution ratio 16.6% 16.0% 18.0% 21.3% 18.9% 19.0% 22.5% 22.9%
EBITDA ratio 5.1% 7.2% 24% 12.1% 9.0% 11.0% 11.8% 12.8%
EBIT ratio 4.2% £.8% 71.6% 10.7% B.1% 10.3% 9.1% 75%
Order intake 1,006 1,887 1,334 1.658 1,266 2,387 2,425 2,464
Qrder backlog 2,690 3,842 4,208 4,733 5271 6,420 8,744 3,777
Cembrit
Turnover 236 312 LY zr EEE:] 366 367 348
EBITDA 23 43 44 18 37 41 54 5
EBIT 11 3 32 7 25 28 42 i}
Contribution sato 35.2% 36.0% 33.0% 31.8% 34.3% 32.8% 36.5% 29.9%
EBITDA ratio 9.7% 13.8% 12.9% 5.5% 10.9% 11.2% 14.7% 1.4%
EBIT ratio 4.7% 9.9% 94% 2% 7.4% 1.7% 11.4% B3%

Contact with the Company

Investor Relations & Corporate Communications Shareholders secretariat Website
Corporate Communications lesper B. Larsen Hanne Falshgj www.flsmidth.com
Pernille Friis Andersen Tel.: +4536 18 18 77 Tel.: +45 36 18 18 99

Tel.: +45 36 18 18 87 E-mail: jebl@flsmidth.com Solvej Gosmer

E-mail: pefa@flsmidth.com Tel.: +45 36 1818 76

E-mail: corpir@ilsmidth.com



Company announcements
issued L?y Corporate Communications in 2007

Date Date
04 Jan. FLSmidth A/S 01/2007 03 Aug.  FLSmidth A/S (Inc.) 1212007
Intention to sell MAAG Gear's marine lands ¢ontract far 5,250 tpd line for
and turbo gear business Cementos Argos, Colombia
11 Jan. FLSmidth A/S 02/2007 09 Aug.  FLSmidth A/S 18/2007
Contract for production line at awarded contract for 7,500 tpd line for
Platin Cement Works, Irefand Syrian Cement Company
23 Jan, FLSmidth A/S 03/2007 10 Aug,  FLSmidth & Co. A/S 19/2007
sells MAAG Gear's marine and turbo gear Acquisition of GL&V Process is closed
business
. 22 Aug,  FLSmidth & Co. A/S 20/2007
25 Jan. FLSmidth A/S 04/2007 Half-yearly report 2007
Contract for new cement plant in Kazkhstan
. 20 Sep. FLSmidth A/S 21/2007
02 Feb. FLSmidth & Co. A/S 05/2007 wins contract for 5,000 tpd line for
upgrades expectations for 2006 results Eurocement Group, Russia
28 Feb. FLSmidth & Co. A/S 06/2007 08 Oct. FLSmidth A/S 2212007
2006 Annual Report signs O & M contract
30 Mar,  FLSmidth Minerals 07/2007 18 Oct. FLSmidth Minerals 23/2007
acquires materials handling business of receives contract for two mobile overburden
RAHCO International removal systems for Fortescue Metals Group
07 Apr.  FLSmidth & Co. A/S 08/2007 250ct.  FLSmidth & Co. 24/2007
Notice of the Annual General Meeting sells Densit o Minois Tool Works
20 Apr. FLSmidth Minerals 09/2007 02 Now. FLSmidth & Co. AJS 25/2007
offers 10 acquire Groupe Laperriére & Nordea Luxembourg reduces shareholding to
Verrault Inc.’s Process Division less than 5% (4.74%}
20 Apr. FLSmidth & Co. A/S 10/2007 07 Nov. FLSmidth A/S 26/2007
Summary of Annual General Meeting lands contract for 5,000 tpd line from LLC
. Cement, Russia
23 Apr. FLSmidth A/S . 11/2007 .
wins contract for new cement production 27 Nov. FLSmidth & Co. A/S 27/2007
line in Sudan Interim report for 1 January to
. " 30 September 2007
29May  FLSmidth Minerals 12/2007 .
lands contract with Anglo American 10Dec.  Russian press reports on 28/2007
Brasil for two ferronickel production fines contract signing in Russia
. Q00 Kurskaya stroitelnaya companiya
30 May FLSmidth & Co. A/S 13/2007
1% quarter 2007 interim report 12Dec.  FLSmidth Minerals 29/2007
. wins order from Canadian Goldcorp for
01 June  FLSmidth & Co. A/S 14/2007 crushing, grinding and flotation equipment
Information about share capital and
votes due to EU transparency directive 20 Dec, FLSmidth & Co. A/S 30/2007
introduced 1 June 2007 Financial calendar for 2008
11 June  FLSmidth A/S 15/2007 21 Dec. FLSmidth A/S (Inc) 31/2007
receives contract for 5,000 tpd line for signs contract for 7,200 ted line for
Gulf Cement Company, Qatar Lafarge, LISA
21June  FLSmidth A/S 16/2007
wins contract for 4,100 tpd line for
Cementos Molins, Spain Please see page 16 for Company announcements issued

in 2008,
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General comments

The Annual Report which includes the consolidated accounts
and the accounts of the parent company for FLSmidth & Co. ASS
is presented in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, which are approved by EU, and additional
Danish disclosure requirements for annual reports of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, as fixed by OMX Nordic Exchange
Copenhagen and the IFRS executive order published in accor-
dance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

The Annual Report also complies with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by IASB.

The Annual Report is presented in Danish kroner (DKK) which
is the presentation currency for the Group's activities and the
parent company's functional currency. A few reclassifications
of comparative figures have been recognised compared to the
Annual Report 2006.

The accounting policies are unchanged from 2006.

Iimplementation of new and revised standards
and interpretations

The Annual Report for 2007 is presented in conformity with the
new and revised standards (IFRS/1AS) and new interpretations
(IFRIC) applicable for financial years beginning on 1 January 2007
or later. These standards and interpretations are:

« |FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

« |AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (updated 2005}

« |AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (updated 2005)

« [FRIC 7, Applying the Restaternent Approach under IAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

* IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2

* |FRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

= IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

Implementation of the new and revised standards and inter-
pretations in the Annual Report 2007 have not resulted in any
changes in the accounting policies, but exclusively affected the
scope and the nature of the disclosures in the notes to the An-
nual Report.

Standards and interpretations that have not
come into force

At the time of publication of this Annual Report the following
significant new or revised standards and interpretations have not
yet come into force and are therefore not incorporated in this
Annual Report:

+ IFRS 8, Operating segments. The standard comes into force
with effect as from the financial year beginning 1 January
2009 or later

Revised 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The
revised standard comes into force with effect as from financial
years beginning on 1 January 2009 or later. The standard is
not yet approved for use in EU

Revised |AS 23, Borrowing Costs. The revised standard

comes into force with effect as from financiat years beginning
1 January 2009 or later. The standard is not yet approved for
use in EU,

Revised IFRS 3, Business Combinations and IAS 27, Consoli-
dated and separate Financial Statements come into force with
effect as from financial years beginning on 1 January 2010 or
later. The standards are not yet approved for use in EU

It is the management’s view that applying these new and revised
standards and interpretations will have impact on the Annual
Repart for the financial year 2009 and subsequent years.

General principles for recognition and
measurement

Assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow out from the Group and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow out from the Group and
the cost of the liability can be measured reliably.

In connection with initial recognition, assets and liabilities are
measured at cost at initial recognition. Subsequent measure-
ments are based on value adjustments as described below.

Estimates by Management

In preparing the Annual Report pursuant to generally applicable
rules, it is necessary that the Management make estimates and
lay down assumptions that affect the recognised assets and
liabilities including the disclosures made regarding contingent
assets and liabilities.

The Board and Management base their estirnates on historical
experience and other assurnptions considered relevant at the
time in guestion. These estimates and assumptions form the ba-
sis of the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the derived
eftects on the profit and loss account included in this Annual
Report. The actual results may deviate.

The Board and Management of FLSmidth & Co. A/S considers
the following aspects of the assets and liabilities in the Annual
Report 10 be particularly affected:

= Work-in-progress for third parties

* Other provisions



» Deferred tax assets

* Disposal of undertakings and activities

» Acquisition of undertakings and activities including fixing of
purchase price allocations and amortisation hereof

Work-in-progress for third parties

Werk-in-progress for third parties is measured according to the
stage of completion at sales value. The stage of completion is
based on the costs incurred measured in proportion to the total
expected costs. These costs are partially based on an estimate.
Besides, major projects are often sold to a number of politically
unstable countries. In the opinion of the Management, the re-
sults of these estimates and uncertainties are appropriate viewed
against the information and assumptions available.

QOther provisions

warranties and other provisions are measured based on empirical
infarmation covering several years as well as legal opinions
which together with management estimates of future trends
form the basis for warranty provisions and other provisions. For
long term warranties and other provisions discounting to net
present value is made.

Deferred tax assets

FLSmidth & Co. A/S recognises deferred tax assets if it is proba-
ble that there will be taxable income in the future against which
timing differences or tax loss carry forwards may be used. For
this purpose, the Board and Management estimate the coming
years’ earnings based on budgets and forecasts.

Disposal of undertakings and activities

In connection with disposal or closure of undertakings and
activities normal management estimates are included to remedy
contractual guarantees.

Acquisition of undertakings and activities including fixing
of purchase price allocations and amortisation hereof

In connection with acquisition of undertakings and activities,
purchase price allocations are made at fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Purchase price allocati-
ons mainly relate to intangible assets and stocks and deferred tax
hereof. The measurement of fair value is related to management
estimates which are based on the assets’ expected future earn-
ings. The Management also make estimates of the useful life of
the assets and their depreciation and amortisation profile which
is systematically based on the expected distribution of the assets’
future economic benefits.

Consolidated accounts

The consolidated financial statements comprise the parent
company, FLSmidth & Co. ASS, and all undertakings in which
the Group holds the majority of the voting rights or in which

the Group in some other way holds a controlling influence.
Undertakings in which the Group holds between 20% and
50% of the voting rights or in some other way has significant
influence, but not a controlling interest, are regarded as
associated undertakings. Jointly controlled entities (joint
ventuses) are proportionately consolidated.

The conselidated accounts are based on the Financial Statements
of the parent company and the individual subsidiaries which

are drawn up in accordance with the Group accounting policies.
All items of a uniform nature are combined, while inter-company
income, costs, accounts and shareholdings are eliminated.
Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between consclidated
companies are also eliminated.

The items in the accounts of subsidiaries are included one
hundred per cent in the consolidated accounts. The proportionate
share of the earnings attributable to the mingrity interests is
included in the Group’s profitfoss for the year and as a separate
portion of the Group’s shareholders’ equity.

Business combinations

On acquisition of undertakings, the purchase method is applied,
and the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the under-
takings acquired are measured at fair value on the date of acqui-
sition. Restructuring costs are anly recognised in the acquisition
balance sheet, if they are a liability for the undertaking acquired
on the date of acquisition. The tax effect of the revaluations
made is taken into account. Undertakings acquired are included
in the consclidated accounts from the date of acquisition.

Measurement of cost

The cost of an undertaking includes the fair value of the acquisi-
tion price plus the costs which are directly related to the acquisi-
tion, If the amount’s final fixing is based on one or more future
events, these adjustments are only recognised in the cost if the
said event is likely and the impact on the cost can be measured
reliably.

In the case of business combinations, positive balances between
the cost of the undertaking and the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired are recognised
as goodwill under the heading of intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment. On the
acquisition, goodwill is allocated to the cash flow generating
units which subsequently form the basis of the impairment test.
Negative balances (negative goodwill) are recognised in the
profit and loss account at the date of acquisition.

if there is any uncertainty regarding the measurement of ac-

quired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at
the date of acquisition, initial recognition is based on provi-
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sional fair values. If it subsequently appears that the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the
date of acquisition differs from that first assumed, goodwill is
adjusted until 12 months after the acquisition. The effect of the
adjustments is adjusted in goodwill. Subsequently, goodwill is
only adjusted in the event of changes in the estimate of the con-
ditional acquisition price unless the error is material. However,
subsequent realisation of the acquired undertaking's deferred
tax assets, which were not recognised at the date of acquisition,
will cause the tax advantage to be recognised in the profit and
loss account and cause a write-down of the carrying value of
goodwill to the amount that would have been recagnised if the
deferred tax asset had been stated as an identifiable asset at the
date of acquisition.

Undertakings disposed of are consolidated until the date of
disposal. The difference between the selling price and the book
value of the net assets at the date of disposal including remain-
ing goodwill less expected costs of disposal is recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Translation of foreign currency

Transactions in another currency than the Group’s functional
currency are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the day
of transaction.

Financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Any
foreign exchange differences between the rates at the transac-
tion date and the payment date or the balance sheet date, as
the case may be, are recognised in the profit and loss account as
financial items.

Non-maonetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are
recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
(shares) are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the latest fair value adjustment.

The profit and loss accounts of foreign subsidiaries with a func-
tional currency that differs from Danish kroner and of foreign
associated undertakings and pro rata consolidated joint ventures
are translated at average exchange rates while their balance
sheet items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. The differences deriving from the transla-
tion of the profit and loss accounts of {oreign business units at
average exchange rates and of their balance sheet items at the
rate of exchange at the balance sheet date are recognised in the
shareholders’ equity.

The exchange rate adjustment of amounts owed or received
by subsidiaries which are considered to be part of the parent
company's total investment in the said subsidiary, is directly
recognised in the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated
accounts, whereas they are recognised in the profit and loss
account in the Financial Statements of the parent company.

The assets and liabilities of a foreign business unit acquired
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction {acquisition date).

If the accounts of a foreign business unit are presented in a cur-
rency in which the accumulated rate of inflation gver the past
three years exceeds 100 per cent, adjustments for inflation are
made, The adjusted accounts are translated at the exchange rate
prevailing on the balance sheet date,

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost
and subsequently measured at fair value at the date of settle-
ment. The fair value of derivatives is included in Other debtors
{positive fair value) or Other habilities (negative fair value) as the
case may be. Positive fair values are only set off against negative
fair values if the company is entitled to and intends to make a
net settlement of several financial instruments {cash settlement).
The fair values of derivatives are measured on the basis of mar-
ket data and recognised valuation methods.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that hedge the fair value
of already recognised assets or liabilities or binding agreements
are recognised in the profit and loss account together with
changes in the value of the assets and liabilities hedged as far as
the hedged portion is concerned. Hedging of future cash flows
in accardance with an agreement signed, including exchange rate
hedging of sales or purchase contracts in connection with orders,
is treated as hedging of the fair value of a recognised asset or a
recognised liability.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are dassified as
hedging of future transactions are recognised directly in the
shareholders’ quity until the hedged item is realised. When the
item is realised the changes in value are recognised in the same
accounting item as the hedged item.

Derivatives that do not fulfil the criteria for hedge accounting
are regarded as trading portfolio and recognised in the balance
sheet at fair value on the balance sheet date, Fair value adjust-
ments are recognised in the profit and ioss account as financial
items.



Changes in the fair value of loans and derivatives that are consi-
dered a currency hedge of the foreign business units or parts of
them, are recognised directly in the shareholders’ equity until the
net investment is sold.

Profit and loss account

Net turnover

Net turnover is recognised in the profit and loss account on de-
livery and passing of the risk to the buyer and when the income
can be measured reliably.

Work-in-progress for third parties is recognised in turnover based
on the value of the wark completed at the balance sheet date.
The general rute is to base stage of completion on the costs
incurred. The value of Work-in-progress for third parties is based
on the costs incurred in percentage of the total budgeted costs.

Grants

Grants related to the acquisition of assets are recognised under
liabilities and recognised in the profit and loss account in step
with spending and depreciation on the assets concerned.

Grants received to cover costs are recognised under liabilities and
recognised in the profit and loss account in step with the costs
being incurred.

Repayment obligations that become relevant if the conditions
for receiving the granis are not fulfilled are stated in the notes as
contingent liabilities.

Production costs

Production costs include raw materials, consumables, direct
labour costs and indirect production costs such as maintenance
and operation of production plant as well as administration and
factory management.

Production costs for Work-in-progress for third parties are recog-
nised in step with the completion of the individual contract.

Research costs are charged to Production costs in the profit and
loss account for the financial year in which they are incurred.

Development costs are mainly recognised in the profit and loss
account for the financial year during which they were incurred.
Development costs related to certain products or processes are
recognised as assets to the extent that such costs are likely to
generate future earnings.

Sales and distribution costs

Sales and distribution costs comprise direct distribution and
marketing costs, salaries for the sales and marketing functions as
well as other indirect costs.

Administrative costs
Administrative costs comprise the costs of administrative staff
and management and other indirect costs.

Other operating income and costs

Other operating income and costs comprise income and costs of
a secondary nature in relation to the activities of the Company,
including certain grants, rentals and royalties, fees, etc.

Profit and loss from the disposal of specific assets, sites and buil-
dings which cannot be considered part of the disposal

of a complete activity is inctuded in Other operating income
and costs.

Special non-recurring items

Special non-recurring items consist of costs and income of a
special nature in relation to the activities of the Group, including
profit and loss on disposal of undertakings and run-off on reva-
luation of stocks in connection with acquisition of undertakings.
These items are classified as special non-recurring items in order
to give a true and fair view of the Group's other operational
activities.

Profits/flosses of associated undertakings in the consoli-
dated accounts

A proportionate share of the profits and losses of the associated
undertakings is recognised after adjustment for unsealised inter-
nal profits/losses and write-down, if any, of goodwill.

Dividend from investments in subsidiaries and associated
undertakings in the parent company accounts

Dividend from investments in subsidiaries and associated un-
dertakings is recognised in the parent company profit and loss
account in the financial year in which the dividend is declared.
However, where the dividend distributed exceeds the accumu-
lated earnings after the date of acquisition, the dividend is not
recognised in the profit and loss account but is stated as a write-
down on the cost of the investment.

Financial items

Financial iterns comprise interest income and costs, interest of
finance leases, realised and unrealised exchange gains and losses
on securities, liabilities and transactions in foreign currency, addi-
tion or deduction of amortisation related to mortgage debt, etc.
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Interest income and costs are accrued on the basis of the princi-
pal amount and the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the discount rate used to discount the anticipated future
payments which are related to the financial asset or the financial
liability so that the present value of the payments corresponds to
the accounting value of the asset and the liability, respectively.

Dividend from investments is recognised when final entitlement
to dividend has been attained. This will typically be at the time of
the approval in Annual General Meeting of distribution from the
company concerned. In the cansolidated accounts, however, this
does not apply to investments in associated undertakings which
are measured according to the equity method.

Tax

Tax for the year which comprises current tax and the change in
deferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss account with
the share attributable to the profit/loss of the year, and directly
in the shareholders’ equity with the share attributable to items
entered directly in the equity. Exchange rate adjustments of
deferred tax are included as part of the year’s adjustments of
deferred tax.

Current tax comprises tax calculated on the basis of the expected
taxable income for the year, using the applicable tax rates for the
financial year, and any adjustment of tax for previous years.

Deferred tax is calcutated using the balance sheet liability meth-
od on all temporary differences between the carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes, except differences relating to goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes. Deferred tax is calculated based on
the applicable tax rates for the individual financial years. The
effect of changes in the tax rates is stated in the profit and loss
account unless they are items previously entered directly in the
shareholders’ equity.

A deferred tax provision is made to cover retaxation of losses in

fareign undertakings if shares in the undertakings concerned are
likely to be sold. No deferred tax liabilities regarding investments
in subsidiaries are calculated if the shares are unlikely to be sold
in the short term,

The tax value of losses that are expected with adequate certainty
to be available for utilisation against future taxable income in the
same legal tax unit and jurisdiction is included in the measure-
ment of deferred tax.

FLSmidth & Co. A/S is jointly taxed with all Danish subsidiaries.
All the Danish subsidiaries provide for the Danish tax based on
the current rules with full distribution. Recognition of defer-

red tax assets and tax fiabilities is made in the individual Danish
companies based on the principles described above. The jointly
taxed Danish undertakings are included in the Danish tax payable
on account scheme.

Discontinuing activities

Discontinuing activities are stated as a separate item in the profit
and loss account and consist of the operating income after tax
from the activity concerned and any profits or tosses from fair
value adjustment or disposal of the assets related to the activity.
Costs attributable to the disposal are included in the measure-
ment of profitdoss.

Balance sheet

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised in the balance sheet at cost. Subse-
quently, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated write-
downs. There is no amortisation of goodwill. When recognising
goodwill, it is allocated to the cash generating units as defined
hy the Management. The determination of cash generating units
complies with the managerial structure and the internal financial
control and reporting in the Group.

The carrying value of goodwill is tested for impairment at least
onge a year together with the other long-term assets in the cash
generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated, and it is writ-
ten down to recoverable amount via the profit and toss account
if the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, this repre-
senting the higher of the {fair value of the asset less expected
disposal ¢costs and the value in use. The recoverable amgunt

is generally determined as the present value of the expected
future net cash flows from the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill is allocated. Write-down of goodwill is stated in the
profit and loss account on the line Amortisation and write-down
of intangible assets.

Other intangible assets

Cther intangibie assets with a finite useful life are measured

at cost less accumulated amortisation and write-downs. Other
intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment at least ance a year.

Development costs consist of salaries, depreciation and other
costs that are attributable to development activities.

Clearly defined and identifiable development projects, for which
the technical rate of utilisation, sufficient resources and a po-
tential future market or usefulness in the Group can be demon-
strated and which are intended to be manufactured, marketed



or used, are recognised as completed development projects if
the cost can be determined reliably, and if it is sufficiently certain
that the future earnings or the net selling price will cover pro-
duction, selling and administrative costs plus the development
costs. Other development costs are recognised in the profit and
loss account as the costs are incurred.

Amortisation of completed development projects is charged on
& straight line basis over their estimated useful life. Develop-
ment projects are written down to recoverable amount if lower.
Development projects in progress are tested for impairment at
least once a year.

Amortisation of patents, rights, customer relations and other
intangible assets are charged over the remaining patent or
agreement period or useful life if shorter. The amortisation
profile is systematically based on the expected distribution of
the assets’ future economic benefits. The basis of amortisation is
reduced by write-downs if any.

Amortisation takes place systematically over the estimated useiul
life of the assets which is as follows:

» Development costs, up to 5 years

» Software applications, up to 5 years

» Patents, rights and other intangible assets, up to 20 years

» Customer relations, up to 30 years

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion and write-downs.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials,
direct labour costs and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Depreciation is done on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful life of the assets until they reach the estimated residuat
value, Estimated useful life is as follows:

» Buildings, 20 - 40 years

» Plant and machinery, tools and equipment, 3 — 10 years

+ Fitting up rented premises, up to 5 years

The period of depreciation of buildings used for administrative
purposes may exceed 40 years.

Assets of low acquisition value or short life are expensed to the
profit and loss account in the year of acquisition.

Newly acquired assets and self-constructed assets are depre-
ciated from the time thay come into use. Land is not depre-
ciated. Costs of repair and maintenance of property, plant and
aquipment are recognised in the profit and loss account,

Where acquisiticn or use of the asset places the Group under an
obligation to incur the costs of pulling down or re-establishing
the asset, the estimated costs for this purpose are recognised

as a provision and a part of the cost of the asset concerned,
respectively.

Assets held under a finance lease are measured in the balance
sheet at fair vatue or the present value of future lease payments
at the time of acquisition, if lower. In calculating the present
value, the internal interest rate of the lease agreement is used
as a discounting factor or as an approximate value. Assets held
under a finance lease are depreciated like other Tangible assets
of the Group.

The capitalised residual lease commitment is recognised in the
balance sheet as debt whilst the interest component of the lease
payment is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Far cperating leases, the lease payments are expensed on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial assets

Investments in associated undertakings in the consolidated
accounts

Investments in associated undertakings are measured according
to the equity method. The proportionate share of the net assets
of associated undertakings for accounting purposes is adjusted
for unrealised inter-company profits and losses, and goodwill is
added.

The proportionate share of the undertakings' earnings after tax
and elimination of unrealised proportionate internal profits and
losses and deduction of amortisation of goodwill, if any, is re-
cognised in the profit and loss account. The proportionate share
of all transactions and events entered directly in the associated
company’s shareholders’ equity is recognised in the Group's
shareholders’ equity.

Investments in subsidiaries and associated undertakings

in the parent company accounts

investments in subsidiaries and associated undertakings are mea-
sured at cost. Where the cost exceeds the recoverable amount, a
write-down is made to this lower value.

The cost is written down to the extent that distributed dividend
exceeds the accumulated earnings after the date of acquisition,

Other securities and investments

Other securities and investments, including listed shares are
classified as financial assets, which are measured at fair value
through the profit and loss account. In special cases where the
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value quoted on the stock exchange is considered not to repre-
sent the actual fair value, the shares concerned are carried at
an estimated fair value. Value adjustments are recognised in the
profit and loss account as financial items.

Shares in cement plants acquired in connection with orders
received are classified under Financial assets held for sale which
are measured at fair value, If the fair value is not immediately
ascertainable, the shares are measured at a prudently assessed
value. Value adjustments are recognised directly in the sharehol-
ders’ equity until the shares are sold or a need for write-down

is ascertained. Positive value adjustments are not recognised in
the profit and loss account under financial items until realisation
takes place.

Stocks
Stocks are measured at cost according to the FIFO principle or at
net realisable value, if it is lower.

Work-in-progress and Finished goods are measured at manufac-
turing cost including materiats consumed and labour costs plus
an allowance for production overheads. Production overheads
include operating costs, maintenance and depreciation of produ-
ction plant plus administration and factory management.

In cases where the cost or the production price exceeds the esti-
mated sales price less completion and selling costs, a write-down
is made to such lower net realisable value.

Work-in-progress for third parties

Work-in-progress for third parties is measured according to
the percentage of completion method at the sales value of the
portion of the contract completed less partial invoicing and
invoicing on account. The sales value is measured on the basis
of the stage of completion at the balance sheet date and the
total expected earnings from the individual contract.

The stage of completion for the individual project is normally
calculated as the ratio between the resources spent and the
total budgeted resource requirements. In some projects,
where resource requirements cannot be used as a basis, the
ratio between completed subactivities and the total project is
used instead.

Work-in-progress for third parties where invoicing on account
exceeds the value of the work completed is recognised as
Work-in-progress for third parties under Short-term liabifities.

Contractual prepayments are recognised as Prepayments recei-
ved from customers among Long-term and Short-term liabilities.

An allowance is made for losses on Work-in-progress for third
parties, The allowance is based on individual assessment of the
estimated loss until the work is completed.

Costs deriving from sales work are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the financial year during which they are
incurred, Directs costs in ¢onnection with likely contract
signing are capitalised,

Debtors

Debtors comprise trade debtors, amounts owed from construc-
tion contracts and other debtors. Debtors are ¢ategorised under
loans and receivables, which are financial assets with fixed or de-
terminable payments which are not quoted in an active market
and which are not derivative financial instruments.

Debtors are measured at amortised cost net of allowances for
anticipated losses based on individual assessment.

Bonds and listed shares

Bonds and listed shares are measured and recognised at fair
value on the balance sheet date. Fair value adjustments are
recognised in the profit and loss account as financial items.

Bonds and listed shares are classified under financial assets held
for sale, Financial assets held for sale are financial assets which
are not derivatives, and which are either classified as available
for sale or which can neither be classified as loans and receivab-
les, financial assets which are measured at fair value through the
profit and loss account or financial assets held 1o maturity.

Impairment of long-term assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful

life are tested annually for impairment, the first time being
before the end of the year of acquisition. Ongoing development
projects are also tested annually for impairment.

The carrying amounts of other Long-term assets are reviewed
each year to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable value
of the asset is calculated. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the fair value of the asset less expected disposal costs and
value in use.

Loss on impairment is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or a cash generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount
of the asset or the cash generating unit. Loss on impairment

is recognised in the profit and loss account under the same
heading as the related amaortisation and depreciaticn. Write-
downs are included in amortisation, depreciation and write-
downs in the profit and loss account.

Write-down of goodwill is not reversed, Write-down an ather
assets is reversed to the extent that changes have taken place in
the assumptions and estimates that led to the write-down.



Write-downs are only reversed where the new carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed the carrying amaunt the asset
would have had after depreciation or amortisation if the asset
had not been written down.

Shareholders’ equity

Dividend

Dividend is provided for in the accounts at the time when it is
decided at the Annual General Meeting, the company thereby
having incurred a liability. The dividend which is proposed for

distribution is stated separately in the shareholders’ equity.

Own shares

Own shares are recognised in the balance sheet at zero value,
When buying or selling Own shares, the purchase or selling
amount, as the case may be, plus any dividend is recognised
directly in the Shareholders’ equity among Other reserves.

Share-based payment
The Corporate Management and a number of executive staif are
entitled to share option plans.

Plans classified as equity-settled share options {plan 2003-2005
and plan 2006-2007} are measured at fair value at the time of
allocation and are recognised in the profit and loss account as
staff costs within the period in which the final entitlement to the
options is attained, The counter item is recognised directly in the
Shareholders’ equity.

when the share options are being recognised for the first time,
an estimate is made of the number of options to which the Ma-
nagement and the executive staff are expected to become entit-
led. Subsequent adjustment is made for changes in the estimate
of the number of option entitlements so that the total recogni-
tion is based on the actual number of option entitlements.

The fair value of the options allocated is estimated by means
of the Black Scholes model. The calculation takes into account
the terms and conditions under which the share options are
allocated.

Option plans categorised as cash-settled share options (plan
1998-1999) are measured at the time of allocation and subse-
quently at fair value. Fair value adjustments in the exercise pe-
riod are recognised in the profit and loss account under financial
items. The counter item is recognised under Liabilities.

Employee shares granted in connection with the Group’s 125th
anniversary are considered earned at the time of altocation. The
favourable element of these shares is recognised in the profit
and loss account under the heading of staff costs and is set off
directly against the Shareholders’ equity.

Pension abligations / assets
The Group has signed pension agreements and similar contracts
with most of its employees.

Under contributory pension plans, the employer is required to
contribute a certain amount (for example a fixed sum ar a fixed
percentage of the pay). Under a contributory plan the employees
usually bear the risk with regard to future developments in the
rates of interest, inflation, martality and disability. Payments by

a company into contributory plans are recognised in the profit
and loss account for the period to which they apply and any
outstanding payments are recognised in the balance sheet under
Other liabilities.

Under benefit-based pension plans, the employer is required to
contribute a certain amount (for example a retirement pensian
as a tixed sum or a fixed percentage of the final pay). Under

a benefit-based plan the company usualty bears the risk with
regard to future developments in the rates of interest, inflation,
mortality and disability, Changes in the computation basis result
in a change in the actuarial net present value of the benefits
which the company is to pay in the future under this plan. Net
present value is only calculated for benefits to which the emplo-
yees have become entitled through their employment with the
company so far. The actuarial net present value less the fair value
aof any assets related to the p'an is stated in the balance sheet
under the heading of Pension assets and fiabilities.

Differences between the expected development of pension
assets and liabilities and the realised values are described as ac-
tuarial gains or losses, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
directly in the Shareholders” equity.

Changes in benefits concerning the employees’ former employ-
ment in the company result in a change in the actuarial net
present value, which is considered a historical cost. Historical
costs are charged immediately to the profit and foss account

if the employees have already acquired a right to the changed
benefit. Otherwise, the historical costs are recognised directly in
the Shareholders’ equity.

Provisions

Provisions for warranties

Where after closing the accounts of an order, additional minor
supplies, etc. remain to be effected to complete the order, an
allowance is made for this in the accounts. A portion of the
allowance is transferred to liabilities covering the part of the out-
standing subsupplies whose price and scope is agreed. The ba-
lance of the allowance is transferred to Provisions. The provision
covers estimated own costs of completion, subsequent warranty
supplies and unsettled claims from customers or subsuppliers.
Any Long-term liabilities are discounted to net present value.
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Provisions for restructuring

In the event of planned restructuring of the Group, provision is
only made for liabilities deriving from restructuring which has
been decided at the balance sheet date in accordance with a
specific plan and provided the parties involved have been infor-
med about the overall plan.

Provisions for redundancies
Provisions for redundancy costs are recognised in the profit and
loss account when decided and announced.

Other provisions
Other provisions also include allowances for loss-making con-
tracts and legal disputes, etc.

Mortgage debt and bank loans, etc.

Mortgage debt and bank loans, etc. are recocgnised when

raising the loan at the proceeds received less transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement is made at amortised cost so that the
difference between the proceeds and the nominal value is recog-
nised in the profit and loss account over the period of the loan.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities include holiday pay obligations, taxes and dues
and interest payable.

Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale consist of assets and disposal groups that are
held for sale. Disposal groups are a group of assets that are to be
disposed of by sale or otherwise, together in a single transaction,
and associated liabilities that are transferred through the transac-
tion. Assets are classified as ‘held for sale’ if their carrying value
will primarily be recovered by sale within 12 months in accor-
dance with a formal plan rather than by continued use.

Assets or disposal groups held for sale are measured at the lower
of the carrying value and the fair value less selling costs. Assets
are not depreciated from the time when they are classified as
‘held for sale’.

Impairment losses arising from the initial classification as "held
for sale' and gains or losses from subsequent measurement at
the lower of carrying value and fair value less selling costs are
recognised in the profit and loss account among the items to
which they belong. Gains and losses are disclosed in the notes.

Presentation of assets held for sale and
discontinuing activities

Assets held for sale and Discontinuing activities consist of
activities or companies for which it has been announced that
the activities or companies have been discontinued or are
discontinuing in the Group or closure has been initiated.

Earnings and value adjustments after tax of assets held for safe
and discontinuing activities are presented on a separate line in
the profit and loss account and with comparative figures. In the
notes, turnover, costs and 1ax of the discontinuing activities are
disclosed.

Assets held for sale are presented on a separate line in the
balance sheet as short term assets. Liabilities directly associated
to the assets concerned are presented as short term liabilities in
the balance sheet.

Cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities for
assets held for sale and discontinuing activities appear from
note 1.

Cash flow measurement

The consolidated and parent company cash flow measurements
are presented according to the indirect method and show the
composition of cash flows divided into operating, investing and
financing activities, respectively, and the changes in cash funds
during the year between 1 January and 31 December.

The cash flow measurement is based on Earnings Before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation and Amaortisation (EBITDA).

In the measurement of working capital/loans a distinction is
made between interest-bearing and non-interest-bearing items
plus cash funds.

« Cash funds consist of cash in hand and bank deposits

« Loans represent total interest-bearing debt items less
interest-bearing debtors

» All other non-interest-bearing debtors and debt items are
regarded as working capital

Cash flow from operating activities consists of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA} adjusted
far non-cash and non-paid items, changes in working capital
and payments in respect of provisions, corporation tax and
financial items.



Cash flow from investing activities comprise payments made in
connection with the acquisition and disposal of undertakings
and activities and the acquisition and dispasal of assets,

Cash flow from financing activities comprise payments to and
contributions from owners as well as the raising and repayment
of loans.

The Group’s cash funds mainly consist of money deposited
with banks.

The presentation has been changed in 2007, so that cash flow
for discontinuing activities are included in cash flow from opera-
ting, investing and financing activities. Comparative figures for
2006 have been adjusted accordingly.

Segment information

The information is based on business segments and geographi-
cal markets. The segment information complies with the Group
accounting policies, risks and internal financial control. The
business segments are the Group's primary basis of segmenta-
tion and the geographical markets are the secondary basis of
segmentation.

Long-term assets in the business segment are those used directly
in the operations of the segment, including Intangible assets,
Tangible assets and Investments in associated undertakings. Net
turnover is distributed according to the customers’ geographical
position. In the geographical segment, assets are divided accor-
ding to their physical location.

Short-term assets in the business segment are those used
directly in the operations of the segment, including Stocks,
Trade debtors, Other debtars, Prepayments and Cash funds.

Segment liabilities consist of liabilities deriving from the opera-
tions of the segment concerned, including Trade creditors and
Other creditors.

Segment income and costs consist of transactions between
the segments. Such transactions are determined on market
terms. The transactions are eliminated in connection with the
consolidation.

Financial highlights

Financial highlights are defined and calculated in accordance
with the Danish Society of Financial Analysts’ "Recommendati-
ons and Financial Ratios 2005,

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amaor-
tisation) is defined as the operating income (EBIT) with addition
of the year's amortisation, depreciation and write-down of
intangible and tangible assets and special nan-recurring items.
The definition is changed compared to 2006 where special non-
recurring items were recognised before EBITDA. Comparative
figures for 2006 have been adjusted accordingly.

Financial net debt is defined as NIBD adjusted for cutstanding
guarantees.
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Consolidated profit and loss account
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DKKm 2007 2006
Notes

3 Net turnover 19,967 12,311
7 Production costs 15,695 9,709
Gross profit 4,272 2,602
7 Sales and distribution costs 1,025 738
4+7 Administrative costs 1,216 992
5 Other operating income and costs 69 94
Earnings before special non-recurring items, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 2,100 966
8 Special non-recurring items 6 (13)
17 Depreciation and write-down of tangible assets 119 134
16 Amortisation and write-down of intangible assets 163 44
Earnings before interest and tax {EBIT) 1,824 775
18 Share of earnings of associated undertakings 0 3
6 Financial income 1,031 539
6 Financial costs 978 393
Earnings before tax, continuing activities (EBT) 1,877 924
9 Tax for the year, continuing activities 584 (183)
Profit/loss for the year, continuing activities 1,293 1,107
1 Profit/loss far the year, discontinuing activities 1 25
Profit/loss for the year 1,294 1,132

To be distributed as follows:
FLSmidth & Co. A/S shareholders' share of profit/loss for the year 1,294 1,141
Minority shareholders’ share of profit/loss for the year Y (9)
1,294 1,132

34 Earnings per share (EPS)

Continuing and discontinuing activities 24.7 21.9
Continuing and discontinuing activities, diluted 24.6 21.7
Continuing activities 24.7 21.4
Continuing activities, diluted 24.6 21.2

35 Profit and loss account classified by functions, depreciation and write-downs classified by functions
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DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Earnings before special non-recurring items, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA),
continuing activities 2,100 966
Earnings before special non-recurring items, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA),
discontinuing activities {20) 23
Earnings before special non-recurring items, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 2,080 989
Adjustment for profitsflosses on sale of tangible assets and exchange rate adjustments, elc. (93) (35}
Adjusted earnings before special items, depreciation and amortisation {EBITDA) 1,987 954
10 Change in provisions 113 152
11 Change in working capital (254) 261
Cash flow from operating activities before financial items and tax 1,846 1,367
12 Financial payments received and made 46 93
9 Corporation taxes paid (399} 072
Cash flow from operating activities 1,493 1,288
Cash flow from investing activities
13 Acquisition of undertakings and activities (3.615) (196)
16 Acquisition of intangible assets (62) (33)
17 Acquisition of tangible assets (386) (249)
18 Acquisition of financial assets {12) (15)
14 Disposal of undertakings and activities 206 [
Disposal of tangible assets 37 37
Disposal of financial assets 19 63
Cash flow from investing activities (3.813) {387)
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividend (366) (368)
Capital increase 0 6,161
Acquisition of own shares {16) {6,397}
Disposal of own shares 28 97
15 Changes in ather net interest-bearing receivables/debt 832 {195)
Cash flow from financing activities 478 {702)
Changes in cash funds {1.842) 198
22 Cash funds at 1 January 2,766 2,568
Exchange rate adjustment, cash funds 1 January 33 -
22 Cash funds at 31 December 957 2,766

The cash flow statement cannot be inferred from the published financial information only.
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Cons'.olidated balance sheet

Assets
DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
Completed development projects 26 29
Patents and rights acquired 1,001 6
Goodwill 3,191 13
Customer relations 914 .
Other intangible assets 203 143
16 Intangible assets 5,425 309
Land and buildings 760 605
Plant and machinery 477 395
Operating equipment, fixtures and fittings 200 114
Tangible assets in course of construction 109 105
17 Tangible assets 1,546 1,219
18 Investments in associated undertakings 4 7
18 Other securities and investments 58 47
18 Other financial assets 8 9
27 Pension assets 6 2
19 Deferred tax assets 752 762
Financial assets 828 827
Total long-term assets 7,799 2,355
20 Stocks 1,463 832
22 Trade debtors 4,939 3,087
21 Work-in-progress for third parties 3,072 2,338
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 0 3
22 Other debtors 1,070 338
Prepayments 120 34
Debtors 9.201 5,800
Securities 244 366
22 Cash funds 957 2,766
23 Assets held for sale B 132
Total current assets 11,873 9,896
TOTAL ASSETS 13,672 12,251
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Equity and liabilities

DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
Share capital 1,064 1,064
Echange rate adjustments regarding translation of investments (24) (85)
Exchange rate adjustments regarding hedging transactions 14 (2)
Retained earnings 2,778 1,839
Proposed dividend 372 372
FLSmidth & Co. A/S shareholders’ share of shareholders’ equity 4,204 3,188
Mingrity interests’ share of shareholders’ equity 10 4
Total equity 4,214 3,192
i9 Deferred tax liabilities 688 28
27 Pension liabilities 126 97
24 Other provisions 1.077 808
25 Mortgage debt 386 149
25 Bank loans 1,829 0
25 Financial lease commitment 10 12
25 Prepayments from customers 681 616
Long-term liabilities 4,797 1,710
Mortgage debt 7 50
Bank loans 481 79
Financial lease commitment 3 3
Prepayments from customers 3,178 2,194
21 Work-in-progress for third parties 2,206 1,586
Trade creditors 2,464 1,859
Corporation tax payable 299 129
26 Other liabilities 1,288 676
24 Qther provisions 699 656
Deferred income 36 112
10,661 7,344
23 Liabilities regarding assets held for sale 0 5
Current liabilities 10,661 7,349
Total liabilities 15,458 9,059
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,672 12,251
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DKKm Share  Exchangerate  Exchange ate Retained Proposed RASmidth Minority Totat
Capital  adj n .| ings dividend & Co. ASS interests’
translation of re hedgin shareholders’ thare
nvestments  transactions thare
Shareholders’ equity at 1 January 2006 1,064 (122) 17z 1,213 372 2,644 9 2,648
Total income for the year (90) 8 1,126 1,044 1,044
Capital increase due to exchange of shares 477 5,684 6,161 6,161
Capita! reduction due 1o cancellation of own shares (477) 437 0 4]
Dividend paid {368) (368) (368}
Dividend, own shares 4 3] 4] 0
Share-based payments, share options 7 7 7
Share-based payments, employee shares 37 37 37
Proposed dividend {372} 372 1] o
Disposat of own shares 60 60 60
Acquisition of own shares (6,397) (6,397) (6,397}
Transfer between reserves 327 {127) 0 0
Shareholders” equity at 31 December 2006 1,064 (85} (2) 1,839 372 3.188 4 3,192
Total income for the year 61 16 1,281 1,358 6 1,364
Dividend paid {366} (366} {366}
Dividend, own shares 6 {6} 0 0
Share-based payments, share options 10 10 10
Share-based payments, employee shares 4 2 2
Proposed dividend (372) 372 o] 4]
Disposal of own shares 28 28 28
Acquisition of gwn shares (16) (16) {16}
Sharcholders’ equity at 31 December 2007 1,064 (24) 14 2,778 372 4,204 10 4,214
See the parent company shareholders' equity
regarding capital structure page 93.
The total income for the year Is specified as fol-
lows:
Exchange rate adjustments regarding translation of
investments (30} (90) 1 (89)
Transferred to the profit and loss account regarding
hedging of future transactions 4) {4) 4}
Transferred to work-n-progress regarding hedging
of purchase and sates orders 12 12 12
Additions and disposals of monirity interests 0 3 8
Recognised actuarial gains and losses on benefit-
based pensions plans* 5 5 5
Value adjustment of securities available for sale {14) (14) (14
Other shareholders’ equity adjustments (6) (6) 5
Tax an shareholders” equity movements, net 0 ]
Recognised directly in the shareholders” equity 0 (a0) 8 {15) 0 N 9 {88)
Profitioss for the year 1.141 1,141 {9) 1.132
Total incoma for the year 2006 0 (90) 8 1,126 0 1.044 0 1,044
Exchange rate adjustments regarding translation of
investments 61 61 61
Transferred to work-in-progress regarding hedging
of purchase and sales orders 16 16 16
Additiors and disposals of minority interests 0 [ 6
Recognised actuanial gains and losses on benefit-
based pension plans* (25) (25} {25)
Value adjustment of securities available for safe 4) @) (4)
Other shareholders’ equity adjustments {4} (4} 4)
Tax on shareholders’ equity movements, net 20 20 20
Retognised directly in the shareholders’ equity 0 81 16 {13} 1] 64 6 70
Profitioss for the year 1,294 1,294 1,294
Total income for the year 2007 0 61 16 1,281 [ 1,358 [ 1,364

*At 31 Decernber 2007 accumulated actuarial losses of DKK 129m have been recognised directly in the shareholders’ equity {at 31 Dec. 2006: DKK 104m)
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

1.

Breakdown of the Group by segments for 2007

DKKm Cement Minerals Cembrit Other  Continuing Discon-  FLSmidth
Holding companies activities tinuing Group
et activities «
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover
Denmark 67 3 433 38 541 1 542
Rest of Scandinavia 56 137 207 20 420 0 420
Rest of Europe 1.120 617 770 56 2,563 52 2,615
North America 2,803 1,445 9 6 4,264 ] 4,264
South America 500 1,190 0 2 1,662 6 1,698
Africa 2,937 969 1] 1 3,907 1 3,908
Australia 29 551 a 4 584 t 585
Asia 4,566 1,414 a0 16 5.996 42 6,038
External turnover 12,078 6,327 1,419 143 19,967 103 20,070
Intercompany turnover 132 103 0 (239) 0 ] 0
Net turnover 12,210 6,430 1.419 (92) 19,967 103 20,070
Production costs 9,865 5,054 945 (163} 15,655 93 15,788
Gross profit 2,345 1,376 474 i 4,272 10 4,282
Sales-, distr.- and admin. costs and other operating items 1,130 629 337 76 2172 30 2,202
Earnings before spectal non-recurring items,
depr. and amort. (EBITDA) 1,215 747 137 1 2,100 (20) 2,020
Special non-recurring items o] (63) 0 69 6 63 69
Depreciation of tangible assets 654 37 49 5 155 4 159
Write-downs of tangible assetsAreversal} 4] 0 (36) 0 (36) 52 16
Amortisation of intangible assets 67 94 0 2 163 [¢] 163
Write-downs of intangible assets Q 0 0 0 0 0 4]
Earnings befare interest and tax (EBIT) 1,084 553 124 63 1,824 {13} 1.811
Share of profitloss of associated undertakings after tax 0 0 0 0 0 o} Q
Net financial income and costs a2 (99) (7N 77 53 12 65
Earnings before tax (EBT) 1,176 454 107 140 1,877 {1} 1876
Tax for the year n 179 10 24 584 {2} 582
Profit/loss for the year 805 275 97 116 1,253 1 1,294
CASH FLOW
Cash flow from operating activities 1,184 180 55 i 1,450 43 1,493
Acquisition and disposal of undertakings and activities {13} (3,602) 1] 21 {3.494) 85 {3,409)
Acquisition of tangible assets (188} 7 (107) {14} (386) [ (386)
Other invesiments, net {44} 2 {2) 26 (18) 1] {18}
Cash flow fram investing activities (245) (3.677) {109) 133 {3.898) BS {3.813)
Cash flow from operating and investing activities 939 (3,497} (54) 164 (2,448) 128 {2.320)
Cash flow from financing activities (454) 5,201 72 {4,304) 515 {37) 478
WORKING CAPITAL (736) 1,028 226 96 614 51 665
NET INTEREST-BEARING RECEIVABLES/(DEBT) 3,102 (381) {128} {4,397) {1.804) 21 {1.583)
ORDER INTAKE 15.78% 8,543 271) 24,061 70 24,13%
ORDER BACKLCG 12,265 8,777 730) 25,312 49 25361
BALANCE SHEET
intangible assets 124 5,240 53 8 5,425 5425
Tangible assets 598 318 477 183 1,546 1,546
Financial assets 464 136 a6 182 828 828
Current assets 10,240 6,830 804 {6,009} 11,885 11,865
Assets held for sate 8 0 0 0 8 8
Total assets 11,434 12,524 1,380 (5.666) 19,672 19.672
Consolidated shareholders’ equity 2,488 5,301 269 (3,844) 4,214 4,254
Liabilities 8,946 7.223 1,111 {1.822) 15,458 15,458
Liabilities regarding assets held for sale o] 0 1] 4] 1] 0
Total equities and liabilities 11,434 12,524 1,380 {5.666) 19.672 19,672
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Contnbution ratic 19.2% 21.4% 33.4% {83.7%) 21.4% nia 21.3%
EBITDA ratio 10.0% 11.6% 9.7% (1.1%) 10.5% nla 10.4%
EBIT ratio 8.9% 8.6% B.7% {68.5%) 5.1% nla 9.0%
EBT ntio 96% Z1% 7.5% (152.2%) 5.4% nla 9.3%
Number of employees, 31 December 4,975 3,290 1,098 3 5,366 11 9377

+ Other companies etc, consist of Densit, companies with no activities, real estate companies, eliminations and the parent company.
» Discontinuing activities consist of activities for which it has been annaunced that they are discontinued or are being discontinued in the Group and where dlosure
has been initiated. Discontinuing activities consist of the turbo and marine activities in Maag Gear and expensing of activities sold in previous years.



1.

Breakdown of the Group by segments for 2006

OKKm Cement Minerats Cembrit Other  Continuing Discon-  FLSmidth
Holding companies activities tinuing Group
ete activities »
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover
Denmark 38 1 394 29 462 0 462
Rest of Scandinavia 23 27 168 10 228 8 236
Rest of Europe 915 164 628 74 1,781 127 1,908
North America 1,633 717 10 (2) 2,358 27 2,385
South America 196 562 ¢ 4 762 5 767
Africa 1,292 655 0 1 1,548 4 1,952
Australia 38 283 0 1 322 1 323
Asia 3,610 805 16 19 4,450 42 4492
External turnover 7,745 3,214 1,216 136 12,311 214 12,525
Intercompany turnover {62) 62 0 1] [ 0 [
Net turnover 7,683 3276 1216 136 12311 14 12,525
Production costs. 5,164 2,671 804 10 9,709 174 5,880
Gross profit 1,519 605 412 66 2,602 43 2,645
Sales-, distr.- and admin. costs and other operating items 985 308 284 59 1,636 20 1,656
Earnings before special non-recurring items,
depr. and amort, (EBITDA) 534 297 128 7 966 23 989
Special nan-tecurring items o (13) 0 o] (13} [ (13}
Depreciation of tangible assers 61 20 46 7 134 12 145
Wite-downs of tangible assets / (reversal) [4] 1] 0 4] 4] 4] 4]
Amortisation of intangible assets 32 [ 1 1 a0 [} 40
Write-downs of intangible assets 4 1] 0 0 4 1] 4
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 437 258 81 (1) 75 11 786
Share of profit and loss of associated undertakings after tax 0 o 0 o] 1] 3 3
Net financial income and costs 162 11 {12) {12) 149 11 160
Earnings before tax (EBT) 549 269 69 (13) 924 25 849
Tax for the year {54) 67 {51) (145) (183) 0 {183)
Profit/loss for the year 653 202 120 132 1.107 25 1,132
CASH FLOW
Cash flow from operating activities 667 49% 90 117 1313 {85} 1,288
Acquisition and disposal of undertakings and activities 1] {(174) (22) o] {196} L} (196}
Acquisition of tangible assets (150) {37) (60} (2) {249) a {24%)
Other investments, net 42 9 4 (7} 48 10 S8
Cash flow from investing activities (308) (202} {78) (1] (397) 10 {387)
Cash flow from operating and investing activities 559 297 12 108 976 75) 901
Cash flow from financing activities 136 {110) (5) {641) (620} {82) {702)
WORKING CAPITAL {617) 28 197 {43) (435) (435)
NET INTEREST-BEARING RECEIVABLESH{DEBT) 2,872 38 15 {423) 2,847 2,847
ORDER INTAKE 12,649 5,885 18,534 18,534
ORDER BACKLOG 13,531 4,733 18.264 18,264
BALANCE SHEET
Intangible assets 143 118 45 3 309 309
Tangible assets 437 192 n 169 .19 1,219
Financial assets 562 a3 136 86 827 827
Current assets 1.873 2,079 k7l {909} 9,764 9,764
Assets held for sale 106 o o 26 132 132
Total assets L5 2,432 1,213 {625) 12,251 12,251
Consolidated shareholders’ equity 2,554 615 342 (319} 3,192 3,192
Liabdities 6,612 1817 933 {306) 9,054 9,054
Liabihties regarding assets held for sate 5 "] 0 0 5 5
Total equities and liabilities 9,11 2,432 1,273 {625) 12,251 12,251
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Contribution ratio 19.8% 18.5% 33.9% 48.5% 21.1% nfa 21.1%
EBITDA ratio 7.0% 9.1% 10.5% 51% 7.8% nla 7.9%
£BIT ratic 5.7% 7.9% 6.7% (0.7%) 6.3% nfa 6.3%
EBT ratio 7.8% 8.2% £ 7% (9.6%) 7.5% nia 7.6%
Kumber of employees, 31 December _ 4101 1,613 963 71 6,748 114 6,862

» Other companies etc. consist of Densit, companies with no activities, real estate companies, eliminations and the parent company
» Discontinuing activities consist of activities for which it has been announced that they are discontinued or are being discontinued in the Group and where closure
has been initiated. Discontinuing activities consist of the turbg and marine activities in Maag Gear and expensing of activities sold in previous years.
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Notes o the consolidated accounts

2. Segment reporting, geographical 5. Other operating income and costs
DKKm 2007 2006 DKKm 2007 2006
Turnover Other operating income
Denmark 541 462 Gaovernment subsidies and gther grants 6 4
Rest of Scandinavia 420 228 Rent ingome 15 14
Rest of Europe 2,563 1,781 Royalties, etc. 25 21
North America 4,264 2,358 Profit &n dispasal of fixed assets* n 29
South America 1,692 762 QOther income n 33
Alrica 3,90 1,948 108 o1
Austratia 584 322 Other operating costs
Asia 5,996 4,450 Losses on disposal of fed assets 3 1
19,967 12.311 Royalties, etc. 3 4
Assets Other costs 33 2
Denmark 6,085 6,098 . 39 7
Rest ¢f Scandinavia 92 96
Rest of Evrope 3,599 1,987 Total other operating income and costs 69 94
North America 7.456 1,943
Seuth America 327 137 *} The profit on dispesal of fixed assets in 2007 includes the profit from the
Adrica 392 344 sale of land and buildings at DKK 2tm derivinrg from the_sale of property in
Australia 365 234 Aalborg, Denmark. The profit on d§995a| of fixed assets in 2006 includes the
Asia 1356 1412 prafit fro_m :he_sa]e o_f land gnd buildings at DXK 11m deriving from the sale
* d of an office building in Brazil.
12,251
Capital expenditures
Denmark 10 71
Rest of Scandinavia 2 1 H sl s
Reat of Lurope 143 o 6. Financial income and costs
North America 78 29
South America 4 3 DKKm 2007 2006
Adrica 4 3 . .
Australia 8 17 Financial income ) o
Asiz 1 a3 Interest receivabte and other financial income from
50 297 financial assets not measured at fair value 122 99
Capital gains from financial assets available for sale 17 18
Foreign exchange gains 852 422
. E ) 539
Net turnover Financial costs .y
Interest payable and other financial costs from
tinancial liabilities not measured at fair value 93 28
DKKm 2007 2006 Share-based payment in respect of employees who
have left the Group 0 12
Project sales 14,470 7.578 Interest regarding financial lease eommitments 1 1
Sales of parts and services 3,529 2,973 Foreign exchange losses B84 152
Building materials 1,568 1,360 978 393
18,367 12,311
Income recognition criteria
Income recognised when invoiced 6.853 4079
Income recognised according to the 7. Staff costs
percentage-of -completion method 13,114 8232
L1367 12311 XK 2007 2006
Wages, salaries and fees 2,328 1,585
Fee to parent company auditors appointed ::lansion contributions and.sodal security costs, etc. 300 224
. re-based payment, option plans 10 7
at the Annual General Meeting Share-based payment, employee share plan 2 e}
Other staff costs 242 43
DKKm 2007 208 2882 189
The amounts are induded in the itemns:
Deloitte Proguction costs 1,709 1,143
Auditing 16 " Sales and distnbution costs 523 272
Qther services 38 7 Adeministrative costs 650 481
54 18 2,882 1,856
For futher details concerning rermuneration of the
Other services consist of due diligence in connection with acquisitions and Managernent and the Board see note 36 on refated
other accounting and tax-related consuttancy. parties,
Number of employees at 31 Decembaer . .han 6,862



7. Staff costs (continued)

Share options

The Management and a number of executive afficers in the Group have
been granted options ta purchase 528,702 shares in the company at a set
price (strike price).

Equity-settled plans (Plan 2003-2005 and plan 2006~2007)

The share aption plans for 2003-2005 and 2006-2007 are equity-settled
share-based payment plans. The value of the options is recogrised in the
profit and loss account under staff casts on a linear basis from the time of
allocation to the first time of acquisition, which means that at the time of
exercising the opticn no more recognition in the profit and loss account
takes place.

Specification of outstanding options:

Number of options Manage- Other Total
ment  executive
staff

Cutstanding options 1 January 2006 180,000 730,000 910,000

Exercised 2003 plan (40,000)  (10,000) {50,000)
Exercised 2004 plan (50,000) (400,000)  (450,000)
Lapsed (10,000} {16,000
Allocated for 2006

(issued 17 August 2006} 36,000 170,000 206,000
Qutstanding options 31 Decernber 2006 126,000 480,080 606,000
Exercised of 2005 plan (240,000)  (240,000)
Allocated for 2006

{issued 22 August 2007) 24,800 120,700 145,500
Gutstanding options

31 December 2007 150,800 360,700 511,500

Number of options that are exercisable
at 31 December 2007 50,000 70,000 160,000

Total fair value of outstanding
options DKKm

At 31 December 2007 55 109 164
At 31 December 2006 29 107 136
DKK 2007 2006
Average weighted fair value per option 320.78 22408
Average weighted strike price per option 229.44 148.34
Average price per share at the time of exercising

the option 394.66 251.40

In 2007, the recognised fair value of share options in the consolidated profit
and loss account amounts to DKK 10m (2¢06: DKK 7m).

In calculating average weighted fair value and strike price per option the
yearly dwidend during the exerdise period is set at DKK 7.

Year of allocation, strike price and exercise period for the individual
allecations are as follows:

Year of Strike Excercise Allocated Lapsed Exerdsed Notexer
allocation  price period cised

2004 63.13 2007-2008 500,000 (20,000} {450,000) 20,000
59.92 2005-2009
55,52 20092010

2005 96,48 2007-2008 380,000
95,27 2008-2009
93.9% 200%-2010
92,63 2010-2011

2006 20%.00 2003-2010 206,000 0
202.00  2010-2011
195,00 2011-2012

2007 43400 2010-2011 145,500 o 0 145,500
427.00 20131-2012
420,00 2012-2013

0 (240,000} 140,000

0 206,000

The calculated fair values in connection with allocation are based on the
Black-Scholes model for valuation of options,

The calculation of fair values of outstanding share options at the time of alto-
cation js based on the following assumptions:

Allocated Allocated in

in 2007 2006
Average price per share 455,00 230.00
Strike price per share 455.00 230.00
Expected volatility 26.15% 37.98%
Expected life 412yars 4172 years
Expected dividend per share DKK 2 DKK 3
Risk-free interest 4.4% 4.0%
Number af share options allocated 145,500 206,000
Fair value per option, DKK 135.60 87.58
Total fair value, DKKm 20 18

The expecied volatility is based an the histarical volatility {calculated as the
weighted average residual life of shere options allocated) adjusted for expected
changes due to publically available informatien.

The strike prices for allocations in 2003 - 2005 are increased annually by &
per cent. The annual increase, hawever, is limited by the dividend declared at
the latest Annual General Meeting pricr to the half-yearly report in question
5o that each dividend krane (DKX) is deducted from the calculated 6 per cent
increase. Non-exercised options lapse if the holder ceases 10 be employed by
the Group.

Cash-settled plan (1998-1999)

The oid plan is categorised as a cash-setiled plan as it entitles employees to
choose differential settlement in cash. The value of opticns calkulated accor-
ding to the Black-Scholes medet is recognised in the profit and loss account
under Financial items and a provision is made in the balance sheet under
Other liabilities. The amount is adjusted for actual exercise value. The year's
<ost amounted to DKK -1m (2006: DKK 12m).

Specification of cutstanding cptions:

Number of options Manage- Other Total
ment  executive
staff
Options allocated 1 January 2006 10.586 120,030 130,616
Exercised (10,586) {93,40%)  {103,887)
Lapsed plus correction of previous years 1] 15,454 15,454
Outstanding options 31 December 2006 v} 42,083 42,083
Exercised {2,729 {1,738)
Lapsed (17,152} (17,152}
Outstanding options 31 December
2007 0 17,202 17,202

Number of options that are exercisable a1
31 December 2007 Q 17,202 17,202

Total fair value of sutstanding
options DKKm

At 31 December 2007 ] 7 7
At 31 December 2006 ] 9 9
DKK 2007 2006
Average weighted fair value per option 381.96 211.85
Average weighted strike price per option 139.00 132.37
Average price per share at the time of

exercising the option 456.71 238.16

Year of allocation, strike price and exercise period for the individual
allocations are as follows :

Yearof  Strike Excercise Allocated  Lapsed Excercised Not exer

allocation  price period dsed
1995 135 2002-2007 236,797 {58,295} {178,502) 4]
1999 138 2003-2008 152,580 {36,833} {98,545) 17,202
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8. Special non-racurring items

10. Change in provisions

DKKm 2007 2006 DKXm 2007 2006
Recognised negative goodwill regarding acquisition Pensions and similar obligations (23) 87
of KQCH Transpartiechnik 5 1] Other prowisions 136 65
Expensing of acquisition price allocations to stocks 13 152
in connection with business acquisitions (68 {13
Profitdoss from disposal of undertakings and
activities ] 0
5 B} 11.change in working capital
Foltawing the acquisition of GLEV Process and RAHCO International Ing., fair
value adjustments of stocks amounting to DKK 167m were made. In con- DXKm 2007 2006
nection with the subsequent realisation of the stocks, recognition of these fair
value adjustments in the profit and loss account is separated from ordinary Stocks {209) (202}
cost of sales items (production costs) and expensed as special non-recurring Trade debtors 12,224} {850)
items. Work-in-progress and prepayments 1,193 890
For a statement of profitdoss from disposal of undertakings and activities, Trade creditors 1,026 341
please see note 14. Change in other debtors and other liabilities {40} 82
__f(2s4_ 261
9. Tax for the year 12. Financial payments received and made
DXKm 2007 2006 DKKm 2007 2006
Tax for the year . R R
Cutrent tax on the profitdoss for the year a1y 179 Financial payments received 1.541 482
Withholding taxes 15 0 Financial payments made {1.455) 389}
Deferred tax adjustments 50 (76) 48 L
Adjustment of tax rate on deferred tax 60 8
Adjustment regarding previous years, deferred taxes 28 0
Adjustment regarding previous years, permanent
taxes (4) 6
Qther adjustments 16 o]
Tax for the year on tontinuing activities 584 (183)
Earnings before tax of continuing activities 1,877 924
Earnings before tax of discontinuing activities (1) 25
1,876 949
Reconciliation of tax
Tax according to Danish tax rate 469 266
Varianee in the tax rates in non-Danish subsidiary
undertakings relative to 25% i3 45
Non-taxable incame and non-deductible costs (63} {63)
Variance in tax assets valued at nil (58) (434)
Variance due 1o adjustment of tax rate 80 8
Adjustments regarding previous years, deferred tax 28 0
Adjustments regarding previous years, permanent
1axes @) o
withhotding taxes ¥5 0
Dther adjustments 16 {5}
4 (1m3)

Tax paid in 2007 amounts to DKK 399m {2004: DKK 172m).



13. Acquisition of undertakings and activities in 2007

Share  Voting share Qwnership

Name of undertaking acquired Primary activity  Acquisition date acquired acnuired interest Voting share
GLAV Process Minerals 10 August 2007 100% 100% 100% 100%
KOCH Transporttechnik Minerals 1 January 2007 100% 100% 100% 100%
RAHCO International Inc. Minerals 2 April 2007 100% 100% 100% 100%
FLS Automation ltaly Cement ¥ luly 2007 20% 50% 60% 50%
Autec Spol. Sro. Cement 9 Novernber 2007 65% 55% 100% 100%
Cembrit CZ Cembrit Helding 31 January 2007 5% 5% 96% 96%
DKKm GL&Y Process | Other Tetal
Carrying amount Adjustments at Falr value adjusted | Carrying amount Adjustments at Fair value adjusted | Falr value adjusted
before fair value  opening balance before fairvalue  opening balance apening balance
adjustment sheet adjustment sheet shest
Completed development
projects 5 - 5 - - - 5
Patents and rights accusired 697 361 1,058 S 52 57 1,115
Customer retations - 826 926 5 H 431
Other intangible assets - 124 124 4 4 128
Tangible assets 86 - 86 20 1 21 107
Financial assets Fa | - 71 - - - n
Stocks 298 161 459 13 & 15 478
Debtors 1,095 - 1.095 34 - 34 1,129
Cash funds 1,562 - 1,562 13 - 13 1,575
Minority interests - - - {6) - (6} 3]
Provisions, including deferred tax (246) {554) {800} {9) (6} {15) {815)
Loans {1,758) - {1,758) {5) - {s} {1,763)
Other liabikiti (810} - {810} (15) - (15} {825)
Net assets 1.000 1.018 2,018 50 62 "2 1,130
Goodwill 3,004 64 3,068
Recognised negative goodwill - (5} {5)
Shareholders” quity
transterred from
investments in asseciated - (3) {3)
undertakings
Cost 5022 168 5,190
Cash funds acquired (1,562) {13} {1,575)
Net cash effect, acquisiti 3,460 155 3,615
Specification of net cash effect:
Purchase price 3,385 185 3,540
Direct acquisition costs 75 o 75
Net cash effect 3,460 155 3,615

GLA&V Process (FLSmidth Dorr-Oliver Eimeo and FLSmidth Krebs)

Groupe Lapidrre & Verreault Inc. {GL&V Process) is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of the Minerals segment, providing separation technology for
the metal and minerals indusiry. GL&Y Process consists of the companies Dorr-Oliver Eimco and Krebs Engineers, GL&V Process was consolidated effective 10 August
2007. Adjustments of intangible assets at fair value consist of customer relations, trademarks, technology and order backleg. Non-allocated purchase price amounting
to DKK 3,004m is recognised as goodwill and represents expected sates and cost synergies. The GL&V Process business is included in the consolidated accounts with 3
turnover of DKK 1,199m and earnings after tax of DKK -129m.

OTHER

KOCH Transporttechnik (FLSmidth KOCH)

Based in Germany KOCH Transpartiechnik is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of the Minerals segment, providing materials handling systems. The
company was consolidated effective 1 January 2007. Goodwilt after fair value adjustments amounts ta OKK -5m which is recognised as incame under special non-
recurring items, The company is induded in the consalidated accounts with a turnever of DKK 486m and earnings after tax of DKK -22m,

RAHCO International Inc. (FLSmidth RAHCO)

Based in the USA RAHCQ Internationa! Inc. is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of the Minerals segment, providing materials handling systems. The
cormparty was consolidated effective 2 Apnl 2007. Non-aflocated purchase price amounting to DXX 51m i recognised as goodwill and represents expecied synergies.
The company is included in the consolidated accounts with a turnover of DXK 214m and earnings after tax of DKK 23m.

FLS Automation italy

Based in ltaly, FLS Automation faly is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of its Cement segment, providing electrical systems, etc. The company has
untit now been recognised as an associated undertaking, and following the acquisition it is fully consolidated in the accounts. No purchase price allocation has taken
place when consolidating the assets and liabilities, because in the Group opinion the carrying amounts express the market value of identifiable assets and kabilities.
The company is intluded in the consolidated accounts with a turnover of DKK Bm and earnings after tax of DKK -2m.

Autec Spal. 5.r.o.

Based in the Czech Republic, Autec Spol. 5.r.0. is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of the Cement segment, providing electrical systems, etc,

The company has until now been recognised as an associated undertaking, and following the acquisition it is fully consolidated in the accounts. No purchase price allo-
cation has taken place when consolidating the assets and liabilities, because in the Group's opinion the ¢arrying ameunts express the market value of identifiable assets
and liabilives. The company is induded in the consolidated accounts with a turnover of DKK Omn and #arnings after tax of DKK -3m.

Cembrit CZ

Based in the Czech Republic, Cembrit CZ is a member of the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is a production unit in the Cembrit Holding segment,The acquisition consists
of & unilatesal capital increase by Cembrit Holding. The capital increase has increased goodwill by DKK Sm. The ¢company is included in the consolidated accounts with
a turnaver of DKK 127m and earnings after tax of DKK 24m.

Turnover and earnings on a full-year basis
If the undertakings acquired in 2007 had been consolidated at 1 January 2007, the turncver and the earnings after tax of these undertakings would have been includ-
ed in the consolidated accounts at DKK 3.900m and DKK -204m, respectively,

Other activities

Eternit South Eastern Eurape Holding GmbH, which is 3 member of the LSmidth & Co. Group and i a production unit in the Cembrit Holding segment was included
proportionately at 50% in the consolidated accounts for 2006. Since the company’s opening balance theet was provisianal at the time of presenting the accounts, in
the 2007 financial year some minor adjustments were made in the opening balance sheet. No goodwill has been included.

75



76

)

AN

"

otes to the corsoidated accounts

13. Acquisition of undertakings and activities in 2006

Share  Voting share Ownership

Name of undertaking acquired Primary activity Acquisition date acquired acquired interest Voting share
Excel Foundry and Machine Inc. Minerals 1 July 2006 10G% 100% 100% 100%
Excel Crusher Technologies LLC Minerals 1 July 2006 49% 49% 100% 100%
IBS BY Cembrit Holding 1 October 2006 100% 100% 100% 100%
SFS 5.0 Cembrit Holding 1 October 2006 100% 100% 100% 100%
Eternit South Eastern Ewrope Holding GmbH Cembyrit Holding 27 December 2006 50% 50% 50% 50%
DKKm Extel Foundry and Machine and Other Total
Excel Crusher Technologies
Carrying amount  Adjustments at  Fair vabue adjusted | Carrying amount Adjustments at Fair value | Fair value adjusted
before fair vahue opening balance before fair value  adjusted opening pening balance
adjustment sheet adjustment batance sheet sheet
Intangible assets - 44 44 - - - a4
Tangible assets 44 30 74 6 - 3 80
Financial assets - - - - - - \]
Stocks 67 3 78 6 - & 84
Debtors 30 2 32 7 - 7 39
Cash funds 2 - 2 6 - 6 8
Minority interests o] - ] - - - n
Loarrs {52} - {52) - - - (52}
Other liabilities {26) - (26) {12} - (12) (38)
Met assets 58 87 145 12 0 13 158
Goodwill 3 15 46
Cost 176 28 204
Cash funds acquired [#]] (&) 8
Net cash effect, acquisiti 174 22 196
Specification of net cash effect;
Purchase price 174 22 196
Direct acquisition costs 0 O [
Net cash effect 174 22 196

Excel Foundry and Machine, Inc, and Excel Crusher Technologies, LLC (FLSmidth Excel Inc. and FLSmidth Excel LLO)

Based in the US, Excel Foundry and Machine and Excel Crusher Technologies belong to the FLSmidth & Co. Group as part of FLSmidth Mirerals. The former of the two
provides services and spares and the latter minerals technology. Excef Foundry and Machine has been ¢onsolidated as from 1 July 2006, whilst Excel Crusher Technatogies
has been consolidated since the acquisition of the majority interest in September 2005. Non-allocated purchase price in 2006 amounts to DKK 31m and is recognised as
goodwill which represents the anticipated synergies deriving from the acquisitions. The company operations are included n the consolidated accounts with a tumover of
DKK 156m and earnings after tax of OXK -15m, Excel Foundry and Machine contributing operations for the second half of 2006 with a turnover of DXK 118m and ear-
nings after tax of DKK 5m.

I1BS 8.V. (Cembrit IBS B.V)

Based in Holland 185 (nternational Building Supplies) bekongs to the FLSmidth & Co. Group as part of Cembrit Holding, serving as # sales unit. The company has been
consalidated as from 1 October 2006. Na purchase price allocation was made when recognising the assets and liabilities in connection with the acquisition at 1 October
2006, because in the Group's gpinion the carrying amounts truly reflect the market values of identifiable assets and liabilities, Mon-aflocated purchase price related to the
acquisition amounts to DKK 14m and is recognised as goodwall reflecting the anticipated synergies accruing from the acquisition, The company’s operations in the fourth
quarter of 2006 are induded in the consolidated accounts, turnover amounting to DKK ?m and earmings after tax DKK 1m.

SFS s.r.o. (Cembrit 5FS s.r.0.)

Based in Slovakia SFS (Stredne a Fasddne Systémy) belongs to the FLSmidth & Co. Group and is part of Cembrit Holding, serving as a sales unit. The company has been
consolidated as from 1 October 2006. No purchase price allocation was made when recognising the assets and liabilities in connection with the acquisition at t October
2006, because in the Group's opinion the carrying amaunis truly reflect the market vatues of identifiable assets and liabilities. Non-allocated purchase price related ta the
acquisition amounts to DKK 1m and is recognised as goodwill reflecting the anticipated synergies accruing from the acquisition. The company’s operations in the fourth
guarter of 2006 are included in the consolidated accounts, turnover amounting 1o DKX tm and earnings CKK Om.

Eternit South Eastern Europe Holding GmbH

Eternit South Eastern Eurape Holding GmbH serves as a holding company of a joint venture farmed wath Etemit-Werke Ludwig Hatschek AG in Austria. The 50 per cent
joint venture interest in the company is induded in the FLSmidth & Co. Group as part of Cembrit Holding, acting as a production and sales unit. The joint venture interest
in the company has been consolidated pro rata as from 27 Decemnber 2006. The recogrition of the pro rata share of the company’s balance sheet a1 the end of the 2006
financial year is provisional. An essentially full allocation of the purchase price to identifiable assets and habilities is expected. The joint venture interest in the company did
not contribute acthities in 2006.

Turnover and earnings on a full-year basis
if the undertakings acquired in 2006 had been consolidated as at 1 January 2006, the turnover and the earnings after tax of these undertakings would have been induded
in the consolidated accounts at DKK 315m and DKK 17m, respectively.

Acguisitions after the balance sheet date

FLSmidth & Co. expects to complete the acquisition of KOCH Transperttechnik during the 15t quaner of 2007. KOCH Transporttechnik GmbH wilk be included in the
FLSmidth & Co. Group as a provider of materials handling systems in the Minerals segment. Reference Is made to note 13, Acquisition of undertakings and activities in
2007, regarding the transaction made.



14. Disposal and discontinuation of undertakings and activities

DXKm Maag Gear turbo Densit 2007 2006
and marine gear
activities Total
Intangible assets 0 2 2 [\]
Tangible assets 10 18 28 1
Financiel assets 0 1 1 10
Stocks 5 13 18 2
Debtors 15 54 69 "
Securities ] 0 0 7
Cash funds 4] 4 4 0
Prowisions ¢ o 0 (3)
Liabilities 0 {48) (48) noy
Mingrity interests 4] 0 0 3
Net assets 30 44 74 15
Profitloss on disposal of undertakings and activities 132 9
Sales amount in cash 206 3
Profit on disposal of undertakings and activities 136 4
Loss on disposal of undertakings and activities () (12)
ProfitAess, adjustment for disposals in previous years 0 (1)
Effect on profit and loss account 132 (3)

Profitloss on disposal of undertakings and activities shown in the prafit and loss account is stated at the average rate of exchange and cannat therefore be directly
recongiled, Prafitloss an disposal of undertakings and activities is not subject to tax. Tax for the year is affected by the dissolution of tax items regarding disposal of

undertakings which have previously been recognised in the shareholders™ equity.

Profittoss on disposal of undertakings and activities is induded in both continuing and discontinuing activities.

15. Changes in other net interest-bearing receivables/{debt)

DOKKm 2007 2006
Net interest-bearing receivables/{debt), 1 January 2,847 2,600
Addition of undertakings (249) {52)
Disposal of undertakings 4 1)
Changes in interest-bearing cash funds (1,842) 198
Changes in other interest-bearing receivables (2,302} 185
Exchange rate adjustments, etc. {at) {94)
Net interest-bearing receivables/{debt), 31 December (1,583 2,847

Ir
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16. Intangible assets

DKKm Completed Patents and Goodwill Customer Cther Total
development rights acquired relations intangible
projects assets
Cost at 1 January 2007 66 33 138 ] 235 472
Exchange rate adjustments {1) 1] an {1} ] {25)
Acquisition ¢f undertakings 5 1,115 3.068 an 128 5.247
Dispasal of undertakings (5) (1 o o (2) 8)
Addiuons 3] 1 8 0 a7 62
Disposals 3) 0 (19} o 0 {22)
Cther adj 0 0 15 0 N 14
Cost at 31 December 2007 68 1,146 3,193 930 403 5,740
Amortisation and write-downs at
1 lanuary 2007 37 27 7 0 92 163
Exchange rate adjustments 0 3 o] 0 o] 3
Dispasal of Group undertakings 3 {1} 0 0 2) &)
Disposals [£)] o {19} 0 0 (22)
Amortisation 11 26 0 16 Mg 163
Write-downs 0 L+ 0 0 0 4]
Other adjustments 0 4] 14 0 ] 14
Amortisation and write-downs at
31 December 2007 42 55 2 16 200 315
Book value at 31 December 2007 26 1,091 3,191 514 203 5,425
Complated Patents and Goodwill Other intangi- Total
DXXm development  rights acquired ble assets
projects
Cost at 1 January 2006 57 28 92 175 352
Exchange rate adjustments {1} {1} 4] (3) 5)
Acquisition of Group undentakings 0 4] a6 44 90
Additions 3 1 o] 25 33
Disposals (1} ] 0 Q {1
Other adjustments 8 5 o] (10} 3
Cost at 31 December 2006 66 33 138 235 472
Amartisation and write-downs at
1 January 2006 29 23 2 61 115
Exchange rate adjustments . 1)} D)) 0 ()] (3
Disposals o o 0 m [1}]
Amartisation El 2 a 29 40
Wirite-downs ’ 0 0 4] 4 4
Qther adjustments. 0 3 5 0 8
Amortisation and write-downs at
31 December 2006 a7 27 7 92 163
Book value at 31 December 2006 29 6 13t 143 309

Amortisation and write-downs in the profit and loss account are stated at the average rates of exchange and cannot therefore be directly reconciled with
the intangible asset note stated above in which amortisation and write-downs are stated at year-end exchange rates. For allocation of amortisation and
write-downs to Production costs, Sales and distribution costs and Administrative costs, see note 35.

For acquisition of undertakings, see note 13.

Much of the knowledge generated in the Group is based on the work performed for customers. In 2007, the Group's research and development costs totalled
DKK 210m {2006: DKK 169m). As these costs mainly relate to improvermnents of already existing products, czpitalised developmens costs merely account for 2
total of DKK 13m {2006: DKK 8m) in respect of devetopment projects and other intangible assets. The addition of intangible assets, far example in the form of
goodwall, includes internal capitalisation at OKK 19m (2006: DKK 29m).

The Group's capitatised goodwill from acquisition of undertakings and activities is allocated by the Group management ta the cash {low generating units in
connection with recognition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at feast once a year. Cement, Minerals and Cembrit Holding account for DKK 26m, DKK 3,117m
and DKK 48m, respectively, of the cansolidated goodwilt, while rights acquired are primarily related to Minerals.

Value in use as an expression of the recoverable amount is calculated for each cash flow generating unit by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value. Expected future cash flows are based on Management estimates including expected growth rates, etc. The discounting factor is also calculated
an the basis of the Management’s estimate which includes both general capital market conditions and a specific risk profile (Currently 9-10%).

The value in use calculations are composed of discounted expected cash flaws for the next 3 years and a calculated terminal value of cash flows for the subse-
quent peried. In calcutating the terminal value a growth rate (0%) conservatively estimated by the Management is adopted for each of the cash flow genera-
ting units.

Intangible assets are amartised over the ecanamic ife. Among the intangible assets GL&V Process goodwill and trademarks acguired are considered to have
indefinite useful life. The carrying amount of these trademarks is DKK 403m.



17. Tangible assets

Land and Plant and Operating Tangible Total

DXKm buildings machinery equipment, assets in

fixtures and course of

fittings construction
Cost at 1 January 2007 1,151 1,213 485 105 2,954
Exchange rate adjustments (17 (8) (2) 1 (26)
Acquisition of Group undertakings 59 19 27 2 107
Dispesal of Group undertakings ¢ (17} (5) 0 22)
Additions 79 82 74 151 386
Disposals (34) 81 61) 3 {159}
Other adjustments 49 47 44 {147) [ ¥4
Cost at 31 December 2007 1,287 1,275 562 109 3233
Depreciation and write-downs at 1 January 2007 546 818 m 1,73%
Exchange rate adjustments 8 (9} (N (18
Acquistion of Group undertakings 0 a L)) @)
Disposals 2n {S8) (57} {142)
Depreciation 22 &2 53 157
Wiite-downs {reversal) (6) (3n 1 {36}
Qther adjustments 0 (4) n 5
Depreciation and write-downs at 31 December 2007 8§27 798 362 1.687
Book value at 31 December 2007 750 477 200 109 1,546

Assets held under a finance lease

Book value at 31 December 2007 n 0 [} 17
Land and Ptant and Operating Tangible Total

DKKm buildings machinery equipment, assets in

fixtures and course of

fittings construction
Cost at 1 January 2006 1,200 1,403 480 35 3,118
Exchange rate adjustments 29 (15) {14} 0 (58)
Acquisition of Group undertakings 3| S6 3 0 20
Additions 14 7% 58 102 249
Dispasals (56) {52) a7 0 {155)
Transfers to assets held for sale (29 {25%) 4] o [288)
Cther adjustments 30 5 5 {32) 8
Cost at 31 December 2006 1,151 1,213 AB5 105 2,954
Depreciation 2nd write-gowns at 1 January 2006 559 997 381 1,937
Exchange rate adjustments {12) (18) (10} (40)
Disposals @n {52) (42) (127)
Depreciation 25 §9 40 134
Transfers to assets held for sale 0 {191) o (191)
Other adjustments 1 13 2 16
Depreciation and write-downs at 31 December 2006 546 818 an 1.735
Book value at 31 December 2006 605 395 114 105 1,219

Assets held under a finance lease

Book value at 31 Decernber 2006 12 0 4 16

Depreciation and write-downs in the profit and lass account are stated at the average rates of exchange and cannot therefore be directly reconciled with the fixed
asset note above in which depreciation and write-downs are stated at year-end exchange rates. For allocation of depreciation and write-downs to Praduction costs,
Sales and distribution costs and Administrative costs, see note 35,

For acquisition of undertakings, see note 13.
Due ta the improved earnings of zopol and Cembrit CZ within the Cembrit Holding Group, write-downs amounting to DKX 37m regarding buildings {DKK 6m) and

plant and machinery {DKK 31m) have been reversed. As in previous years the recoverable amount is calcutated for each company as a cash flow generating unit and i
based on the value in use of the companies. A discounting factor of 10% per annum has been adopted to calcutate the companies’ value in use,
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18. Financial assets

80

tnvestments in Other Other Total

DKKm associated securities and financial

undertakings investments assets
Cost at 1 January 2007 4 97 n 132
Exchange rate adjustments o {1 0 1)}
Atquisition of Group undertakings o 1" 0 11
Disposal of Group undertakings (2} V] [s] ()
Additions 0 12 0 12
Dispasals 0 10} @ (14}
Other adjustments 0 16 5 21
Cost at 31 December 2007 2 125 32 159
Adjustments at 1 January 2007 3 (50) (22} (69)
Disposal of Group undertakings (1) 0 0 (1)
Disposals o] 4 o] 4
Protitfloss shares 0 0 0 0
Value and other adjustments 0 (21) 2} (23)
Adjustments at 31 December 2007 2 67) (24) (89)
Book valus at 31 December 2007 4 58 8 70
Investments in Other Other Total

DKKm associated securities and financial

undertakings investments assets
Cost at 1 January 2006 4 m 30 205
Exchange rate adjustments 0 n 1 0
Dispesal of Groug undertakings 0 3) 0 {3
Additions 0 14 1 15
Disposals 0 (84) ) {85)
Cost at 31 December 2006 L 97 31 132
Adjusiments at 1 January 2006 (1) (89) (21) {107}
Exchange fate adjusiments 1 1 4] 2
Disposal of Greup undertakings 0 1 Q 1
Disposals 0 62 1] 62
Profitfass shares 3 (12) 0 (9}
Value and ather adjustments 0 (17} (N {18}
Adjustments at 31 December 2006 3 (50) (22} (69)
Book value at 31 December 2006 7 47 9 63

The stock market value of other securities and investments listed at 31 December 2007 on an effective stock market was DKK 27m {2006 DKX 32m) corresponding to
the book value.

Investments in associated undertakings consist af Transweigh India, Disposal of associated undertakings in 2007 consists of FLS Automation Italy and Autec Spol. S.re.,
which are included in the consolidated accounts cdue to the acquisition of additional investments, see note 13.



19, Deferred tax assets and liabilities

DKKm Opening  Exchange Adjust-  Acquisition  Effect of Recog- Mave- Total
balance rate adjust- ment and  changed nised  ments of
sheet ment  regarding disposal  tax rates directly  the year
previous  of under in share-
years takings holders’
equity
Deferred tax concerns:
intangible assets 3 3 {1) (524) (92) {611)
Tangible assets 292 1 {1 {5} 29 (50} 168
Financial assets 0 0 n 1] 0 N
Short- and long-term assets 40 1 1) 57 @) 30 16
Shont- and long-term liabilities 346 (10 {48} 30 9) 8 25 344
Tax loss carry-forwards, etc, 578 {2) 14 “aun {31 19 561
Share of tax assets valued at nil (525} {0 (4) a8 18 58 {407)
Net deferred tax assets/liabilities at 3t December 2007 734 (9) 29 (531) (60) 8 (50} 64
DXKm Opening  Exchange Adjust-  Acquisition  Effect of Recog- Move- Total
balance rate adjt- ment and changed rnised  ments of
sheet ment  regarding disposal  tax rates directly  the year
previous  of under- ity share—
years takings holders’
equity
Deferred tax conterns:
trtangible assets 4 {18) 3
Tangible assets 355 (6) {5T) 292
financial assets 2 2) o
Short- and long-term assets 3 37 40
Short- and kong-term liabilities 332 (6) 20 346
Tax loss carry-forwards, etc. 615 (1) &) {38) 578
Shace of 1ax assets vatued at nif (959) 434 (525)
Nat deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31 December 2006 379 (13 - - {8} - 376 734
DKKm 2007 2006
Specification of deferred tax assets/liabilities
Deferred tax assets 752 762
Deferred tax liabilities (688) (28)
64 734
Maturity profile of tax assets valued at nil
Within one year 55 24
Within one and five years 200 154
More than five years 1,451 1,689
1706 1,867
Tax value hereof 407 525

The Group’s deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are expected to be wsed in the future. The recognised deferred tax assets include a capitalised
loss of DKK 34m the use of which is based on a tax restructuring in 2008.

Where companies in the Group have deferred tax liabilities, they are valued independendly of the time when the tax, if any, becomes payable.

In continuation of the Danish Act of 6 fune 2005 {L121), the Darish tax autherities have abjected 1o the possibility of tax boss carry-forwards under Danish joint
1axation of FLSmidth & Co. A/S which are attributable 1o permanent establishment in the UK. The totat amount involved is calcufated at approximately DKK 0.5bn.
FLSmidth & Co. A/S has appealed this abjection to the National Tax Tribunal and asked the Natignal Tax Tribunat ta submit the basic issues related to EU law to the
European Court of Justice. It is considered that the tax loss carry-forward may not be limited due to the fact that the loss derives fram closure of aperations in 2004
before the new rules came into force and pursuant to the decision by the European Court on 13 December 2005 in the case regarding Marks & Spencer.

The tax vaiue of the loss not used is approximately DKK 230m and is included in the above specification of the Group's total gross tax assets. A negative outcome of
the appeal will not affect the Group's capetalised tax asset.

A recognised net tax lisbility amounting to DXK 531m deriving from the acquisition of GL&V Process mainly consists of deferred tax fiablities regarding purthase
price allocations.

Temporary differences regarding investments in group undertakings and associated undertakings are insignificant and are not recognised, because the Group ks able
to controt whether the liability is released and it is considered likely that the liabiity will not be released in a foreseeable future.



Yotes to the consolidated actcounts

20. Stocks

DKKm 2007 2006
Raw materials and consumables 287 179
Work-in-progress 234 8
finished goads and goods for resale 867 409
Prepayments for goods 75 163
Stocks at 31 December 1.463 832
Stocks are valued at net realisable vate. 20 0
Write-down of stocks

Write-down at 1 January 33 13
Additions 7 25
Disposals 8) (5}
Write-down at 31 December 32 33

21, Work-in-progress for third parties

DKKm 2007 2006
Total costs incurred 27,31 20,885
Profit recognised as income, net 4273 2,273
Work-in-progress for third parties 31,604 23,158
lmvoicing on account 1o customers 30,738 22,406

866 752
Ot which work-in-progress for third parties is stated under assets 3,072 2,338
and under liabilities (2,206} (1,586)

B66 752

Profit/oss included in the year's financial result is recognised in the grass profit in the profit and loss account.

22. Debtors and cash funds

Debtors falling due after more than one year total DKK 107m (2006: DKK 100m). The bogked debtors include retentions on contractual terms and conditions at DKK
810m {2006: DKK 551m).

DKKmn 2007 2006
Specification of changes in write-downs of debtors:

Write-down at 1 January 55 -
Change in write-down, net 10 -
Write-down at 31 December &5 -

Other debtors include amounts receivable in connection with the sale of undertakings and activities, pasitive value of derivatives and receivable corporation taxes.

Cash funds consist of bank deposits and cash funds. The Group'’s cash funds include DKK 483m (2006 DKK 274m) which is subject to restrictions for contractual reasons
o due to being placed in countries with exchange controls.



23, Assets held for safe and liabilities regarding same

25.Llong-term liabilities

DKEm 2007 2006 DKKm 2007 2006
Tangible assets 8 108 Maturity structure of long-term liabilities:
Stocks 0 5 Mortgage debt 32 30
Debtors and work-in-progress 0 19 Bank loans 1,827 -
Assats held for sale 8 132 Finance lease liability 5 4
Provisions regarding assets held for sale o {5) Prepayments received from customers 63} 616
Net assets held for sale 8 127 Within one to five years 2,545 &50
2007 Mortgage debt 354 119
Properties ) Bank debt 2 0
Properties hedd for sale represent a book value of DKK Bm. The properties are Finance lease liability p g
expectec to be sold during 2008 at least at book value, After five years 361 137
2006 2,906 777
Maag Gear - turbo and marine gear activities
Met assets held for sale regarding the turbe and marine gear activities in DKKm 2007 2006
Maag Gear represent a book value of DKK 87m and mainly consist of tangi-
ble assets in the form of production plant plus stocks and work-in-progress Finance lease liability
and provisions for losses on the latter, In continuation of the sales prepara- Total minimum charges:
tions that took place in 2006, on 23 January 2007 an agreement was signed Maturity within one year 4 3
to transfer most of these activities to Renk - presumably with effect from 30 Maturity between one and five years 7 7
April 2007. The expected sales price does not require writing down of the Maturity after five years & 7
book value of the net assets. 7 17
. . Accounting value (Present vatue):
The sales transaction took place in 2007 as expected. Maturity within one year 2 3
Maturity between one and five years 5 S
Pmper*_ties . Maturity after five years 5 8
Properties hetd for s2le represent a book value of DKK 40m. The properties 2 %
are expected to be sold during 2007 at least at book value, so na write-down Book value of Tinance lease D16t 7 16

of the book values has been made.

The sales transaction ook place in 2007 as expected.

24. Other provisions

DKKrm 2007 2006
Provisions at 1 January 1,464 1,304
Exchange rate and other adjustments {an (18)
Addition of Group undertakings 175 o]
Disposal of Group undertakings [t M) v}
Additions 552 567
Utilisation (91} {194)
Reversals (320 {195)
Change in discounting factor g o}
Provisions at 31 December L1316 1464

Consisting of:

Short-term liabilities 699 656

Long-term labilities 1,077 808
1,776 1.464

When assessing work-in-progress for third parties in the Cement segment,
inciuding the Buxton project, and the Minerals segment, a number of project-
related risks, including performance guarantees and operation and mainte-
nance contracts, have been taken inta account, for which allowances have
been made on the basis of the Management’s estimates. A few claims are
pending in respect of previously supplied projects. Provisions have been made
10 counter any losses which are estimated to possibly occur when handling
the claims.

Other provisions include:

» Estimated warranty daims in respect of goods ar senvices already delivered.

* Restructuring

* Guarantees and obligations resutting from disposal of undertakings and
activities.

» Provisions for loss-making contracts

As in 2006 the year's movements mainly consist of changes in warranty liabili-
ties and other contract risks.

In order not to interfer in the process of angoing projects and resulting dis-
putes, the Group does not wish to comment speaific project matters,

Finance lease mainty applies to properties.

Amortisation addition to future cost recognition amounts to DKK 5m

{2006: DKK 1m).

26. Other liabilities

Other liabilities include due holiday pay, public taxes, interest payable and
negative vafue of derivatives.
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27.Pension assets and liabilities

The pension obligations incumbent on the Danish Groug undertakings are
funded through insurance plans. The pension obligations of certain foreign
Group undertakings are also funded through insurance plans. Foreign under-
takings whase pension obligations are not - or only party - funded through
insurance (benefit plans), state the unfunded pension obligations on an
actuarial basis at the present value at the balance sheet date. These pension
plans are partly covered by assets in pension funds. The Group's benefit-based
pension plans were OKK 120m underfunded at 31 December 2007 (2006;
95m) for which a provision has been made as pension liabilities.

In the consolidated profit and loss account DKK 311m {2006: DKK 219m)
has been recognised as costs of plans funded through insurance (contribution
plans). Plans nat funded through insurance (benefit plans) are recognised as
income in the profit and loss accounts at DKK 11m (2006: DXK -5m).

The actuarial losses and profits for the year at KK 25m {2006: DKK -5m} are
recognised directly in the shareholders’ equiy.

DKKm 2007 2006
Present vatue of benefit plans 505 752
Fair value of the assets of the plan 385 657
Total L S ]

Change in recognised liability

Net abligation at 1 January 95 138

Other acjusiments including exchange rate adjustments (18) {1}

Addition of Group undertakings 53

Net expense taken to the profit and loss account (11) 5

Actuarial profits and losses recagnised direct in the

shareholders’ equity 25 5

Payments (24} (42}

Net liability at 31 December 120 95

Stated as asset 6 2

Stated as liability (126) (97
120 95

Recognised in the profit and loss account

Pension costs 1 21

Calculated interest on liability 24 34

Expected return on the assets of the plan {30} (a1

Effect of freezing plans {6) {9)

Recognised in profit and loss account regarding

benefit-based plans (11) 5

The amounts are included in the items:

Production costs, Sales and distribution costs and

Administrative costs

Adjustments of benefit plans based on experi-

ence (pensicn liabilities), gains/(losses) (17} 27

Return on pension assets

Expected return on the assets of the plan 30 41

Actual return on the assets of the plan 22 73

Actuarial loss for the year on the assets

of the plan (8) 32

The expected return is fixed on the basis of the

weighted return on the assets of the plan.

The assumptions on which the actuarial compitations

are based at the balance sheet date are as follows, on

average:

Average discounting rate applied 556.0% 4550%

Expected return on tied-up assets 8.0-85% 6570%

Expecied future pay increase rate 3.0-35%  2.0-3.0%

Present value of benefit plans

Present value at 1 lanuary 752 761

Reclassification to other staff liabilities (20} o

Exchange rate adjustment (49) {48)

Addition of Group companies 28 1]

Pension casts 1 Fal

Calculated interest on liability 24 34

Benefits paid out {312) {34)

Actuarial profits and losses 17 27

Effect of fzeezing plans (3] {9

Present value at 31 Decembear 505 752

For further specification, please see note 33,

DKKm 2007 2006
Fair value of the assets of the plan
Fair value of the assets of the plan at 1 January 637 623
Reclassification to other staff liahilities {4) 1]
Exchange sate adjustment an 47}
Addition of Group companies 45 [s]
Expected return on the assets of the plan 30 a1
Contributions 24 33
Benefits paid out 312 (25)
Actuarial profits and losses (8) 32
Fair value of the assets of the plan at 31
December 385 657
Specification of fair value of the assets of the plan
Equity instruments 187 304
Debt instruments 114 294
Other assets 84 59
Total fair value of the assets of the plan 385 657
Specification of fair value of the assats of the
planin %
Equity instruments 48% 46%
Debt instruments 30% 45%
Other assets 2% 9%
Reclassification of other stafi labilities than pension
has been to other liabilities.

28. Maturity structure of financial liabilities
DKKm 2007 2006
Time to maturity:
Within one year 9,267 6,415
Within one to five years 2,545 650
After five years 361 127
Total 12,173 7,492



29. Net interest-bearing receivables/(debt)

Net interest-bearing receivables by currency and interest rate structure:

Principal in DKKm/rate of interest p.a. USD/intarest EUR/interest DKK/interest Other/interest E 2007 Total | 2006 Total
within one year Assets 311} 1253% 4,080 ; 1.-46% 1,316 104.3% 1171 03123% 6.878 4,530
Liabilities § {1,237} | 3.0-2.3% {925) . 3456% | (5,071} 10:55%] (1,1BS5) | 0.6-135% (8,418) (1,713}
Total (926} 3,155 ; (3.755) {14} (1,540) 2,377
Between tne and five years Assets : f
Liabilities ' {13}
Total 1 | 0 13)
After more than five years Assets
Liabilities {36} 3065% i ! (7}, 9.0:90% (43) (17}
Total (36 i 5} (43) (i)
Total (962) | 3,155 (3.75%) 21) ; (1,583) 2,847
The above maturities indicate the extent to which and in which currencies the interest is fixed in the intervals stated.
The cash maturity profile is therefore not ceflected hese.
30. Contingent assets and liabilities
DKKm 2007 2006
Minimum rent and operating lease liabilities:
Within one year 27 23
Between one and five years 39 49
After more than five years 1 2
67 74
Guarantees 210 30
Other contractual obligations 39 7
316 1

Rent commitments are mainly related 1o business leases and equipment.

In connection with the dispasal ef undertakings, normal guarantees, etc, are issued to the acquiring undertaking. Provisicns are made for estimated lesses on such

iterns.

When undertaking contracts ancd supplies, the companies in the Group provide usual security in the form of performance guarantees, eic. At the end of 2007, the
total number of performance and payment guarantees issued amounted to DKK &.4bn {2006: DKK 4.6bn). In cases where a guarantee is expected ta materialise, a
peowision for this amount is mate in the Annual Repevt under the heading of Other provisions.

In addition, the Group is from time to time invotved in disputes usual for its business. The outcome of the disputes is expected not to have significant impact on the

Group's finangial position.

31.Charges
DKKm 2007 2006
Book value of Charge Book value of Charge
charged assets charged assets
Guarantees and bank deposits o o 387 500
Trade debtors, etc, 5 5 52 48
Real estate 96 356 119 175
10 361 758 723
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32. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The overall framework for managing financial risks is decided by the Board of
Directors, It is Group policy that all majer financial risks should be identified
and appropriately hedged. Financial management comprises the Group’s
currency, interest, liquidity and credit risks as well as its capital structure and
financial resources.

It is Group policy that all significant commaercial currency and interest rate
risks should be hedged once a contract becomes effective at the latest,

The Group did not fail 1o perform nor detault on loan agreements in 2007
and 2006.

Currency risks

The Group’s currency risks derive from the impact of exchange rates on future
commercial payments and financial payments. The Group is exposad to the
risk of exchange rate changes uniil a contract becomes effective. The Group
uses forward contracts and currency options $o hedge the currenty risks

that are not hedged naturally or via foreign currency clauses, the customer
bearing the exhange rate risk until that date as stipulated by exchange rate
clauses incorporated in the propasal documents. The Groups main currencies
for commerdal purposes are EUR and USD. Other things being equal, a 1%
EUR and a 10% USD exchange rate change will have an impact an equity
amounting to DKK 25m and DKK 254m, respectively, and an impact on the
profit amounting to DKK 2m and DKK 21m, respectively.

The transtation of profit and loss account and balance sheet items from the
currency in which subsidiaries repart their financial results into DKK is also
affected by exchange rate changes, because translation risk is not hedged,

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate fisk consists of the sensitivity of the net interest
items to changes in the level of interest and the effect of interest sate chan-
ges on the market value of consolidated balance sheet items. The interest rate
risk is based on the net position in different life intervals and is hedged by the
use of finandial instruments. 97% of the Group’s net interest-bearing debt

a1 31 December 2007 carried a variable rate of interest. Other things being
equal, a one percent increase in the interest rate will have a DKK -14m effect
on the Group’s net interest costs {2006: DKK 28m).

Risk limits

Currency and interest sisks at corporate level are controlled by means of Value
at Risk {VaR) techniques and scenario analyses, and the risks are hedged by
means of finandal instruments. The risk limit far open currency and interest
paositions i set at a Daily Earnings at Risk maximum of DKK 4m with 99,6%
probability for both currency and interest positions.

Liquldity risks

The purpose of the Group's cash management is 10 ensure that the Group

at all times has sufficient and flexible financial resources at its disposal. The
Graup manages its liquidity sisk through corporate account systems in various
currencies and by having short-term overdraft facilities with varisus financial
institutions.

As part of its financial resources the Group has entered inte committed finan-
cial facility arrangements. These facilities contain standard clauses such as pari
passu, negateive pledge and change of control, At 31 December 2007, the
Group had withdrawn EUR 245m from Change of Control dausa facilities.
The clause entails that the debt must be repaid by the next interest payment
date, however not later than six months after the lender has notified Change
of Contrel, which must take place at 45 days’ notice.

Credit rishs

Credit risks incusred from trade debtors are generally managed by continuous
credit rating of major customers and trading partners. No single customer
accounts for more than 5% of the order intake. The maximum credit risk
related to financial assets corresponds 1o the accounting value including
write-downs.

In cases where there may be a risk of loss, a write-down will be made based
on individual assessment.

The use of financial instruments entails the risk that the counterparty may not
he able to honour its obligations on reaching maturity. The Group minimises
this risk by limiting its use of financial institutions 1o these with a high degree
of creditworthiness, Besides, the Group has set a limit for the amoaunt owed
to it by any particular bank. Credit risks an other counterparties than banks
are minimised through the use of letters of credit, guarantees and continuous
rating of custorners.

Considering that a major portion of the Group’s cusrency and interest rate
risks is refated to commercial contracts extending over several years, the
total unrealised fair value of hedging contracts may be substantial. It should
be noted that in principle this unreatised fair value is tounterbalanced by an
opposite value adjustment of the hedged commercial payments.

Currency hedging

In order to hedge currency risks on the Group companies’ underlying con-
tractual and budgeted payments and currency risks on loans an investments,
Corparate Treasury uses forward exchange contracts and currency options.
92% of the open forward exchange contracts at 31 December 2007 had a
life of less than one year, The life of the remaining open forward exchange
contracts is up to two years. There were no open currency options at 31
Decernber 2007.

Interest rate risk hedging

The Group hedges interest rate risks using derivatives such as interest swaps,
forward rate agreements (FRA) and interest rate options. There were no open
interest swaps, forward rate agreements {(FRA) nar interest rate options at 11
December 2007.

Reference is also made to the gescription of the Group’s financial risk
management and financial risks on page 38.

The below table show the principals and fair values of pending financial
transactions at 31 December which have been entered into to hedge currency
expasure. All fair values are based on officially fixed quotations, if available,
ahernatively on prices quoted by banks. Principals are translated at balance
sheet date rates of exchange.

DKKm 2007 2006

Forward exchange contracts
Principal of contracts net*

usp .01 (1.378)
£UR 1.305 132
DKK 144 1,190
Other currencies 645 80

7 24
Fair value of contracts 72 24

*} In the case of forward exchange contract principals, a negative value indi-
cates net sale of the currency concerned and a pasitive value indicates net
purchase of the ¢urrency cancerned.

Fair value of financlal assets and labillties not measured at fair value
The book value of debtors and debt at 31 December largely corresponds to
the fair value.

Fair value {market value) of finandiat assets and liabilities

The fair value of securities stated as financial assets amounts to DKK
306m (2006: DKK 420m) and is recognised under short- and long-term
assets. The carrying value of debtors and debt largely corresponds to
the fair value. The fair value of derivatives appears from the information
abave.



33. Financial assets and liabilities as defined in |1AS 39

35. Profit and loss account classified by function

DKKm 2007 2006 DKKm 2007 2006
Financial assets: Net turnover 19,967 1231
Production costs 15,839 9,800
Long-term assats: Gross profit 4,128 2,511
Other securities and investments 58 47 Sales and distribution costs 1,030 742
Other financial assets 8 9 Administrative costs 1,349 1,075
Available for sale 66 63 Other operating income and costs (3] 94
Special non-fecurring items 6 {13)
Short-term assets: Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 1,824 775
Trade debtors 4,939 3,087
Work-in-progress for third panies 3,072 2,338 Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs
Other debtors 616 319 consist of;
Cash funds 957 2,766 Amartisation of ather intangible assets 163 40
Debtors measured at amortised cost . 9584 8,510 Write-down of other intangible assets 0 4
T Depreciation on tangible assets 155 134
Bands and listed shares 244 S Write-dawn of tangible assets, net (36) o
Trading portfolio 244 366 282 178
Financial liabilities: Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs
are allocated as follows:
Long-term liabilities: Production casts 144 9
Mortgage debt 386 149 Sales and distribution costs 5 4
Bank loans 1.829 0 Administrative costs 133 83
Finance lease liability 10 12 —tB2 . 178
Prepayments received from customers 681 616 N .. . .
Financia! liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,906 pred writ of tang ble assets, net for the year is induded in production costs.
h liabilities: The consolidated profit and loss account format classified by function is
ort-term liabilities: adapted 10 show depreciation, amortisation ard write-downs of tangible and
Mortgage debt 7 50 intangible assets not allocated to the individual function but stated on sepa-
Bank lgans 481 79 rate lines. The table above shaws an extract of the profit and loss account
Finance lease liability 3 3 adapted o show depreciation, amortisation and write-downs dassified by
Prepayments received from customers 3.178 2,194 function.
Wark-in-progress far thirg parties 2,206 1,586
Trade creditors 2,464 1,859
Other liabilties 928 644
Financial tabilities measured at amortised cost 9,267 6,415 36.Related party transactions
Transactions between the consolidated Group undertakings are eliminated in
. these consolidated accounts. In 2006 and 2007 there were no transactions bet-
34. Earnings per share (EPS) ween related parties nat part of this Group.
DKKm 2007 2006 Due to the share exchange in 2006, at the end of 2007 there were no related
parties with a controlling interest,
Earnings
FLSmidth & Co. shareholders' share of pritass for the DKKm 2007 2006
year 1,294 1,141 R .
y . L . emuneration of the Board of Directors
:‘i:'m & Co. Group earnings from discontinulng ac- 1 25 Remuneration of the Beard and Management 4 5
Net effect after tax of purchase price allocations Total remunesation of the Board of Directors | A, .. S
regarding GLAV Process =7} .

Number of shares, average

Number of shares issued

Adjustment for own shares

Potential increase of shares in circulation, options
in the money

Earnings per share:
« Contirving and discontinuing activities per share,

53,200,000 53,200,000
(838,921}  {1,030,828)

278504

388,882

B ey et )

52,639,583 52,558,054

DKK 47 219
+ Continuing and discontinuing activities, diluted,

per share, DKK 245 217
« Continwéng activities per share, DKK M7 214
+ Continuing activities, difuted, per share, DKK 5 21.2

Non-diluted earnings per share in respect of discontinuing activities amount
to DKK 0.0 {2006: DKK 0.5} and diluted earnings per share in respect of
discontinuing activities amount to DKK 0.0 (2006: DKK 0.5). These earnings
are calculated based on the Group's earnings from discontinuing activities
which amount to DKK $m (2006: DKK 25m).

Diluted profit per share before effect of purchase price allocations regarding
GLEV Process amounts to DKK 26.4,

Remuneration of the Management

Wages and salaries 18 17
Share-based payment 2 1
Yotal r ation of the M g 20 18

The agreement to submit the Chairman's remuneration for approval at the
Annual General Meeting covered a five year period which ran until the
Annual General Meeting in 2007. The agreement concerned ripening of the
company for sale against an annual remuneration of DKK 2m in addition to
the ordinary annual Chairman’s fee of currently DXK 0.5m.

In the event of dismissal of the Group Chief Executive Officer, two years’
salary plus, for an interim period, an additional two years' salary shall be paid.
The additional salary shalt be reduced by four months per year from 2005
until 2007 after which it shall amount to one year's salary.

In addition to his ordinary contract which inctudas a standard 18 month
periad of natice, a member of the Management has been granted additionat
18 months which are gradually reduced by six months per year so that on 1
January 2009 he is entitled to the standard 18 month perioc of notice.
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37. List of Group companies

Company name Country Cur Mominal Direct Company nhame Country Cur Nominal Direct
Tency share Group rency share Group
capital halding capltal holding
{000'5) 1000°s)
FLSmikith & Co, ASS Denerark DKK 1,064,000 100 Fl.Smudith Inc, Uruted States  USD 10 100
Aktiesekskabet al 1. pwar 1990, Valby Denmark DKK 500 100 FEH, LLC United States  USD 0 100
Igrene MP A5 Derwmark. DKK 500 100 FLSmudth 5.4 de CV. Mexica MXN 10,012 100
DEF 1994 AS Denrmark [2].¢.4 1,000 100 Fuller Comparty United States  USD 1 100
FFE Invest AS. Denmark DKK 25,000 100 Fuller Internatianal Inc. Ueited States  USD 1 100
FLS Plast AS Denmark DKK 1,500 106 Fuller Internavonal Trading Corp. United States  USD 1 100
FLS Real Estaie AS Denmark. DKK 3,100 100 Fuller Midde East Limited Usmited States  USD 1 100
FLSmidth DOE Company Canada CAD 55.2M 100 General Fuller Internationat Corp. United States  USD 1 100
FLSmudth DOE Finanding Inc. Canada CAD [ 100 HIPT Corporation United States  USD 1 100
FLSmidth DOE Global Ing, Canada uso 4,927 100 SU8 Corporation Urited States  USD 1 100
FLSmidth Dor-Obever Eimeo Brasd FLSmidth Minerals Holding Corporation Urwted States  USD 1 100
Equipamentos ¢ Servicos Lida. Brazl BRL 623 100 FLSrmudth Minerals Inc. Uswted States  USD 1 100
FLSmidth Dor-Olewer Eimeo Lid. Canada CAD 38,900 100 Excel Foundry & Maching inc, Unxted States  USD a 100
FLSmiith Mineral £quipment (3eging} Ltd. China ush 300 106 ASmidth DOE Holdings Inc United States  USD 654 100
GLAV Acquisition n¢. Canada CAD ¢ 100 FLSmidth Dom-Dlver Eimce Inc. United States  USD 635 100
4424972 Canada Inc. Canada CAD ¢ 100 FLSmidth Dorr-Otrver Eimco SLC Inc.  United States  USD 1 10
9183-6175 Quebec Inc. Canada CAD o 10C FLSmidth Dor=Dhver Inc. Urited States  USD 0 100
FLSmidth DOE Intemational Inc. Barbades CAD 18,936 106 Dort-Oliver de Chile Lida. Chile fal g 0 100
ASmidth Dorr-Clrves Eirco Africa (Pry) Lid, South Africa  ZAR 0 190 FLSmichth Dor-Oliver International Inc.  United States  USD 1 100
FiSmidth Dorr-Oliver Ewnco Chile S.AC Chile CLP o 1,331.858 100 ALSmicth Excef LLC Urited States  USD 4 100
RSmidth Dor-Clver Eimco RSmicth RAHCO Inc. United States  USD 1 100
Maragement Hungary Kit, Hungary usD 49619 100 Smichth & Co. Ursted States  USD 90 100
fSmidth Eienco Mexico 5.4 de CV. Mexko MXN 587 190 Asmidth Aidoq A%S Denmark Oxx 500 100
ASmidth Dor-Olrver Eimco Pty Limited Aunstralia Aub 5,359 100 FLSmidth Airtech ASS Denmark Dxx 50,000 100
FLSmidth Dorr-Oliver Eirnco Vienezuela SAL Venezuela VEB 1,880 100 FtSrudth Airtech SAS Frange EUR 300 100
FLSmidth Mmerals S.A.C. Peru PEN ¥ 100 FSmidth ¢.0.0. Croatia HARK 20,000 100
ML Supervision Company AS Denmark DKK 500 19¢ FLSmidth Dor-Olver Eimce Denmark ApS Denmark DxK 1,447 100
AS Denmark DKK 500 106 FLSmidth Dorr-Clrver Eiveca GmbH Germany EUR 1176 100
SLF Rorner X Ap§ Denmark DKK 125 100 FLSmucith DOE Germany GmbH Geemany EuR 50 w0
VAT al 25. november 2004 ApS Denwmark. DKK 50 100 FLSmadth Dorr-Olover Eimao France S.ARL. France EUR 50 100
FLSmidth Dorr-Olver Eimeo aly SRL Raly EUR 10 100
FLS miljm afs Denmark DKK 12,000 100 FLSmidth Dorr-Oliver Eimeo Spam S.L. £pain EuR 320 100
FLS miljo Inc. United $tates  USD 13,440 100 FLSmidth Darr-Olrver Eumco UK Limited ux GBP 5,337 100
FLS mdo L1d. UK GEP 3,753 100 RSmidth (Jersey) Lituted 114 LR 30 100
FLSmidth Iredand Limited keeland EUR 0 100
FLSmidth Minerals A/S Denmark DKK 11,000 100 F.Smidth Ltd. UK GBP 1,500 100
FLSmidth Minerak Holding ApS Denmark OKK 125 100 FLSmidth Lida, Brant BRL 5.725 100
FLSmidth ABON Pty. Lid. Awtraiy ALD ] 104 FiSmidth Machinery Industry {Qingdac) Ltd. China CNY 39,962 100
RASmedth Minerals Ltd, Canada CAD 1 100 FLSmudth Machinery Trace Co. Lid. Chna CNY 2,000 100
FFE Canada intl. Trading Corp. Canada CAD ] 100 FLSmidth Materias Handing A/S Denmark DKK 12.000 100
FLSmidth Minerals Private Limited Incia INR 10,000 100 LS Germany Holdng GmbH Germany EUR N 100
FLSmadth Minerals Pry. Lid. Auwstrata AUD 100 100 Piister Data GmbH Germany EUR 26 100
ASmidth Minerals 5.4, Chile CLP 3155150 100 FLSmidth Holding GmaH Germany EUR 60 100
FLSmidth Minerals S.A. de C.V. Meico MXN 8593 100 FLSmidth KOCH GmbH Germany EUR 25,000 100
FLSmidth South Africa (Pry.) Ltd, South Africa  ZAR 40 e FLsmidth KOCH GesmbH Austria EUR 509 100
FLSeidth Buffako (Pry.} Lid. South Afrnica ZAR 41 100 FLSmidth MVT GmbH Germany EUR 1499 160
FLSmudth Minerabs (P1y.) Ltd. South Afa  ZAR 2 100 FLSmidth Maller GmbM Germany EUR 1023 100
Moler Materials Handhing Gmbl Germany EUR, 5 100
Cembrit Holding AJS Denmark DXK 83,000 100 Plaft AQS GrmbH Germany EUR 359 160
Cembnt AS Denmark DKK 21.000 100 Plaff Machinebau GmbH Germany EUR " 100
Cembrt BV, Netherdands EUR El 100 Pfister GmbH Germany EUR 3,962 100
Cembnt Blunn Limited uK GBP 500 100 Pfister Hungasis Kit, Hungary HUF 5140 10
Cembnt C7 as. Crech Republe CTK 126 96 Piister Latino Americana Lida. Brazil BRL 100 160
BNT, s.r.0. Czech Republic CZK 100 100 Phister North America Inc. United States  USD 1 100
Cembnt SAS France ELR 37 100 Transweigh Inda Lid, * Inda INR 16,200 24
Cembnt 185 BV, Netherlands. EUR 18.000 100 Fuller Offshore Finance Cormp, BV, Nelherands EUR 2.26% 100
Cembnt Polska SP. 2.0.0. Poland PN 150 100 Kovako Materials Handling BV. Netherands  EUR 15 100
Cembrt SFS 1.0, Shovakin SKK 210,000 100 Oresund Unloader Design Bureau Holding AB Sweden SEK 2,200 100
DKCF ApS Denmark 2.4 125 100 Oresund Unloader Design Bureau AR Swnden SEK 1.200 100
Etermet South Eastern Ewrope Holding GmbH Austria EUR 35 5¢ Flimidth Polska $p. Zo.o. Poland ] 200 100
Etemit Termeldsi &5 Xereskedeimi Kit. Hungary HUF 400.000 100 FLSmidth Portugal Lda. Portugal EUR 45 100
Eterma Distnbune s.ol. Romaria RON 5 100 FLSmidth (Pry.) t1d. South Africa  ZAR 50 100
Ewocem Vertrieb Europdischer Bauprodulte GmbH Germany EUR 79 100 ASmdth Rustand Holding ApS Denmark bKK 500 e
Interfer 5.A5. France EUR 336 00 FLSmidth Rus 000 Russia RUB 400 100
Lropol 5.4 Poland PN 24,306 100 FLSenidth S.A Spain fUR 6311 100
Kntlownia opol Zakdad Getpodarki FLSmidth Slovakia 5.r.0. Skavakia SKK 200 100
Cieplnej i Woodnej S5p. 2.0.0 Poland PN 4587 100 FLSmidth Technology A% OKK 10,000 100
Norsal as Norwary NOK 500 100 Ventomatic SPA Iy EUR L1 100
QY hineri1 AB Fintand EUR 1,686 100 FLSmicth (Thaitand) 11d, A5 Denmark XK 1.500 100
Turun autokeskus Oy Fnland EUR 8 100 LY Technology Pubkc Company Ltd. * Thaland THB 210,038 20
Tepro byggmateriat AB Sweden SEK 500 100 Intemational Holding Company A Denmark DEK 1.500 100
FLS PakBtan (Pvt) Lid, Pakistan PR 94,555 100
FLSmlidth AsS Denrnark DKK 400,000 100 MAAG Gear AG Switzedand (M 1 100
Autec spol, S.ro. Czech Republic (2K 13362 100 MAAS Gear Zamech Sp. 2.0.0. Poland PLN 18,000 100
Dan indian Holding ApS. Denmark DKK 1,000 100 MAAG Gear Systermns AG Switzerland CHF 8,000 100
FLSrricdth Private Limited India INR 20,000 100 Piister Holding GmbH Germany EUR 1,023 100
FLSmidth Infatech Pvt. Ltd. India IR 1,503 100 PT Fajar Laksana Sejahtera L DR 3,500,000 100
Bhagwati Designs Py Ltd. india IR 100 100
LFC international Enguneering 1SC * Vietnam uso 600 40
ALS Automaton Austraka Pry (td, Auitrala ALD 1 00
FS Automaton ftaly haly EUR 99 €0
FLS Automaton Pvt, Ltd, South Afrca ZAR 2,000 100
FLS US Holdings, bnc. Umited States  USD 0 100
R Smidth Aurtech Inc., United States  USD 1 100
AS Automation nc. Urited States  USD 10 100
ASmidth DOE Acquistion LISA inc. United States  LISD 0 100
FLSmidth Kretss inc. Ursted States  USD 6 100
FLSmidth Krebs Africa (Py) Lid. Sauth Africa  ZAR 0 100
FLSmidth Krets Austrada Pry. Ltd. Austraka AUD 0 100
FrSmidth (Beying) Lid China uso 300 100
FLSmidth Krebs Brasi Equipamentos
+ Servicas Ltda. 8ranl BRL 625 100
FLSmidth Krebs Chile S.A. Chile Ccwp 4,650 160 4 Assaciated companies
ASmidth Krebs Eyrope GmbH Awtria EUR 36 100 All other undertakings are Group undertzkings
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Parent company accounts
2007
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nt company profit and loss account

DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
142 Administrative costs 40 59
3 Other operating income 1 43
Earnings before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 1 (16)
6 Depreciation and write-downs of tangible assets 1 2
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 0 (18)
4 Financial income 1,568 401
4 Financial costs 816 323
Earnings hefore tax {EBT} 752 60
5 Tax for the year (24) (20)
Profit/loss for the year 776 80
To be distributed as follows:
Transfer to retained earnings 776 80
776 80
Proposal for distribution of dividend:
Dividend, DKK 7 per share 372 372




AR

Parent company cash flow statement

DKKm 2007 2006

Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Earnings before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 1 (16)
Adjusted earnings before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 1 (16)
Change in provisions 28 0
Change in working capitat (76} 0
Cash flow from operating activities before financial items and tax (47) {16)
Dividend received from subsidiaries 772 120
Financial payments received and made 16 (34)
Corporation taxes paid (6) 17
Cash flow from operating activities 735 87
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of undertakings and activities {4,051) 0
Disposal of undertakings and activities 1,984 0
Capital increases in subsidiaries (12) 0
Acquisition of tangible assets 0 {1
Disposal of financial assets 0 33
Cash flow from investing activities {2,079) 32
Cash flow from operating and investing activities (1,344) 119
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividend (366) {368}
Capital increase 0 6,161
Acquisition of own shares (16) {6,397}
Disposal of own shares 28 97
Movements in other net interest-bearing receivables/debt {17) 16
Cash flow from financing activities (371) (491)
Changes in cash funds (1,715) (372)
Cash funds at 1 January 1,724 2,096
Cash funds at 31 December 9 1.724

The cash flow statement cannot be inferred from the published firancial information onfy.

9
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Parent company balance sheet

Assets
DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
Land and buildings 59 60
Operating equipment, fixtures and fittings 0 1
6 Tangible assets 59 61
7 Investments in subsidiaries 4,630 2,536
7 Other securities and investments o 4
8 Deferred tax assets 0 0
Financial assets 4,630 2,540
Total long-term assets 4,689 2,601
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 6,019 930
Qther debtors 229 106
9 Debtors 6,248 1,036
Securities 1 1
9 Cash funds 9 1,724
Total current assets 6,258 2,761
TOTAL ASSETS 10,947 5,362
Equity and liabilities
DKKm 2007 2006
Notes
Share capital 1,064 1,064
Retained earnings 996 562
Proposed dividend 372 372
Total shareholders’ equity 2,432 1,998
11 Other provisions 181 94
10 Mortgage debt 3N 122
10 Bank loans 1,827 0
Long-term liabilities 2,319 216
Mortgage debt 0 6
Bank loans 447 0
Debt to subsidiaries 5,564 2,945
12 Other liabilities 185 197
Current liabilities 6,196 3,148
Liabilities 8,515 3,364
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,947 5,362
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Parent company shareholders’ equity

DKKm Share Retained Proposed Total
capital earnings dividend

Shareholders’ equity at 1 January 2006 1,064 982 an 2,418

Profutoss for the year 80 80

Total income for the year 2006 80 0 80

Capital increase due to exchange of shares 477 5,684 £,161

Capitat reduction due 1o cancellation of own shares 477 477 [}

Dividend paid (368) (368)

Dividend, own shares 4 (4} 0

Propased dividend (372) 372 o

Share-based payment, share options, parent company 1 1

Share-based payment, share options, subsidiaries 6 &

Share-based payment, employee shares, subsidiaries 37 37

Dispesal of owm shares 60 60

Acquisition of own shares {6.397) (6,397)_

Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2006 1,064 562 372 1,998

Profitloss far the year 176 776

Total income for the year 2007 776 ) 776

Dividend paid {366) (366)

Dwidend, own shares ] {6) o

Proposed dividend (372} 372 0

Share-based payment, share options, parent company 1 1

Share-based payment, share options, subsidiaries 9 9

Share-based payment, employee shares, subsidiaries 2 2

Disposat of own shares 8 28

Acquisition of own shares {16) 16)_

Shareholders” equity at 31 Dacember 2007 1,064 996 n 2,432

Approved, issued and fully paid shares: £3,200,000

Nominal value per share: DKK 20

Movements on share capital (number of shares):

Share capstal as at 1 January 2003 53,200,000

Capital increase due to exchange of shares in 2006 23,853,048

Cancellation of share capital by use of own shares in 2006 (23,853,048)

Share capital a5 at 31 December 2007 53,200,000 _

Each share entitles the helder to one vote and there are no special rights related to the shares,

The years moverments in holding of own shares (number of shares):

Own shares as at 1 January 2007 1,062,092

Acquisition of awn shares 34,533

Settled share options (247,729

Emplayee shares due to

- the 125 year anniversary {107,900}

- reserved in the 2006 Annual Report 103,450 (2,410}

Own shares at 31 December 2007 844 486

Correspanding to 1.6% of the share capital.

See also the Management's review on page 14 regarding the use of own shares.
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Notes to the parent company accounts

94

Staff costs 5. Tax for the year
DKKm 2007 2006 DKKm 2007 2006
‘Wages and salaries 15 14 Tax for the year
Shara-based payment 1 1 Cutrent 12x on the profitdoss for the year {24} o
16 15 Withholding taxes 9 0
Adjustments regarding previous years,
Number of employees at 31 Cecember 3 3 permanent taxes (9} (20}
Tax for the year (23) (20)
For information regarding remuneration of the Board and Management,
please see note 19 on related parties, The Managemens of the parent Reconciliation of tax
company is eligible 1o take part in the Group's share option plan. See note 7 Tax according 1o Danish 1ax rate 188 17
10 the consolidated accounts. Withholding taxes 9 0
Non-taxable income and non-deduclible costs (213) (29)
Variance in 1ax assets valued at nil 1 12
Fees to auditors appointed at the Annual General Othe; adjustments, including adjustments o 0
. I ing previous years
Meeting 1£0(CIN9 Prévious year @4) @)
DKKm 2007 2006 Paid tax in 2007 amounts to DKK 6m (2006: DXX -17m)
Deloitte
Auditing 1 1
Other services 11 1
12 2 6. Tangible assets
Qther semvices consist of due diligence in connection with acquisition and Operating
other accounting and tax-refated consultancy. equipment,
Land snd  flxtures and
. . DKKm bulkdings fittings Total
Other operating income
Cost at 1 January 2007 212 3 ns
DKKm 2007 2006 Disposals o n m
Cost at 31 December 2007 212 2 214
Other income a1 43
a1 a3 Depreciation and write-downs at 1
January 2007 152 2 154
Depreciation and write-downs for the
year 1 0 1
. e Depreciation and write-downs at 31
Financial income and costs Decermber 2007 153 s 155
DKKm 2007 2006 Book value at 31 December 2007 59 [ 59
Financial income
Dividend from subsidiaries 675 18 Operating
Profit from dispasal of undertakings 93 0 equipment,
Reversal of write-down of investments in subsi- Land snd  fiortuares and
diaries 2?7 7% DKKm buildings fittings Total
Adjustment for disposals in previous years 52 1
Interest receivable and other financial income from Cast at 1 January 2006 212 3 215
financial assets not measured at fair value 17 51 Additions 0 1 1
Intesest from Group undertakings 186 30 Disposats 0 43) 14}
Foreign exchange gains 418 225 Cost at 31 Decernber 2006 212 3 245
1,563 401
Financial costs Depreciation and write-dawns at 1
Write-down of investments in subsidiaries 58 12 lanvary 2006 150 3 153
Adjustment for disposals in previous years 52 [ Disposals 0 m 4}
Interest payable and other financial costs from fin- Depreciation and write-downs for the
nanial liabilities not measured a1 fair value 62 10 year 2 0 2
Interest to Group undertakings 144 70 Depreciation and write-downs at 31
Share-based payment o 1 December 2006 152 2 154
Foreign exchange %osses 500 221
816 323 Book value at 31 December 2006 60 1 61




7.

Financial assets

9. Debtors and cash funds

Ivestments  Other secu- Total Debtors falling due after more than ona year total DKX 1,428m (2006: DKK 9m).
DKKm insubsicia-  rities and No write-downs have been made i financial debtors.
ries investments
Other debtors include fair value of financial contracts (positive value).
Cost at 1t January 2007 5,140 4 5,144
Additions 5,054 5.054 Cash funds consist of bank deposits.
Disposals {2,916} {4} {2,920}
Adjusiment regarding dividend @7 (97}
Cost at 31 December 2007 2181 o 7,181
Write-downs at 1 January 2007 2,604 o 2604  10.long-term liabilities
Disposals (26) (26)
Write-downs 0 o DKKm 2007 2006
Reversal of write-downs {27) {27)
Write-downs at 31 December 2007 2,551 o 2,551 Maturity structure of long-term liabilities:
Martgage debt 2 18
Book value at 31 December 2007 4,630 o 4,630 Bank loans 1.827 -
Within one to five years 1,829 18
Investments Other secu- Total
DKKm in subsidia-  rities and Martgage dePt 309 104
ries Investmants More than five years ..309 104
2,138 122
Cost at 1 January 2006 5,242 4 5,246
Adjustment regarding dividend {102} {102}
Cost at 31 Dacember 2006 5,140 4 5,144
Wrise-downs at 1 lanuary 2008 2,668 2,668
Write-downs 12 12
Reversal of write-downs (76} (76}
Write-downs at 31 December 2006 2,604 1] 2,604
Book value at 31 December 2006 2,536 4 2,540
Reversal of write-downs in 2007 concerns FLS Real Estate at the amount of DKK
20m which i due to the company having realised a profit from the sale of pro-
perties and Redep a1 the amount of DKK 7m which cormesponds to an equivalent
adjusiment regarding dividend at cost. The reversals are induded in financial
income,
Write-downs in 2007 amourted ta DKK 58m, Since write-downs exceed the
book value, this amount is provided for in Other provisions.
The individual subsidiary is considered to be an independent cash flow generating
unit,
Value in use as an expression of the recoverable amount is calculated for each
cash flow generating unit by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present vafue. Expected future cash flows are estimated based on management
estimates inctuding expected growths rates, etc. The discounting factor is alsa cal-
cutated on the basis of the Management’ estimate which inchudes both general
capital market conditions and a specific risk profile {cumently 9-10%).
The value in use calculations are composed of discounted expected cash flows for
the mext three years and a caloulated terminal value of cash flows for the subse-
guent period, In calculating the terminal value a growth rate (0%) conservatively
estimated by the Management is adopted for each of the cash flow generating
units.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
DKKm Opening Adjustment Effect of Move- Total
balance sheet regarding changed ments of
previous years 1ax rates the year
Deferred tax concerns:
Tangible assets 75 {10) 8) (14} 43
Liabilities 18 [+ 2) 14 30
Tax loss carry-forwards, etc. 34 @ 4y 1 22
Share of tax assets valued at nil {127} 19 14 {1) {95)
Net deferred tax assets/liabilities at 39 December 2007 1] ) 0 1] 0
DKKm Opening Adjustment Effect of Move- Total
balanice sheet regarding changed ments of
previous years tax rates the year
Deferred tax concerns:
Taagible assets 96 (21) 5
Liabilities 10 8 18
Tax loss carry-forwards, etc. 20 14 34
Share of tax asset valued a2 nil {126) i {127}
Net deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31 D ber 2006 1] 1] 0
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Notes to the Parent company accounts

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Other provisions

PKKm 2007 2006
Other provisions at t January 94 54
Transferred from other abilives . 28 0
Additions 11 0
Reversals (52) 0
Other provisions at 31 Decemnber 181 9

Other provisions consist of guarantees and liabilities in connection with dis-
posal of undertakings and sctrvities. Additions and disposals for the year are
included in the profit and loss account under the heading of financial items.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities indude provisions for Risk Management and fair value of
financial contracts {negative value).

Maturity structure of financial liabilities

DKKm 2007 2006

Time 10 maturity:

Within one year 6,196 3,148
Within one o five years 1,829 24
More than five years 309 98
Total 8,334 3,270
Charges
DKKm 2007 | 2006
Book Charge Book Charge
value of value of
charged charged
assets assets
Real estate 59 I 60 128

Contingent assets and liabilities

FLSmidth & Co. A/S has provided a guarantee for the supply and operating
liabilities of its subsidiary, FLS milig, in connection with the West Burton and
Eggborough desulphurisation projects in the UK. The Company has provided
guarantees to financial institutions at an amount of DKK 3,513m (2006: DKK
2.644m).

in connection with the disposal of undertakings normal guarantees, etc. are
issued to the acquiring undertaking. A provision is made for estimated losses
on such items.,

There are na significant contingent assets or habilities in addition to the above.
As 3 result of joint taxation scheme with FLSmidth & Co. ASS, Danish group
companies are jointly liable for joint taxation up to and including the income
year 2004,

See also note 30 to the consolidated accounts,

16. Financial instruments

The below table show the principals and fair values of pending transactions
at 31 December 2007 which have been entered into te hedge currency and
interest rate expasure. All fair values are based on officially fixed quotations, if
available, alternatively on prices quoted by banks. Pringipals are trarslated at
balance sheet date rates of exchange.

Currency hedging

In order to hedge currendy fisks on the underlying contractual and budgeted
payments and currency risks on foans and investments, the Group’s in-house
bank has entered into forward exchange contracts and currency options.
Pending forward exchange contracts at 31 December 2007 appear from the
table below.

Interest rate risk hedging

Interest rate risks are hedged by means of derivative financial instruments
such as interest swaps, forward rate agreements (FRA) and interest options.
As was the ¢ase at 31 December 2006 there were no open interest swaps,
forward rate agreements (FRA} or interest options at 31 December 2007,

DKKm 2007 2006

Forward exchange contracts
Principal of contracts, net*

uso (1,043} (29
EUR 948 46
DKK 29 El]
Other currencies 80 (48)
Total T R
Fair value of coatracts 16 1]

*) In the case of forward exchange contracts, principals at a negative value
indicate net sale of the currency concerned and principals at a positive
value indicate net purchase of the currency concerned.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
The ook value of debtors and long-term debt at 31 December largely cor-
responds to the fair vale,

Regarding finandal instruments please see note 32 1o the consalidated
accounts,



17.Net interest-bearing receivables/(debt)

Net interest-bearing debt by currency and interest r,

ate structure:

Principal in DKKm/interest rate p.a. USD/interest EUR/interest DXK/Interest - | Otherfinterest 2007 Total | 2006 Total
Within one year Assets 1,295 Y 817 2556% 2,936 L ADSA% 1,185 23124% 6,243 2,596
Liabilities {235) 4359% (6,581)5 255.0% ;| (1,345} | A154% {331) ' 2312.4% {8,492) (3,07%)
Total 1.060 . {5.764) ! 1.591 ¢ 864 1 {2,249) {483)
Within ane to five years Assets . : :
Lizhilities f
Total i ! ] 0 0
After tive years Assels : H .\
Lizbilities H
Total : i e : ]
Total net interast-bearing debt 1,060 | (5,764}, 1,591 ¢ 864 (2.249) {483)

The above maturities indicate the extent to which and in which currencies the interest is fixed in the intervals stated.

The cash maturity profile of the debt is not reflected here.

18. Financial assets and liabilities as defined in 1AS 39
DKKm 2007 2006
Financial assets:

Long-term assets:

Other securities and investments Q 4
Financial assets available for sale [+ 4
Short-term assets:

Amounts owed by subsidiaries 6,019 930
Gther debtors 229 106
Cash funds 9 1,724
Debtors measured at amortised cost _..6asy 2760

Bonds and listed shares
Trading portfolio

Financial liabilities:

Leng-term liabilities:

Moartgage debt ET 122
Bank debt 1,827 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,138 122
Short-term liabilities:

Mortgage debt 0 [
Currency loans and bank loans 447 0
Debt to subsidiaries 5.564 2,945
Cther liabilities 185 197
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost ___ 6,196 3,148

19. Related party transactions

Related parties include the parent company’s Board of Directars and
Management and the affiliated and associated companies comprised by the
FLSmidth & Co. Graup.

In 2007 and 2G06, there were no transactions with related parties which were
not included in the consclidation of the Group, nor were there any transacti-
ons with associated undertakings.

Trade between the parent company, FLSmidth & Co. A/, and Group compa-
nies consisted of the foliowing:

DXKm 2007 2006
Safe of services 48 48
Purchase of services 9 10
Financial income 186 30
Financial costs 144 70
Disposal of financial assets 1,878 -
Acquisition of financial assets 2,870 -
Debtors 6,019 930
Liabities 5564 2945

Parent company sale of services consists of managerial services and insurance
services. These transactions are carvied out on market terms and at market
prices. The parent company purchase of services mainly consists of legal and
tax assistance from FLSmidth A/S.

Financial income and costs are attributable to the FLSmidth & Co. Group's in-
house Treasury function which is performed by the parent company, FLSmidth
& Co. AsS. Debtors and liabilities are mainly attributable to this activity.

As to pravision of security by the parent company for refated parties, please
see note 15 abave.

Remuneration of the parent company Board and Management:

DKKm 2007 2006
Remuneration of the Board of Directors

Remuneration of the Board of Directors 4 5
Total remuneration of the Board of Directors 4 5
Remuneration of the Management

Wages and salaries 15 14
Share-based payment 1 1
Total remunetation of the Manag 16 15

Reference is made to note 36 to the consolidated accounts for further
details regarding the remuneration of the Beard and Management.
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